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Global Economic review
A year ago economic activity was accelerating in almost all regions of the
world and the global economy was projected to grow at 3.9 percent in 2018
and 2019. One year later, much has changed: the escalation of US–China
trade tensions, macroeconomic stress in Argentina and Turkey, disruptions to
the auto sector in Germany, tighter credit policies in China, and financial
tightening alongside the normalization of monetary policy in the larger
advanced economies have all contributed to a significantly weakened global
expansion, especially in the second half of 2018. With this weakness
expected to persist into the first half of 2019, the World Economic Outlook
(WEO) projects a decline in growth in 2019 for 70 percent of the global
economy. Global growth, which peaked at close to 4 percent in 2017, softened
to 3.6 percent in 2018, and is projected to decline further to 3.3 percent in

2019. Although a 3.3 percent global expansion is still reasonable, the outlook
for many countries is very challenging, with considerable uncertainties in the
short term, especially as advanced economy growth rates converge toward
their modest long-term potential.
While 2019 started out on a weak footing, a pickup is expected in the second
half of the year. This pickup is supported by significant policy accommodation
by major economies, made possible by the absence of inflationary pressures
despite closing output gaps. The US Federal Reserve, in response to rising
global risks, paused interest rate increases and signalled no increases for the
rest of the year. The European Central Bank, the Bank of Japan, and the Bank
of England have all shifted to a more accommodative stance. China has
ramped up its fiscal and monetary stimulus to counter the negative effect of
trade tariffs. Furthermore, the outlook for US–China trade tensions has
improved as the prospects of a trade agreement take shape.
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Road Ahead

India’s economy is picking up and growth prospects look bright—partly thanks
to the implementation of recent policies, such as the nationwide goods and
services tax. As one of the world’s fastest-growing economies—accounting
for about 15 percent of global growth—India’s economy has helped to lift
millions out of poverty. India’s economy is gaining momentum, thanks to the
implementation of several recent noteworthy policies—such as the
enactment of the long-awaited goods and services tax, and the country
opening up more to foreign investors.

India's gross domestic product (GDP) is expected to reach US$ 6 trillion by
FY27 and achieve upper-middle income status on the back of digitisation,
globalisation, favourable demographics, and reforms.

Industry Size
India has emerged as the fastest growing major economy in the world and is
expected to be one of the top three economic powers of the world over the
next 10-15 years, backed by its strong democracy and partnerships. India’s
GDP is estimated to have increased 7.2 per cent in 2017-18 and 7 per cent in
2018-19. India has retained its position as the third largest startup base in the
world with over 4,750 technology start-ups. India's labour force is expected to
touch 160-170 million by 2020, based on rate of population growth, increased
labour force participation, and higher education enrolment, among other
factors, according to a study by ASSOCHAM and Thought Arbitrage
Research Institute.

India's revenue receipts are estimated to touch Rs 28-30 trillion (US$ 385-412
billion) by 2019, owing to Government of India's measures to strengthen
infrastructure and reforms like demonetisation and Goods and Services Tax
(GST).
India is also focusing on renewable sources to generate energy. It is planning
to achieve 40 per cent of its energy from non-fossil sources by 2030 which is
currently 30 per cent and also have plans to increase its renewable energy
capacity from to 175 GW by 2022.
India is expected to be the third largest consumer economy as its
consumption may triple to US$ 4 trillion by 2025, owing to shift in consumer
behaviour and expenditure pattern, according to a Boston Consulting Group
(BCG) report; and is estimated to surpass USA to become the second largest
economy in terms of purchasing power parity (PPP) by the year 2040,
according to a report by Pricewaterhouse Coopers.

The IMF cut its outlook for 2019 global growth to 3.3 percent
Annual GDP (YoY)

GDP Per Capita in USD
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Sector Review – Education Sector

Pre-schools

Coaching and Test Preparation Institutes

With a population of more than 1.3 billion, it’s no surprise that India runs the largest national school system in the world. While it’s not often recognized for its
quality, education in the south Asian country has been on the rise, and now places in the top half of U.S. News & World Report’s rankings of 80 countries for best in
education.

There are close to 106 Mn children in 2-5 age group, out of which 60 Mn
children go to pre-school or an early childhood education centre. With a
market size of US$ 1.18 Bn, India has highest number of preschool children
enrolled globally (Source: Kaizen Education, 2014). Currently, India has close
to 0.5 Mn private pre-schools including both organised and unorganised.
Given the low penetration level of pre-schools it is estimated to grow at 23 per
cent CAGR over 2022.

Test preparation market size is estimated to be US$ 11.27 Bn and Tutoring
market size at US$ 9 Bn by 2020. With child development becoming the
priority of parents there has been a tremendous rise in coaching institutes
which offer both curricular and extra-curricular activities. Coaching classes
offer tuitions for all grades, preparation for entrance exams and coaching for
higher education as well. In extra-curricular coaching institutes cover
everything from day-care to soft skill development to dance, art, craft,
computer training etc. there has been a tremendous rise in coaching institutes
with increasing competitiveness and growing need for all-round development.
Many schools offer extra-curricular activities in their campus to formalise
these activities and provide an element of security and assurance to parents.

With more than 700,000 schools in operation, India certainly has a big job on its hands. Despite the recent improvements in Indian school systems, many parents
choose to educate their children in private institutions. In fact, just 70% of school age children attend public schools. That being said, only about 50% of Indian
children go to school at all: while registration is compulsory, attendance isn’t typically enforced.

India has the largest population in the world in the age bracket of 5-24 years which presents a large number
of opportunities in the education space. There is a high demand supply gap in the sector in India

Robust
Demand
Competitive
Advantage

ADVANTAGE
INDIA

India has a huge English speaking population which makes delivery of educational products easy.
India was ranked 27 out of 80 countries in English proficiency Index 2017.
100 per cent FDI (automatic route) is allowed in the education sector in India. The Government of India
has taken initiatives like National Accreditation Regulatory Authority Bill for Higher Educational and
the Foreign Educational Institutions Bill.

Policy
Support

Increasing
Investments

Between April 2000 and December 2018, inflow of US$ 2.21 billion has been witnessed as Foreign Direct
Investment (FD) in the education sector.

Industry Size
India’s education sector offers a great opportunity with approximately 29 per cent of India’s population being between the age group of 0-14 years. India’s higher
education segment is expected to increase to US$ 35.03 billion by 2025. The education sector in India is estimated at US$ 91.7 billion in FY18 and is expected to
reach US$ 144 billion in FY20. As of December 2018, internet penetration in India had reached 46.13 per cent. Increasing internet penetration will help in
education delivery.
India has over 250 million school going students, more than any other country. It also has one of the largest networks of higher education institutions in the world.
Number of colleges and universities in India reached 39,050 and 903, respectively in 2017-18. India had 36.64 million students enrolled in higher education in
2017-18. Gross Enrolment Ratio in higher education reached 25.8 per cent in 2017-18. In December 2018, the government of India published that 3.43 million
candidates had enrolled in the Pradhan Mantri Kaushal Vikas Yojana (PMKVY) 2016-20 scheme. Up to January 24, 2019 as many as 2.52 million candidates
were trained under the scheme’s Short Term Training (STT).

The segment is majorly unregulated in the country with pre-school education
not being compulsory. The National Commission of Protection for Child Rights
(NVPCR) has formed guidelines for private pre-schools to ensure child safety
and bring uniformity and inclusiveness. All pre-schools are required to be
registered with NCPCR and ensure police verification of all employees.
K12
The current K-12 school system in India is one of the largest in the world with
more than 1.5 Mn schools that have more than 250 Mn students. Private
schools account for about 25% of total schools. Based on the differential
geography and income-levels of Indian population, three different submarkets have emerged within private school segments namely, High-End
Schools (having fees more than ₹ 60,000 per annum), Mid-Market Schools
(having fees between ₹ 12,000-60,000 per annum) and Affordable Private
Schools (having fees under ₹ 12,000 per annum). As per rules, schools are
formed as non-profit organisations and any surplus generated is needed to be
ploughed back into the improvement of the school.
With increasing awareness, private Indian players are collaborating with
international brands to provide international standard quality education.
Schools are investing in information and multimedia education technologies
to provide better education to students. Increase in technology has also
influenced the education sector due to which smart classes are gaining
acceptance. Technology-driven learning is introducing a qualitative and
quantitative difference to education. The introduction of online learning in
Indian education system has changed its scenario, with its reach and
economical access.

Manpower training
Teacher training is emerging as a huge need area as teacher quality is a big
barrier to improvement in learning outcomes. Despite being the second
largest education system in the world, there is serious shortage of good
faculty in India. There is a huge need for both pre-service and in-service
training for teachers. Of the 9 Mn teachers working in schools (K-12) only 80%
are professionally trained. Pre-service teacher training has mainly been in the
hands of government and private institutes that provide Bachelor’s and
Master’s degree in education. Social enterprises have mainly been driven by
non-profit models with some for-profit models emerging given the need of the
hour. While there is a strong need to change the policy to revamp teacher
training in India, there is huge opportunity for entrepreneurs to design
solutions that can help train teachers to be more effective in the classroom.
Source: IBEF June 2018, Technopak Education Outlook June 2017
Opportunities in Education Sector in India
Investments in Education
•
•
•

Higher Education

100 per cent FDI (automatic route) is allowed in the Indian education
sector.
An estimated investment of ~US$ 200 billion is required to achieve the
government’s target of 30 per cent GER for the education sector by 2020.
The government also promotes Public Private Partnership (PPP) and tax
concessions to encourage foreign players in the industry.

Immense Growth potential
Education in India

Core

Pre K
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India’s higher education system is the largest in the world with over 70 Mn
students and it ranks second in terms of student enrolment in higher
education. By 2025, the segment is expected to reach US$ 35.03 Bn. This
includes various institutions providing graduate courses in various streams
and post graduate courses. Mostly higher education is controlled by
government under various central and state universities. However private
players are foraying in a big way in post-graduate courses. With increasing
need for formal education higher education has become commonplace and
increasing number of students are opting for post graduate courses with a
view to secure more competitive jobs.

Annual Report 2018-19

•

India has the world’s largest population of about 500 million in the age
bracket of 5-24 years and this provides a great opportunity for the
education sector.

•

The education industry in India is estimated to reach US$ 144 billion by
2020 from US$ 97.8 billion in 2016

Policy Support
•

The continued focus of the Government of India towards liberalising the
Education sector, is reflected by the proposed introduction of trend setting
bills such as the Foreign Educational Institutions (Regulation of Entry and
Operations) Bill, 2010 and the Educational Tribunals Bill, 2010.
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•

The Department of School Education and Literacy has launched
SamagraShiksha programme with effect from 2018-19 for the school
education sector extending from pre- school to class 12th providing
quality education at all levels.

•

In December 2018, the Government of India published that 3.43 million
candidates had enrolled in the Pradhan Mantri Kaushal Vikas Yojana
(PMKVY) 2016-20 scheme. Up to January 24 ,2019, as many as 2.53
million candidates were trained under the scheme’s Short Term Training
(STT).

•

‘Unnat Bharat Abhiyan’ which aims to link higher educational institutions in
the country with at least five villages. The scheme covers 750 such
institutions.
•

The allocation for school education under the Union Budget 2018-19 is
expected to increase by 14 per cent, to focus on accelerating existing
schemes and quality improvement.

•

In order to boost the Skill India Mission, two new schemes, Skills
Acquisition and Knowledge Awareness for Livelihood Promotion
(SANKALP) and Skill Strengthening for Industrial Value Enhancement
(STRIVE), have been approved by the Cabinet Committee on Economic
Affairs (CCEA), Government of India, with an outlay of ₹ 6,655 crore (US$
1.02 billion) and will be supported by the World Bank.

Education sector in India remains to be a strategic priority of the
government. Skill India Mission 2015 aims at skilling around 400 million
youths in the country by 2022.

Public Private Partnership (PPP)

•

•

Setting up of formal educational institutes under the PPP mode and
enlarging the existing ones

•

In the case of PPP the Government is considering different models like the
basic infrastructure model, outsourcing model, equity/hybrid model and
reverse outsourcing model.

•

Government Initiatives
Some of the other major initiatives taken by the Government of India are:
•

•

In August 2018, Innovation Cell and Atal Ranking of Institutions on
Innovation Achievements (ARIIA) were launched to assess innovation
efforts and encourage a healthy competition among higher educational
institutions in the country.
In August 2018, Government of India launched the second phase of

•

The Ek Bharat Shreshtha Bharat (EBSB) campaign is undertaken by
Ministry of Human Resource Development to increase engagement
between states, union territories, central ministries, educational
institutions and general public.
Prime Minister Mr Narendra Modi launched the Skill India initiative –
‘Kaushal Bharat, Kushal Bharat’. Under this initiative, the government has
set itself a target of training 400 million citizens by 2022 that would enable
them to find jobs. The initiatives launched include various programmes
like: Pradhan Mantri Kaushal Vikas Yojana (PMKVY), National Policy for
Skill Development and Entrepreneurship 2015, Skill Loan scheme, and
the National Skill Development Mission.
In December 2018, the Government of India published that 3.43 million
candidates had enrolled in the Pradhan Mantri Kaushal Vikas Yojana
(PMKVY) 2016-20 scheme. Up to January 24, 2019 as many as 2.53
million candidates were trained under under the scheme’s Short Term
Training (STT).

Government Initiative: To accelerate Education in India

SWOT Analysis
Strength
• Easy to Establish
• Government Support
• Low operational cost
• Plenty of good quality curriculum

Weakness
• Qualified and capable faculty
• Infrastructure especially in rural India
• Political intervention in management of school

Opportunities
• Demand for education growing
• Population growth
• Foreign Tie-ups
• Rapidly growing technology

Threat
• Government Regulation
• Competition
• High faculty attrition
• Increasing trend of foreign education

Business performance review
Pre K
Kidzee has more than 1,900 operational pre-schools in over 800 cities
across India and Nepal. Kidzee has so far touched the lives of more than
450,000 children since inception in 2003. In FY19 the Company signed 317
pre-schools.
The franchisee owner bears the establishment costs and an upfront
franchisee fees. Further, it pays royalty each year under a revenue-share
agreement and also student kit fee to franchisor. The franchisor provides
the curriculum, content, kits and other necessary support like teacher
training and advertising and marketing.

In FY19, the Company launched the new Kidzee App to fulfill the need gap
of all stakeholders – Parents, Partners and Teachers. The app allows data
to flow seamlessly across these user groups and enables a smooth
functioning of the centre.

SANKALP

66

STRIVE

Mentor
India
Campaign

Six new
IITs

EBSB

Model
School
Scheme

National
Education
Policy

PMGDISHA

Annual Report 2018-19

Financial Statement

Road Ahead for Indian Education Sector
In 2030, it is estimated that India’s higher education will:
• Adopt transformative and innovative approaches in Higher education.
• Have an augmented Gross Enrolment Ratio (GER) of 50 per cent
• Reduce state-wise, gender based and social disparity in GER to 5 per cent.
• Emerge as a single largest provider of global talent, with one in four graduates in the world being a product of the Indian higher education system.
• Be among the top five countries in the world in terms of research output with an annual R&D spent of US$ 140 billion.
• Have more than 20 universities among the global top 200.

Its proprietary pedagogy, iLLUME sets Kidzee a class apart from other
preschool chains. iLLUME is an approach that helps parents and teachers
spot the unique potential in each child and help them realize it. Zee Learn
offers franchise to local education entrepreneurs, especially women, to
run and manage Kidzee preschools.

Government initiatives
for education sector

Management Report

Kidzee introduced Imagenie based on top class Augmented Reality
technology, designed around age-appropriate learning and complements
the classroom learning by continuing the learning process at home.
Imagenie consists of Coloring sheets for PG and Nursery and Jigsaw
puzzles for Jr. and Sr. KG. In FY18, the Company introduced an upgrade to
the Sr. KG Kit in the form of new puzzles under the topic ‘Extinct Animals’ in
line with developmental milestones of the children and observing the

Annual Report 2018-19

acceptance of the product by the children over the last year. The
Company also introduced a new product under the Imagenie+ umbrella.
The new product Spell-English, provides a value added immersive
language learning experience for the child based on the basis of
developing language – the 3 R’s: Reading, ‘Riting and ‘Rithmetic. The
product is offered from PG to Sr. KG and is designed to evolve from
simple to complex activities beginning with pattern tracing and letter
introduction to phonic introduction with rhymes and making sentences.
The Company also continues to upgrade the Kidzee Learning Tablet to
provide engaging content that is child friendly, age appropriate and
developmentally fundamental for children.
K 12
Mount Litera Zee Schools (MLZS) aim to provide Learner-Centred
education with an integrated approach - where the child is at the centre of
everything. Mount Litera Zee Schools were initiated to bring about a
quantum leap in how school education is delivered to the modern day
child. The Company partners with local educational trusts under various
operating models. The range of services and solutions provided under
these partnerships range across school set up assistance, teachertraining, assessment, teaching materials, student learning resources,
branding. In addition the Company runs five CBSE COCO schools at
Goa, Bhatinda, Karnal, Patiala, and Nagpur having more than 3400
students and also runs an IB school at BKC Mumbai, which has around
500 students.
In FY19 the Company signed 7 and added 7 K12 Mount Litera Zee Schools
taking the total count to 129 including 5 COCO schools. The total number of
K12 kits dispatched in FY19 is around 64,000. These schools enjoy around
90 per cent retention rate.
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Higher Education - HZU
In Higher education, we have a service agreement with the leading UGC
approved state private university in Dehradun called the Himgiri Zee University
(HZU). HZU is built on a 50 acre pristine campus and has 6 thriving schools of
Engineering & Sciences; Management & Law; Agriculture & Forestry; Education
& Social work; Clinical Research & Pharmaceutical Sciences and Vocational
studies. It has been awarded last year as the Best Private University in Dehradun
by ICCI.
Vocational training
Youth today is looking for vocational education outside the ambit or traditional
higher education. The Company’s Zee Institute of Media Arts (ZIMA), a TV and
film training institute, in Mumbai offers professional courses in direction,
acting, sound, editing, production and cinematography. Another offering
from the company Zee Institute of Creative Art (ZICA) is the nation’s first fullfledged classical and digital animation training academy offering training in
classical 2D, modern 3D animation, VFX, visual effects, graphic design and
web design in over 16 cities across India.
In FY19 ZICA introduced 3 new programs in interior design, digital marketing
and digital photography. The institute has strong emphasis on creating a
stimulating environment for the students. ZICA focuses on the application of
principles of art and design and fundamentals of animation to computer based
digital animation and web design. A well laid out assessment procedure
ensures the students’ acceptability as distinguished professionals in the
world of Animation. ZICA training academy is equipped with high-end
animation tools, 2D animation facilities, 3D software, visual FX Labs and
Imaging Technologies. ZICA’s placement cell provides placement
assistance to all ZICA students across the country. ZICA students have been
placed in production studios like Double Negative, Prime Focus, Maya
Digital, Famous Studios, Creative Box, INNOV Reality, Contiloe Films etc.
ZICA has launched one of its kind online learning platform for its students
“E-Studio” enhancing their knowledge and skills.
ZIMA has international standard curriculum for all courses and a cutting-edge
technology and infrastructure offering programs aligned in “School of Film &
TV” and “School of Journalism”. It is India’s first STEINBERG Certified
Training Centre for Sound Design & Recording programs. It has a highly
experienced faculty from Film, TV and Journalism industry. ZIMA offers
courses in most domains of filmmaking, with creative courses like script
writing, direction, acting, music and film appreciation or technical courses of
cinematography, sound recording, editing and even production designing
and integrated courses. Currently, ZIMA is operational at Mumbai, Noida
and Jaipur and will be shortly launching their new center in Kolkata.
During FY19, Masterclass sessions and guest lectures were conducted by
various industry professionals like Ms Deepti Naval (Bollywood actress), Mr.
Rakesh Bedi (actor / director), Mr. Rohit Makwana (Assistant Editor – Ek
Villian, Aashiqui 2, Alone), Mr. Sumesh Lekhi (DOP and Film Maker), Mr. Suraj
Gunjal (Assistant Editor – Bombay Talkies, Ankhon Dekhi, Shab).
AESTHETICS 2019 – Youth conclave was organised in Jan 2019 offering
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one of its kind platform for the to showcase their creative work and attract
subject matter experts, studios and production houses to provide exposure
and know-how to the students and professionals. The event had guest
speakers from various companies like ZEE5, Adobe, Unity, MSI Global,
Quidich Innovation Labs, DigiQuest.
Manpower Training
With increasing awareness manpower training is gaining centre-stage
among corporate who dedicate substantial time and resources to train their
employees. Most organisations prefer to seek external help from training
organizations to train their new joiners on general skills, and temporary
staffing companies to manage payrolls, compliance and other HR aspects
related to such contingent workforce. Liberium provides a one stop solution
to the corporate by providing assistance to the corporate HR team to recruit
the right resources, provide training on client specific required skills and
place the associates on Liberium rolls to efficiently manage staff.
Additionally on boarding & induction sessions conducted by Liberium help
to motivate and engage the associates.

Test Prep / Tutorials

Other Liabilities

Operational expenses increased by 223 per cent to ₹ 14,537 Lakhs in FY19
from ₹ 4507 Lakhs in FY18 largely on account of MT Educare’s expenses
(₹ 9711 Lakhs) been consolidated for the first time with Zee Learn. The
increase in other operational expenses commensurate to increase in sales.

Other Liabilities saw decrease of ₹ 2,557 Lakhs from ₹ 24,026 Lakhs as on
March 31, 2018 to ₹ 21,469 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 largely on account of
discounting of security deposit received at present value as per IND AS.

Employee Benefit Expenses

Other Expenditure

Non-Current Assets

Other expenditure increased by 69 per cent to ₹ 7258 Lakhs in FY19 from ₹
4,290 Lakhs in FY18 largely on account of Marketing, advertisement and
publicity expenses, travelling and conveyance expenses and legal and
professional expenses (largely on account of consolidation of MT Educare Ltd)

Finance costs increased by 148 per cent to ₹ 4731 Lakhs in FY19 from ₹
1911 Lakhs in FY18 largely on account of consolidation of MT Educare Ltd.
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expenses increased by 151 per cent to ₹ 2789
Lakhs in FY19 from ₹ 1112 Lakhs in FY18 on account of consolidation of MT
Educare Ltd

Financial Review - Consolidated Results

SOURCE OF FUNDS

During FY19, the Company signed 317 new Kidzee Pre Schools and 7 Mount
Litera Zee K12 Schools, expanding its network to more than 800 cities in India.
The Company strengthened its leadership position in the school segment with
over 1900 Kidzee Pre-Schools and 129 Mount Litera Zee K12 Schools.
Through network of pre-school centres, K-12 schools and Youth centres, the
Company served 230,000+ students during Fy19.

Share Capital

Profit After Tax

The equity share capital increased by ₹ 1.83 lakhs from ₹ 3,258.95 Lakhs as
on March 31, 2018 to ₹ 3,260.79 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 on account of
issuance of equity shares to employees under employee stock ownership plan.
Other Equity
Other equity saw an increase of ₹ 7,773.62 Lakhs from ₹ 32,080.16 Lakhs as
on March 31, 2018 to ₹ 39,853.77 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 largely on
account of Net Profits earned during the year.
Non-Current Liabilities
Non-Current liabilities saw an increase of ₹ 8,803.50 Lakhs from ₹ 48,260
Lakhs as on March 31, 2018 to ₹ 57,063 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019
Financial Liabilities

Expenditure
Total expenditure increased by 121 per cent to ₹ 43,472 Lakhs in FY19 from
₹ 19,698 Lakhs in FY18.

Annual Report 2018-19

Current liabilities saw an increase of ₹ 19,500 Lakhs from ₹ 10,122 Lakhs as
on March 31, 2018 to ₹ 29,622 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 on account
increase in trade payables, tax liabilities and other liabilities.
APPLICATION OF FUNDS

The profit after tax increased by 69 per cent to ₹ 8339 Lakhs in FY19 from ₹
4928 Lakhs in Fy18.

The Company’s total income increased by 102 per cent to ₹ 54,925 Lakhs in
FY19 from ₹ 27,254 Lakhs in FY18 largely on account of MT Educare’s
revenue (₹ 18,839 Lakhs) been consolidated for the first time with Zee Learn.
Growth is also aided by 11 per cent growth in revenue from educational
services /activities, 14 per cent growth in lease rentals and 67 per cent growth
in revenue from Training, Manpower and related activities.

Current Liabilities

Employee benefits expenses increased by 80 per cent to ₹ 14,157 Lakhs in
FY19 from ₹ 7,879 Lakhs in FY18 primarily on account of consolidation of MT
Educare Ltd and 100% subsidiary Liberium Gloabal Resources Pvt Ltd, which
is engaged into Training, Manpower and related activities.

Mahesh Tutorials helps students with Secondary Education & foundation
courses for competitive exams. It also has brands like Lakshya, MT Science, MT
Commerce, Mahesh PU College, Sri Gayatri Academy and Aryan Foundation
help students with higher secondary education and entrance exams.

Income

Financial Statement

Operational Expenses

Finance Costs
Liberium assists in effective hiring, rapid backfilling, soft skill training, strict
adherence to compliance, quick turnaround time on associate/client queries,
legal support, and performance and productivity tracking. Liberium help
provides lateral hiring assistance, comprehensive solutions around payroll
processing, training and HR business process outsourcing.

Management Report

Financial Liabilities saw an increase of ₹ 11,008 lakhs from ₹ 24,074 Lakhs
as on March 31, 2018 to ₹ 35,082 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 majorly on
account MT Educare’s Term loan ₹ 10,416 lakhs

Annual Report 2018-19

Non-Current Assets saw a net increase of ₹ 40,857 Lakhs from ₹ 85,745
Lakhs as on March 31, 2018 to ₹ 126,602 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 on
account of increase in fixed assets, goodwill, financial asset and deferred tax
asset on acquisition of MT Educare.
Current Assets
Current assets saw a decrease of ₹ 13,326 Lakhs from ₹ 7,976 Lakhs as on
March 31, 2018 to ₹ 21,302 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 largely on account of
acquisition of MT Educare.

Standalone Results
Income
The Company’s total income increased by 12 per cent to ₹ 22, 662 Lakhs in
FY19 from ₹ 20,202 Lakhs in FY18 aided by 25 per cent growth in revenue
from Course fees / Royalty on account of higher enrolments vis-à-vis FY18.
Total Expenditure
Total expenditure increased by 7 per cent to ₹ 13,993 Lakhs in FY19 from ₹
13,066 Lakhs in FY18 largely on account of finance cost and operational cost.
Operational Expenses
Operational Expenses increased by 7per cent to ₹ 4826 Lakhs in FY19 from
₹ 4,507 Lakhs in FY18 commensurating to increase in sales.
Employee Benefit Expenses
Employee benefits expenses increased by 3 per cent to ₹ 2,952 Lakhs in
FY19 from ₹ 2,873 Lakhs in FY18 on account of annual salary hike.
Other Expenditure
Other expenditure decreased by 5 per cent to ₹ 3,841 Lakhs in FY19 from ₹
4,037 Lakhs in FY18 largely on account of reduction of freight cost and legal
and professional charges.
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Key Ratios

Finance Costs

Current Assets

Finance costs increased by 49 per cent to ₹ 1,997 Lakhs in FY19 from ₹ 1,336
Lakhs in FY18 on account of IND AS adjustment on 10.40% Secured
Redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures.

Current assets saw an increase of ₹ 8752 Lakhs from ₹ 15,685 Lakhs as on
March 31, 2018 to ₹ 24,437 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 on account of ICD
issued to DVPL.

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Internal Controls

depreciation and amortisation expenses increased by 21 per cent to ₹ 377
Lakhs in FY19 from ₹ 312 Lakhs in FY18.
Profit After Tax
The profit after tax increased by 35 per cent to ₹ 6,170 Lakhs in FY19 from ₹
4,576 Lakhs in FY18.
SOURCE OF FUNDS
Share Capital
The equity share capital increased by ₹ 1.83 Lakhs from ₹ 3,258.95 Lakhs as
on March 31, 2018 to ₹ 3,260.79 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019.
Other Equity
Other equity saw an increase of ₹ 5,905.83 Lakhs from ₹ 32, 109 Lakhs as on
March 31, 2018 to ₹ 38,015 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 largely on account of
Net Profits earned during the year.
Non-Current Liabilities
Non-Current liabilities saw an increase of ₹ 4,399 Lakhs from ₹ 17,304 Lakhs
as on March 31, 2018 to ₹ 21,703 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019.
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities saw an increase of ₹ 1428 Lakhs from ₹ 11,808 Lakhs as
on March 31, 2018 to ₹ 13,236 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 on account of IND
AS adjustment
Other Liabilities
Other Liabilities saw an increase of ₹ 2,962 Lakhs from ₹ 5340 Lakhs as on
March 31, 2018 to ₹ 8,302 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 largely on account of
discounting of security deposit received at present value as per IND AS.
Current Liabilities
Current liabilities saw an increase of ₹ 5,326 Lakhs from ₹ 8,454 Lakhs as on
March 31, 2018 to ₹ 13,780 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 on account of
working capital demand loan.
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Non-Current Assets
Non-Current Assets saw a net increase of ₹ 6,881 Lakhs from ₹ 45,441
Lakhs as on March 31, 2018 to ₹ 52,322 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019 on
account of increase in financial assets (amount invested in MT Educare Ltd)
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The Company’s internal control system has been designed keeping in mind
the size and nature of operations to ensure strict compliance with applicable
legislation. Internal audit team conducts periodic reviews about the business
operations and periodically apprises the Board to ensure timely decisionmaking. The Board ensures that timely measures are taken in case of any
deviation from budgeting.
All financial statements are properly documented. The management
information system (MIS) forms an integral part of the company’s control
mechanism. This enables the Company to strictly adhere to all applicable
procedures, laws, rules and statutes.

Risk and Concerns

Consolidated

Ratio
FY19
6.54%
12.93
2.74
62.6%
0.71
25.1%

Debtors Turnover Ratio
Inventory Turnover
Interest Coverage
Current Ratio
Debt Equity Ratio
Operating Profit Margin

FY18
12.07%
3.92
4.76
54.7%
0.73
33.8%

For the purpose of calculation, Average Debtors (Average of opening and
closing) and Average Inventory (Average of Opening and Closing) has been
considered.
The changes has been largely on account of consolidation of MT Educare for
the first time in FY19.
Ratios where there has been significant changes from FY18 to FY19

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The Company follows a unified towards CSR at Essel Group level, wherein
CSR contributions of the group entities are pooled in and used to fund high
cost long-term projects aimed at building Human capital and creating lasting
impact on the society.
Additionally, through its I Care Outreach to prevent child abuse the Company
conducted 607 workshops touching 90,350 parents. The initiative is aimed at
sensitizing maximum adults about the incidence of child abuse to create an
abuse-free and nurturing environment for every child. The Company also
furthered the causes of ‘Beti Bachao Beti Padhao’ and ‘Sukanya Samridhi
Yojana campaign’ across all its centres.
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Ratios where there has been significant changes from FY18 to FY19

Human Resource
Intellectual capital is one of the key resources for the Company to ensure
business sustainability and growth. The Company has a diverse employee
base with unique creative skills, technical knowledge and functional
proficiency. The experienced and talented pool of employees plays key roles
in enhancing business efficiency, devising strategies, setting-up systems and
evolving business. Nurturing people is a key organizational goal and
leadership mandate. The Company conducts regular trainings to the
employees to ensure skill upgradation and personnel development to
enhance employee productivity. HR policies nurture a work culture that leads
to employee satisfaction, unflagging motivation, and high retention rate.
Employees have a sense of belongingness and feel empowered in driving
business profitability. HR policies ensure proper awareness, encourage
communication, and provide opportunities for employees to give feedback
through periodic mailers, group announcements for key organisational
updates, regular open forums attended by CEO and senior leadership team.
The Company’s three pronged strategy for people development
encompasses providing challenging work, encouraging strong crossfunctional interaction and provide structured training programmes.

Management Report

Standalone

Ratio
FY19
7.27%
0.44

Debtors Turnover Ratio
Debt Equity Ratio

FY18
4.54%
0.38

For the purpose of calculation, Average Debtors (Average of opening and
closing) has been considered.
The changes has been discussed in detailed in financial analysis
Opportunities and Risk and Concerns
Opportunities
• Large population with rapid urbanisation, increased disposable
incomes and dual working families
• Growing popularity of formal educational institutes
• Willingness of parents to opt for private education versus Government
education facilities
• Low penetration of formal pre-schools and coaching institutes and
huge demand supply gap

• Poor track reord of Indian education companies impacting sentiment of
parents
• Complex regulatory environment
• Rising real estate and rental costs
• Increased competition form unorganised players restircting increase in
fees and compensating for increased expenses
• Limited availability of quality teachers

Business Outlook
The Company has a strong presence in the pre-school and K-12 spaces of
education sector. With the acquisition of MT Educare to be accomplished in
the next financial year, the Company expects to expand its footprint in the
coaching institute space. MT Educare is strong brand in Western and
Southern India with strong brands like Lakshya, Mahesh Tutorials, Chitale
classes and Robomate. Robomate is a very robust digital offering which has a
potential of improving face-to-face classroom training courses and provide
online methodology for reaching students across geographies including
outside India.
The acquisition will also provide the students of Mount Litera system access to
very high-end content, curriculum, tutorials, test preparation opportunities
from Mahesh Tutorial especially for the students of the higher classes of IXth,
Xth, XIth and XIIth. At the same time, MT Educare will get access to around
2,00,000 students of the Company and franchisee network of almost 2000
people who can be considered for becoming franchisees of offerings from MT
Educare so as to provide it a pan-India base.
MT Educare has a strong presence in Government Vocational business and
the Company is present in B2C Vocational business. The acquisition will also
help strengthen the presence of the Company in the vocational business.
The Company is working to make its balance sheet asset light by divesting the
real estate portfolio of the owned, operated schools. In case the Company is
able to REIT out or divest these assets while continuing to have the schools, it
will help improve financial parameters and release significant funds which can
be invested for future growth.

• Growing popularity of private schools versus Government schools
• Low percentage of trained teachers in the system with a need for the
same
• The Company plans to bid for government schools for providing
Information and Communication Technology education platform
• The Company plans to enter EPO segment by providing solutions for
process out sourcing and remote tutoring and classroom support to
overseas students
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Directors’ Report
a)

To,
The Members of

Zee Learn Limited
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Ninth Annual Report of the
Company together with Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
March 31, 2019. This report states compliance as per the requirements of the
Companies’ Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the secretarial standards the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and other rules and regulations as
applicable to the Company.

b)

c)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), in relation to
the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2018-2019, your
Directors conﬁrm that:

The Financial Statements of the Company - comprising of the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2019 and the Statement of Proﬁt & Loss for the
year ended on that date, have been prepared on a going concern basis
following applicable accounting standards and that no material
departures have been made from the same;
Accounting policies selected were applied consistently and the
judgments and estimates related to these ﬁnancial statements have
been made on a prudent and reasonable basis, so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and,
of the proﬁts of the Company for the year ended on that date;
Proper and sufﬁcient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities;

d)

Requisite internal ﬁnancial controls to be followed by the Company were
laid down and that such internal ﬁnancial controls are adequate and
operating effectively; and

e)

Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

There have been no material changes and commitments that have occurred
after close of the ﬁnancial year till the date of this report, which affect the
ﬁnancial position of the Company. Based on the internal ﬁnancial control
framework and compliance systems established in the Company, the work
performed by Statutory, Internal, Secretarial Auditors and reviews performed
by the management and/or relevant Audit and other Committees of the Board,
your Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal ﬁnancial controls
were adequate and working effectively during ﬁnancial year 2018-19.

Particulars

Standalone – Year ended

Consolidated – Year ended

Based on the performance of the Company for the year under review and in
view of the track record of the Company, the Board of Directors are pleased to
recommend a dividend of ` 0.10 per equity share for the ﬁnancial year 20182019, subject to approval of the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
With the motto of building the nation through education, your Company is
constantly contributing in the ﬁeld of education across age groups, all the
while maintaining its core values of integrity, ownership, leadership, trust and
continuous learning. We believe that every child has a unique and inﬁnite
potential and we are committed to help children realise their capabilities.
FY19 was a landmark year for Kidzee as it continued its growth story and
crossed 1933 operational centres. During FY19, Mount Litera Zee Schools
(MLZS) continued its growth story with 129 operational schools.

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2018

20,977.80

18,634.25

51,724.64

26,883.87

Other Income

1,683.96

1568.18

3,200.46

370.22

Total Revenue

22,661.76

20,202.43

54,925.10

27,254.09

to ` 1,863.4 Mn in FY18 (up by 12.6 %). Operating EBITDA stood at 935.9 Mn

Total Expenses

11,618.99

11417.19

35,952.40

16,675.78

in FY19, compared to ` 721.7 Mn in FY18 (up by 29.7%). PBT stood at `

Operating Proﬁt/Loss

11,042.77

8,785.24

18,972.70

10,578.31

Less: Finance Cost

1,997.13

1336.14

4,730.85

1,910.75

866.8 Mn in FY19, compared to Rs. 713.7 Mn in FY18 (up by 21.5 %). PAT
stood at ` 616.9 Mn in FY19, compared to Rs. 457.6 Mn in FY18 (up by 34.8 %).

Less: Depreciation

377.19

312.46

2,788.54

1,111.93

Proﬁt/Loss before Tax

8,668.45

7,136.64

11,453.31

7,555.63

Provision for Taxation (Net)

2,498.86

2,560.62

3,114.71

2,627.72

Mn in FY19, compared to ` 1,020.8 Mn in FY18 (up by 54.5%). PBT stood at `

Proﬁt/Loss after Tax

6,169.59

4,576.02

8,338.60

4,927.91

1145.3 Mn in FY19, compared to ` 755.6 Mn in FY18 (up by 51.6 %). PAT stood

Transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve

406.25

406.25

406.25

406.25

Equity Dividend

326.07

162.17

326.07

162.17

67.02

33.02

67.02

33.02

5370.25

3,974.58

7,539.26

4,326.47

Less : Appropriations

Tax on Equity Dividend
Balance Carried To Balance Sheet
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Your Company delivered on its promise of sustained proﬁtability and
improving on margins and has shown remarkable growth in proﬁt after tax.
Company registered Standalone Revenue of ` 2,097.8 Mn in FY19 compared

Company registered Consolidated Revenue of ` 5,172.5 Mn in FY19, compared
to ` 2,688.4 Mn in FY18 (up by 92.4%). Operating EBITDA stood at ` 1,577.2

at ` 833.9 Mn in FY19, compared to ` 492.8 Mn in FY18 (up by 69.2%).
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SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, your Company had allotted 1,83,253 Equity
Shares of ` 1/- each upon exercise of Stock Options by the Option grantees
under the Employee Stock Option Scheme. This has resulted an increase in
the paid-up equity share capital of the Company from ` 32,58,95,472 to
` 32,60,78,725 comprising of 32,60,78,725 equity shares of ` 1/- each.

STRATEGIC INVESTMENT IN MT EDUCARE LIMITED

March 31, 2019
Revenue from Operations

March 31, 2019

Financial Statement

DIVIDEND

The Financial performance of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 is summarised below:
(` in lakhs)

Management Report

The improved performance is a result of sustained growth in the business,
despite of tough economic conditions. Numerous innovative and state-of-theart technological measures were undertaken for driving efﬁciencies in running
its preschool and K-12 school operations, under the brand names of ‘Kidzee’
and ‘Mount Litera Zee School’ respectively.
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The Board, at its meeting held on February 14, 2018 had accorded its
approval to subscribe for 3,19,64,200 Equity Shares as preferential allotment
in MT Educare Ltd. for an aggregate amount of ` 200 crores
(`. 200,00,00,000) approx. Post preferential allotment, the Company owned a
44.53% stake in MT Educare Ltd. The subscription to the Preferential
allotment triggered an open offer under Regulation 3, 4 and other applicable
provisions of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011 for the acquisition of 26% from the shareholders of MT
Educare Limited for which the Company appointed M/s Axis Capital Limited,
Merchant Banker as the Manager to the Offer for the open offer process.
Accordingly, the Company had acquired 1,07,36,973 Equity shares of ` 10/each from the shareholders of MT Educare Limited at an open offer price of
` 72.76/-. The total shareholding of the Company as on March 31, 2019
aggregates to 4,27,01,173 Equity shares of ` 10/- each constituting 59.12%
of the paid up share capital of the Company. Thus, as on March 31, 2019 MT
Educare Limited is a subsidiary of the Company.
The acquisition of MT Educare Ltd is aligned with the Company’s strategy to
increase the footprint across various segments in the Education sector and
consolidate its offerings through the digital track. This will further strengthen
the Preschools and K-12 offerings through Kidzee & Mount Litera Zee
Schools respectively and will also mark your Company’s entry into the high
growth market of Edutech through Robomate and will open doors for the test
preparation / tutorials segment through MT Educare’s other brands like
Mahesh Tutorials, Lakshya and Chitale classes. This acquisition will also help
the Company make inroads to the government supported skill and vocational
training segment, where MT Educare has a signiﬁcant presence. Post this
acquisition, the education offerings on a consolidated basis would reach
around 3.50 lakhs students, making the Company one of the biggest
education companies globally in terms of number of students served.

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES
Your Company had allotted on April 8, 2015 650 (Six Hundred Fifty) Rated,
Unlisted, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (“Debentures” Or
“NCDs”) of the Face Value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs Only) Each,
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for cash, aggregating upto Rs. 65,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Five Crores
Only) in terms of the Information Memorandum circulated on Private Placement
Basis, on which Credit Analysis & Research Limited (CARE) has afﬁrmed the
rating of ‘CARE AA+ (SO)’ [credit watch with negative implications], which
signiﬁes the NCDs are construed to offer high safety for timely servicing of debt
obligation and carries very low credit risk.

GLOBAL DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS
During the Financial year 2013-14, Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) offer
of the Company for 56,17,977 GDRs opened for subscription at an issue price
of US$ 3.56 per GDR representing 5,61,79,770 fully paid Equity Shares ` 1/each of the Company (each GDR representing 10 Equity Shares). Upon
subscription of the GDR, the Company Issued and allotted 5,61,79,770 fully
paid Equity Shares of ` 19.50 per share underlying Global Depository
Receipts (“GDRs”) on May 21, 2013. 5,61,79,770 Global Depository Receipts
have been listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange since May 24, 2013. As
at March 31, 2019, no GDRs have remained outstanding, as all the GDRs
have been converted into the underlying equity shares w.e.f. January 15,
2018 which forms part of the existing paid up share capital of the Company.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME
Your Company has implemented an ESOP scheme called ZLL ESOP 2010
–AMENDED 2015 Scheme in accordance with the SEBI (Share Based
Employees Beneﬁts) Regulations, 2014 for grant of stock options to its eligible
employees of the Company and its Subsidiary/ies. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, inter alia,
administers and monitors the Employee Stock Option Scheme of the
Company.
The applicable disclosures under Regulation 14 of the SEBI (Share Based
Employees Beneﬁts) Regulations, 2014, relating to the Scheme are posted in
Investor Relations section on the Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.
During the year under review, 25,000 Stock Options were granted on August
9, 2018. These options when vested as per the terms and conditions of the
Scheme entitled the option holder to apply for and be allotted equal number of
equity shares of face value of Rs. 1/- each at an exercise price of Rs. 36.90 per
share respectively being the closing market price of the equity shares of the
Company on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited as on August 8,
2018. Since the options have been granted at the market price, the intrinsic
value at grant is Nil and hence there is no charge to the Proﬁt and Loss
account. These options will vest in a phased manner over a period of 3 years
beginning 2019, and may be exercised within a maximum of four years from
the date of vesting, subject to terms and conditions of the Scheme and the
grant letter. Your Directors believe this Scheme will help create long term
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value for shareholders and operate as long term incentive to attract and retain
senior managerial talent.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY/IES
As at March 31, 2019, your company had three wholly owned subsidiaries,
namely, Digital Ventures Private Limited; Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited;
and Liberium Global Resources Private Limited, one subsidiary MT Educare
Limited and seven step down subsidiaries.
In compliance with Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement
containing requisite details including ﬁnancial highlights of the operations of
all subsidiaries is annexed to this report.
In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard AS110 - Consolidated
Financial Statements read with Indian Accounting Standard AS 28 Accounting for Investments in Associates, and Indian Accounting Standard
111 - Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures, the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements are provided in and forms part of this
Annual Report as per Ind AS format.
In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited
ﬁnancial statements including the consolidated ﬁnancial statements and
related information of the Company and audited accounts of each of the
subsidiaries are available on the website of the Company www.zeelearn.com.
These documents will also be available for inspection during business hours
at the Registered Ofﬁce of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & POLICIES
Your Company is in compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements
mentioned in Listing Regulations. In terms of Schedule V of Listing
Regulations, a detailed report on Corporate Governance along with
Compliance Certiﬁcate issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Company is
attached and forms an integral part of this Annual Report. All Board members
and senior management personnel have afﬁrmed compliance with the Code
of Conduct for the year 2018-19. A declaration to this effect signed by the Chief
Executive Ofﬁcer of the company is contained in this Annual Report. The Chief
Executive Ofﬁcer and Chief Financial Ofﬁcer have certiﬁed to the Board with
regard to the ﬁnancial statements and other matters as required under
Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI LODR Regulations and the said certiﬁcate is
contained in this Annual Report. Management Discussion and Analysis
Report as per Listing Regulations are presented in separate sections forming
part of the Annual Report.
In compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of your Board had ﬁxed
various criteria for nominating a person on the Board which inter alia include
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desired size and composition of the Board, age limits, qualiﬁcation /
experience, areas of expertise and independence of individual. Your
Company has also adopted a Remuneration Policy, salient features whereof
is annexed to this report.

As a policy, all adults in the centre including teachers and support staff are
trained under I Care. This is further taken to parents and this year, Kidzee took
this initiative to the community at large by conducting events at RWAs and
Corporates.

In compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations, your Board has approved various Policies including Code of
Conduct for Directors & Senior Management, Material Subsidiary Policy,
Insider Trading Code, Document Preservation Policy, Material Event
Determination and Disclosure Policy, Fair Disclosure Policy, Whistle Blower
and Vigil Mechanism Policy, Related Party Transaction Policy and
Remuneration Policy. All these policies and codes have been uploaded on
Company’s corporate website www.zeelearn.com. Additionally, Directors
Familiarisation Programme and Terms and Conditions for appointment of
Independent Directors can be viewed on Company’s corporate website
www.zeelearn.com.

Every Kidzee preschool in the country aims to sensitise maximum adults in
their catchments about the incidence of Child Abuse thereby aiming to create
an abuse-free and nurturing environment for every child.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
In compliance with requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,
your Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
(CSR Committee). The CSR Committee comprises Dr. Manish Agarwal,
Independent Director as Chairman, Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non- Executive
Director and Dr. Sangeeta Pandit, Independent Director as Members.
The said Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating
and recommending to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the
implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the
amount to be spent on CSR activities.
CSR at Zee is all about creating sustainable programs that actively contribute
to and support the social and economic development of the society. In line with
this intent, your Company has adopted a uniﬁed approach towards CSR at
Essel Group level, wherein CSR contributions of eligible Essel group entities
are pooled in, to fund high cost long-term projects that help build Human
capital and create lasting impact on the society. The Report on CSR activities
is given at Annexed to the Directors’ Report.

I Care Seminars for creating awareness about prevention of child
abuse
Through the year, Kidzee continued its commitment of standing for ‘What’s
Right For Child’ through its Child Abuse Prevention initiative I Care. A module
designed to educate adults about child abuse, it teaches to recognise
incidence and prevent it further.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Your Board currently comprises of 5 Directors including 3 (three) Independent
Directors, 1 (one) Non-Executive Director and 1 (one) Executive Director.
Independent Directors provide their declarations both at the time of
appointment and annually conﬁrming that they meet the criteria of
independence as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations. During FY 2018-2019, your Board met 4 (four) times details of
which are available in Corporate Governance Report annexed to this report.
Mr. Ajey Kumar, Managing Director is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible he has offered himself for reappointment. Your Board recommends his re-appointment with all his earlier
terms and conditions of appointment remaining same. A resolution to the
effect is placed in the Notice for the ensuing Annual General Meeting for
consideration / approval of the members for your consideration and approval.
The Board at its meeting held on January 15, 2018 had appointed Ms. Nandita
Agarwal Parker as an Additional Director subject to the approval of the
members under the category of Non Executive Independent Director. Her
appointment seeking the approval of the members was passed by the Board
vide Postal Ballot Notice dated May 7, 2018 and by the shareholders by E-voting
/ Ballot process on July 5, 2018 for a term of 3 years w.e.f January 15, 2018.
The information as required to be disclosed under the Listing Regulations in
case of re-appointment of the director is provided in Report on Corporate
Governance annexed to this report and in the notice of the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.
The disclosure in pursuance of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI Listing Regulation pertaining to the remuneration, incentives etc. to the
Directors is given in the Corporate Governance Report.
Based on recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee,
the Board of Directors at the meeting held on October 28, 2015, had approved
appointment of Mr. Ajey Kumar, as an Executive Director for a period of 5
years which was approved by the members of the Company vide Postal Ballot
/ e-voting process on December 18, 2015. As per the terms of his earlier
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appointment he was eligible for grant of stock options from the Company as an
Executive Director or otherwise but without any remuneration as of then. In
line with his increased inputs and efforts that are required in the Company and
in order to remunerate him commensurate with his role, abilities and
responsibilities the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held August 9, 2018,
have approved the re-designation / appointment of Mr. Ajey Kumar from
Executive Director to Managing Director of the Company w.e.f October 1,
2018 with remuneration till the end of the tenure of his appointment viz.
October 27, 2020 which was approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting held on September 24, 2018.

of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and is eligible for re-appointment.
Your Company has received conﬁrmation from the Auditors to the effect that
their appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the limits speciﬁed under
the Companies Act, 2013 and the ﬁrm satisﬁes the criteria speciﬁed in Section
141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Audit &
Auditors) Rules, 2014. Your Board is of the opinion that continuation of M/s
MGB & Co. LLP, as Statutory Auditors during FY 2019-20 will be in the best
interests of the Company and therefore, members are requested to consider
their re-appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company from the
conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting till next Annual General
Meeting at remuneration be decided by the Board.

During the year under review Mr. Umesh Pradhan, Chief Financial Ofﬁcer and
Manager resigned from the post of the Manager w.e.f the close of business
hours of September 30, 2018. However, Mr. Pradhan shall continue as the
Chief Financial Ofﬁcer and Key Managerial Person of the Company.

COST AUDITOR

BOARD EVALUATION
In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of nonindependent directors, performance of the board as a whole and performance
of the Chairman was evaluated. Based on such report of the meeting of
Independent Directors and taking into account the views of directors the
Board had evaluated its performance on various parameters such as Board
composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, effectiveness of
ﬂow of information, contributions from each Directors, etc.

BOARD COMMITTEES
In compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations, your Board had constituted various Board Committees including
Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
Details of the constitution of these Committees, which are in accordance with
regulatory requirements, have been uploaded on the website of the Company
viz. www.zeelearn.com. Details of scope, constitution, terms of reference,
number of meetings held during the year under review along with attendance
of Committee Members therein form part of the Corporate Governance Report
annexed to this report.

ii.

Transactions with Related Parties :
None of the transactions with related parties fall under the scope of
Section 188(1) of the Act. Information on material transactions with
related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act, read with rule
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Form AOC-2 is
annexed to this report.

iii. Risk Management:
The Company’s approach to addressing business risks is comprehensive
and includes periodic review of such risks and a framework for
mitigating controls and reporting mechanism of such risks.

iv.

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, amended rules, 2014, the cost audit records
maintained by the Company in respect of its education services, other than
such similar services falling under philanthropy or as part of social spend
which do not form part of any business is required to be Audited.

The Company has in place a proper and adequate Internal Financial
Control System with reference to ﬁnancial statements. During the year,
such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the
design or operation was observed.

v.

Deposits:

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
During the year, Secretarial Audit was carried out by Mrs. Mita Sanghavi,
Practising Company Secretary in compliance with Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Financial Statement

92(3) of the Act read with Companies (Management & Administration)
Rules, 2014 is annexed to this report.

vii. Sexual Harassment:
The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace
and has adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of
sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. During the year under
review no complaints on sexual harassment was received.

viii. Regulatory Orders:

Internal Financial Controls:
Internal Financial Controls includes policies and procedures adopted by
the company for ensuring orderly and efﬁcient conduct of its business,
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely
preparation of reliable ﬁnancial information.

Your Directors had, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and on
ratiﬁcation of its Members appointed Mr. Vaibhav P. Joshi & Associates Cost
Accountants (Firm Registration No 101329) for conduct of audit of the cost
records of the Company for the ﬁnancial year 2019-20.

Management Report

Your Company has not accepted any public deposits under Chapter V of
the Companies Act, 2013.

vi. Extract of Annual Return:

No signiﬁcant or material orders were passed by the regulators or courts
or tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future.

ix. Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required
in respect of the following items as there were no transactions
on these items during the year under review:
a) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or
otherwise.
b) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the
Company under any scheme save and except ESOP referred to in
this Report.
c) Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the
Company received any remuneration or commission from any of its
subsidiaries.

The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as required under Section

The reports of Statutory Auditor, Cost Auditor and Secretarial Auditor do not
contain any qualiﬁcation, reservation or adverse remarks. The reports of
Statutory Auditor, Secretarial Auditor forming part of this Annual report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

During the year the Statutory Auditors had not reported any matter under
Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed
under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Act.

Your Company is engaged in the business of delivering learning solutions and training to entire spectrum of the society from toddler to teens through its multiple
products. Since this business do not involve any manufacturing activity, most of the information required to be provided under Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable. However, the information as applicable are given
hereunder:

DISCLOSURES
AUDITORS
i.

STATUTORY AUDITOR
The Statutory Auditors M/s. MGB & Co. LLP., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai
having ﬁrm registration No. 101169W/W-100035 holds ofﬁce until the conclusion
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Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments :
Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments made by the Company
required under section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 are
contained in Note No. 37 to the Standalone Financial Statements.
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(i)

Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy
Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of
energy

(iii)

Capital investment on energy conservation equipments

Your Company being a service provider requires minimal energy consumption
and every endeavor has been made to ensure optimal use of energy and
avoid wastages and conserve energy as far as possible.

(` in lakhs)
Name of the Subsidiary

Digital Ventures
Private Limited

Share capital

Technology Absorption:
(i)

The efforts made towards technology absorption

(ii)

The beneﬁts derived like product improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import substitution

(iii)

c. Whether the technology been fully absorbed

(iv)

7,222.81

31,878.71

-2.11

456.66

1,478.09

0

0

0

18,103.75

Total assets

69,092.77

0.49

1,831.60

43,023.13

Total Liabilities

36,713.06

2.50

1,374.83

23,441.31

0

0

211.44

0.34

3,380.61

0

8,898.80

18,838.67

Proﬁt before taxation

189.64

-1.11

413.16

2,302.92

Provision for taxation

0

0

92.23

523.62

Proﬁt after taxation

189.64

-1.11

320.93

1,779.30

Proposed Dividend

0

0

0

0

100%

100%

100%

59.12%

Turnover

d. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken
place, and the reasons thereof

MT Educare Limited
(Consolidated) #

0.10

Investments

In its endeavor to deliver the best to its users and business partners, your
Company has been constantly active in harnessing and tapping the latest and
best technology in the industry.

Liberium Global
Resources Private

0.10

Non-Controlling Interest

a. The details of technology imported

Academia Ediﬁcio
Private Limited

501.00

Reserves & surplus

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three
years reckoned from the beginning of the ﬁnancial year)

b. The year of import

Financial Statement

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/JOINT
VENTURES AS PER THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Conservation of Energy:

(ii)

Management Report
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% of shareholding

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development

Notes:

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:
During the year under review, there were no Foreign Exchange Earnings and
the particulars of Foreign Exchange out go is given in Note no. 46(2) of the
Notes to Accounts forming part of the Annual Accounts.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Requisite disclosures in terms of the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 along with statement showing names and other
particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits
prescribed under the said rules is annexed to this report.

Bankers, Financial Institutions, Investors, Service Providers as well as
regulatory and government authorities.

1. The Company does not have any Associate/Joint Venture.
# To the extent Consolidated w.e.f. May 25, 2018

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

For and on behalf of the Board

Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion and
Analysis describing the company’s objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations may constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning
of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from
those either expressed or implied. Important factors that could affect the
company’s operations include signiﬁcant political and / or economic
environment in India, tax laws, litigations, interest and other costs.

Himanshu Mody
Chairman
DIN: 00686830

Sangeeta Pandit
Director
DIN: 06748608

Place : Mumbai
Date : 17 May , 2019

For and on behalf of the Board
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Your Board takes this opportunity to place on record their appreciation for the
dedication and commitment of employees shown at all levels, Franchisees
and Business Partners that have contributed to the success of your Company.
Your Directors also express their gratitude for the valuable support and cooperation received from the Central and State Governments including
Ministry of Human Resource Development and other stakeholders including
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19
1

A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of
projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the
web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

CSR activities at Zee Learn are carried out as per the CSR Policy with primary
focus on Education, Health Care, Women Empowerment and Sports.

2

The Composition of the CSR Committee.

1.

Dr. Manish Agarwal, Independent Director (Chairman)

2.

Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non Executive Director

3.

Dr. Sangeeta Pandit, Independent Director

3

Average net proﬁt of the company for last three ﬁnancial years
(Amount in Crores)

` 27.68 Crores

4

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item
3 above) (Amount in lakhs)

` 55.36 Lakhs

5

Details of CSR spent during the ﬁnancial year:
(1) Total amount to be spent for the Financial Year

` 55.36 Lakhs

(2) Amount unspent , if any;

` 55.36 Lakhs

(3) Manner in which the amount spent during the ﬁnancial year :
6.

Reason for not spending entire CSR amount.

Due to non-availabilitity of suitable CSR proposals during the year in line with
the CSR policy of the company, the amount of CSR unspent shall be carried
forward to the next ﬁnancial year and shall be spent for funding suitable CSR
projects in future.

The CSR committee certiﬁes that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and policy of the company.

Financial Statement

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES
{Pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}
A. Remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) along with particulars of increase in remuneration during the financial year, ratio of
remuneration of Directors to the median remuneration of employees and comparison of remuneration of each KMP against Company’s standalone
performance:

Name of Director/ Key
Managerial Personnel

Non- Executive Directors
Himanshu Mody
Dr. Manish Agarwal$
Dr. Sangeeta Pandit$
Nandita Agarwal Parker$ ^^

Please refer note 6 below

Management Report

Remuneration Total
(`. In Lakhs)

% increase in
Remuneration

Ratio of Director’s
remuneration to
median remuneration

Comparison of remuneration
of each KMP against
Company’s Performance
% of Turnover

% of Net Profit
Before Tax

NIL
4.5
4.5
4.5

NIL
8%
8%
NA

NIL
0.7 : 1
0.7 : 1
0.7 : 1

NIL
NA
NA
NA

NA
NA
NA
NA

Managing Director
Ajey Kumar*

51.26

- 84.45%

NA#

0.24%

0.59%

Key Managerial Personnel
Debshankar Mukhopadhyay
Umesh Pradhan
Bhautesh Shah**

73.18
62.59
17.66

12.02%
13.86%
NA

NA
NA
NA

0.35%
0.30%
0.08%

0.84%
0.72%
0.20%

$ Independent Directors remuneration represents Commission and excludes Sitting Fees
^^ Nandita Agarwal Parker was an appointed w.e.f January 15, 2018. The % increase in remuneration of 2018-2019 is calculated on proportionate earning of 2017
- 2018 and hence not comparable.
* Mr. Ajey Kumar was re-designated / appointed as Managing Director from Executive Director w.e.f. October 1, 2018. In FY18 and first half of FY19, no salary was
paid to him as Executive Director. In FY19 second half, salary has been paid to him as Managing Director. The Managing Director is currently working in the
capacity of Professional Director and hence is not governed, to that extent, by the applicable limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder, as amended from time to time. The remuneration also constitutes the value of perquisite calculated upon exercise of ESOPs during the year, if any.
# This has not been calculated as he has worked only for part of the year.
**Mr. Bhautesh Shah joined the company w.e.f. August 16, 2017. The %increase in remuneration of 2018-2019 is calculated on proportionate earnings of 2017 2018 and hence not comparable.
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Sl. No

Requirements

3.

Disclosure

The Percentage increase in median remuneration of
employees in Financial Year

9.6 %*

2

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the
Company

301 (as on March 31,2019)

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries
of employees other than the managerial personnel in the
last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration

The average annual increase in the salaries of employees other than
managerial personnel during the year was 10.31% while the average
increase in managerial remuneration during the year was not
comparable due to proportionate earnings.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the Company.

The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration
policy of the Company.

Designation

Qualification

Total Exp

Remunerations

Last Employment Name

49

Chief Executive Officer

B.Com, PGDBM

22

7,318,094

Manipal Global
Education Service

2

Umesh A Pradhan

50

Chief Financial Officer

B.Com, ICWA

29

6,258,989

Balaji Telefilms

3

Vikash Kumar Kar

40

Chief Human
Resources Officer

B.Sc, MBA

18

4,638,280

MSCI Services Private
Limited

4

Shyam Sunder Gudimella

40

Head Content and
Curriculum

B.Sc, PGDM

17

2,750,210

Reliance Jio Infocomm Ltd

5

Vivek Bhanot

45

Business Head - SAT

B.Sc, MBA

23

2,484,708

Millennium Education
Management Pvt. Ltd.

6

Brijesh Jadia

46

Head - Supply Chain
& Commercial

B.E, MBA

22

3,256,873

Ingersoll Rand
International (India) Ltd

7

Santosh Gupta

42

Head Information
Technology

M.Com, MCA

21

2,656,507

Capgemini India Pvt Ltd

8

Avinash Kundalia

46

National Franchise
Development Manager
- Kidzee

B.Com, MBA

25

2,601,594

ICICI Bank Ltd

Particulars of Top ten employees and Employees whose remuneration exceeded Rs. 1.02 crore per annum or Rs. 8.5 lakhs per month during FY
2018-19

9

Sumit Mishra $

46

Business Head - MLZS

B.Tech, PGDM

20

2,186,368

Millennium Education
Management Pvt. Ltd.

Employed throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 1.02 crore or more per annum.
There are no employees who are employed throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating to Rs. 1.02 crore or more per annum.

10

Sandeep Shetty ~

46

Head - Vocational
Business

B.Sc

24

284,879

* Perquisite values on ESOP exercised by employees have not been included for this calculation.

2.

Age

Debshankar
Mukhopadhyay

4

1.

Employee Name

1

3

B.

Financial Statement

Details of Remuneration# of Top ten Employees for the year 2018-19

Sr. No
1

Management Report

APG Learning

Employed part of the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 8.5 lakhs or more per month
#

The sum includes the value of perquisite calculated upon exercise of ESOPs during the year, if any.

Sr. No

Employee Name

Age

Designation

Qualification

Total Exp

Remuneration

Last Employment

*

Mr. Ajey Kumar was re-designated / appointed as Managing Director from Executive Director w.e.f October 1, 2018 and hence the above salary is for the period
from October 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019.

01

Ajey Kumar *

47

Managing Director

B.E, M.B.A

24

51,26,250

Essel Corporate
Resources LLP

$

Sumit Mishra (Business Head - MLZS) joined the Company w.e.f. July 23, 2018.

~

Sandeep Shetty (Head - Vocational Business) joined the Company w.e.f. February 18, 2019.
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PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at
arm’s length basis:

Form AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

The Company has not entered into any material contracts or
arrangements or transactions with its related parties which is at arm’s
length basis during ﬁnancial year 2018-19.

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by
the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under
third proviso thereto:
1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at
arm’s length basis:
The Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement or
transaction with its related parties which is not at arm’s length during
ﬁnancial year 2018-19.

EXTRACT OF REMUNERATION POLICY
The Board has approved a policy for Remuneration for Director(s) and
Employees of the Company which inter alia includes:

.i)

Objective:
This Policy aims to attract, retain and motivate the Members of the Board
of Directors, Senior Managers viz: CEO, and other employees who are
at one level below the Key Managerial Personnel or Functional Heads of
the Company, by remunerating them reasonably and sufﬁciently so as to
run the operations of the Company successfully. The Policy reﬂects the
Company's objectives for good corporate governance as well as
sustained long-term value creation for shareholders.

ii)

Guiding Principles:
The guiding principle of this Policy is that the remuneration and other
terms of engagement / employment shall be competitive enough to
ensure that the Company is in a position to attract, retain and motivate
right kind of human resource(s) for achieving the desired growth set by
the Company’s management year on year thereby creating long-term
value for all stakeholders of the Company.
While designing the remuneration package, efforts are to be made to
ensure that the remuneration matches the level in comparable
companies, whilst also taking into consideration requisite
competencies, qualiﬁcations, industry experience, efforts required and
the scope of the work.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee while considering a
remuneration package shall ensure balance between ﬁxed and
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For and on behalf of the Board
Himanshu Mody

Sangeeta Pandit

Chairman
DIN: 00686830

Director
DIN: 06748608

The Non-Executive Directors shall be eligible for ESOPs as per the
ESOP Scheme of the Company as approved by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee from time to time.

Executive Members of the Board including the Managing Director, if any,
shall be employed under service contracts for a period not exceeding 5
(ﬁve) years at a time, on the terms & other conditions and remuneration
as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Members of the Company at the General Meeting(s).
Executive members of the Board shall not be eligible to receive any
sitting fees for attending any meeting of the Board of Directors or
Committee thereof.

Independent Directors of the Company shall not be entitled to any stock
option issued or proposed to be issued by the Company.

v)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee believes that a
successful remuneration policy must ensure that a signiﬁcant part of the
remuneration package should be linked to the achievement of corporate
performance targets and a strong alignment of interest with
stakeholders.

iii) Remuneration of Executive Members on the Board :
Any Executive Member(s) on the Board shall be paid remuneration
which shall comprise of ﬁxed monthly basic salary, perquisites such as
House Rent Allowance or furnished / unfurnished housing accommodation in lieu thereof, car with or without chauffeur, telephone for ofﬁce
as well as personal use, reimbursement of medical expenses, leave
travel allowance, club membership, stock options, statutory and nonstatutory allowances such as education allowances, personal
allowances, travel allowances, subscription allowances etc. as may be
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee /
Board of Directors and approved by the Members of the Company from
time to time.

The Non –Executive members / Independent Directors of the Board shall
be eligible for sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and/ or
Committees thereof, excluding Stakeholders Relationship Committee
and Finance Sub- committee and reimbursement of expenses for
participation in the Board and other meetings.
The remuneration payable to the Non-Executive member(s) /
Independent Directors of the Board shall be limited to a ﬁxed amount
of Commission each year, as may be determined and approved by the
Board based on the time devoted, contribution made in the progress
and guiding the Company for future growth. Aggregate of such sum
shall not exceed 1% of net proﬁt of the year on a stand-alone basis or
such sum as may be prescribed by the Government from time to time,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and relevant rules framed thereunder. The performance of the
non-executive members of the Board shall be reviewed by the Board
on an annual basis.

Remuneration of Executive Management comprising of Senior
Management & Key Managerial Personnel:
The Company believes that a combination of ﬁxed and performancelinked pay to the Executive Management shall ensure that the company
can attract and retain key employees. The performance-linked incentive
based on Company performance and performance of the employee
concerned each year shall be considered and approved by the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, annually inter-alia for the
Executive Management. Additionally, subject to appropriate approval of
shareholders, the Company may consider issuance of stock options to
Senior Management.

The remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors will be decided by
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board
from time to time.

incentive pay reﬂecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

Financial Statement

amended from time to time, however such applicable limits will not apply
to Executive Directors working in the capacity of Professional Directors,
to that extent.

iv) Remuneration of Non-Executive Members of the Board:

Place : Mumbai
Date : 17 May, 2019

Management Report

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee will from time to time
consider proposals concerning the appointment and remuneration of the
Key Managerial Personnel and ensure that the proposed remuneration
is in line with industry standards in comparable companies. Such
proposals then shall be submitted to the Board for approval. The
remuneration of the members of the Executive Management may
consist of the following components:
•

Basic salary and Allowances

•

Performance linked incentive / bonus

•

Stock options

•

Perquisites as per rules of the Company including Company car,
telephone etc.

Executive Management shall not be eligible to receive any remuneration,
including sitting fees, for directorships held in any of the Essel Group of
Companies, whether listed or otherwise.

However, the overall remuneration of executive member(s) on the
Board, where there are more than one, shall not exceed 10% of the net
proﬁt calculated in the manner provided under the Companies Act, 2013
and Rules framed thereunder, and shall not exceed 5% in case there is
only one executive member on the Board. In the event of loss or
inadequacy of proﬁt in any ﬁnancial year during the currency of tenure of
services of an executive member of the Board, the payment of
remuneration shall be governed by the applicable limits prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as
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C

Form MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

1

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
2
REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS
I)

CIN

L80301MH2010PLC198405

ii)

Registration Date

04.01.2010

iii)

Name of the Company

Zee Learn Limited

iv)

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Company Limited by Share / Indian Non – Government Company

v)

Address of the Registered office and contact details

Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018
Tel No: +91-22-40343900 / Fax No: +91-22-26743422

vi)

Whether Listed

Yes

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent (Refer Note below)

3

4

M/s Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai- 400083
Tel No: +91-22-49186000 Fax No: +91-22-49186060
Email : rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

5

6
II.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl No Name and Description of main products/ services
1.
III.

NIC Code of the main products/ services

Education support services

% to total turnover of the company

99929200

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl No
A

B

Name, Address & CIN of the Company

Chitale’s Personalised Learning Private Limited
1/14, Shefalee Co-op Society, Phiroze Shah Road, Santacruz (West), Mumbai 400054.
CIN: U80301MH2009PTC197141
Sri Gayatri Educational Services Private Limited
220, 2nd Floor, “FLYING COLORS”, Pandit Din Dayal Upadhyay Marg,
L.B.S. Cross Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400080.
CIN: U80904MH2014PTC255536
Robomate Edu Tech Private Limited
220, 2nd Floor, “FLYING COLORS”, Pandit Din Dayal Upadhyay Marg,
L.B.S. Cross Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400080.
CIN: U74999MH2016PTC286570
Letspaper Technologies Private Limited
220, 2nd Floor, “FLYING COLORS”, Pandit Din Dayal Upadhyay Marg,
L.B.S. Cross Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400080.
CIN: U74999MH2016PTC289017
Labh Ventures India Private Limited w.e.f September 1, 2018
Cedar tower No.4/3102, M. G. Link Road, Nahur, Bhandup (West), Mumbai – 400 078
CIN: U74999MH2015PTC262045

Associate Company
NIL

IV.

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN ( EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)

I)

Category wise Shareholding

-

2(87)

-

2(87)

-

2(87)

-

2(87)

-

2(87)

-

2(87)

-

2(87)

100%

3 Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
18th Floor, Marathon Futurex, N. M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400013.CIN
U74999MH2017PTC293021

100%

2(87)

59.12%

2(87)

2(87)

Annual Report 2018-19

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

Category of
Shareholders

Demat

2(87)

2 Academia Edificio Private Limited
Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018 CIN
U45400MH2016PTC272078

MT Educare Limited
220, 2nd Floor, “FLYING COLORS”, Pandit Din Dayal Upadhyay Marg,
L.B.S. Cross Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400080
CIN: L80903MH2006PLC163888

Lakshya Forrum For Competitions Private Limited (Formerly known as Lakshya Educare Pvt. Ltd.)
220, 2nd Floor, “FLYING COLORS”, Pandit Din Dayal Upadhyay Marg,
L.B.S. Cross Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400080.
CIN: U80301MH2012PTC238011

D

Sl.
No.

100%

MT Education Services Private Limited.
220, 2nd Floor, “FLYING COLORS”, Pandit Din Dayal Upadhyay Marg,
L.B.S. Cross Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400080
CIN U80301MH2010PTC199012

Applicable Section

Subsidiary Companies

4

86

% of shares held

Holding Company
NIL

1 Digital Ventures Private Limited
Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018 CIN
U72900MH2006PTC165215

7

100%

Financial Statement

Stepdown Subsidiary Companies

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2019

I.

Management Report

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

%
Change*

% of Total
Shares

A.

Promoters

(1)

Indian
Individual/HUF
Bodies Corp.

0
18,17,45,073

0
0

0
18,17,45,073

0
55.76

0
18,06,45,073

0
0
0 18,06,45,073

0
55.39

0.00
-0.37

Sub-total (A) (1):-

18,17,45,073

0

18,17,45,073

55.76

18,06,45,073

0 18,06,45,073

55.39

-0.37
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(2) Foreign

(2). Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
Indian
b) Individuals
Individual shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto Rs. 1 Lac
Individual Shareholders
holding nominal share capital
in excess of
Rs. 1 lac
c) NBFCs registered with RBI
d) Others
Overseas
Corporate Bodies
Foreign Nationals
Trusts
Non Resident
Indians
HUF
Other Directors
Clearing Member
Sub-total (B)(2):Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)
C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs
Grand Total (A+B+C)

Financial Statement

II) Shareholding of Promoters

Bodies Corp.
57,97,315
Sub-total (A) (2):57,97,315
Total shareholding of Promoter
(A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)
18,75,42,388
B. Public Shareholding
(1). Institutions
Mutual Funds
Banks / FI
Insurance
Companies
FIIs
Foreign Portfolio Investors
Sub-total (B)(1):-

Management Report
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0
1,45,186

0
0

57,97,315
57,97,315

1.79
1.79

57,97,315
57,97,315

0
0

57,97,315
57,97,315

1.79 0.00
1.79 0.00

0

18,75,42,388

57.55

18,64,42,388

0

18,64,42,388

57.18 -0.37

274
0

274
1,45,186

0.00
0.04

0
4,67,023

274
0

274
4,67,023

0.00 0.00
0.14 0.10

Sl.No.

1
2

7,89,30,567
7,90,75,753

1,46,68,622

2,85,41,380

3,013
3,287

0

97,893

7,89,33,580
7,90,79,040

1,46,68,622

2,86,39,273

24.23
24.27

4.50

8.79

7,93,75,862
7,98,42,885

3,013
3,287

1,63,27,740

0

2,73,49,433

90,175

7,93,78,875
7,98,46,172

1,63,27,740

2,74,39,608

24.34 0.12
24.49 0.22

5.01 0.51

Shareholding at the end of the year
i.e., March 31, 2019

Shareholding at the beginning of the
year i.e., April 1, 2018
% of shares
pledged/
No. of
%
encumbered
Shares
to Capital

Name of Promoter

No. of
Shares

%
Change*

% of shares
pledged/
encumbered
to Capital

%

Jayneer Infrapower & Multiventures
Private Limited

7,79,75,375

23.93

20.07

7,68,75,375

23.58

18.77

-0.35

Asian Satellite Broadcast
Private Limited

6,30,52,512

19.35

17.58

6,30,52,512

19.34

16.61

-0.01

3

Jayneer Enterprises LLP

1,50,00,000

4.60

4.60

1,50,00,000

4.60

4.59

0.00

4

Essel Media Ventures Private Limited

1,28,61,036

3.95

3.95

1,28,61,036

3.94

3.94

-0.01

5

Sprit Infrapower & Multiventures
Private Limited

1,11,03,864

3.41

1.54

1,11,03,864

3.40

3.40

-0.01

6

Essel Infraprojects Limited

17,52,286

0.54

0.00

17,52,286

0.54

0.00

0.00

7

Essel Holdings Limited

57,97,315

1.77

0.00

57,97,315

1.78

0.00

0.01

18,75,42,388

57.55

47.74

18,64,42,388

57.18

47.31

-0.37

Total

8.42 -0.37
*

86,30,568

0

86,30,568

2.64

83,48,951

0

83,48,951

2.56 -0.09

0

0

0

0

1,55,555

0

1,55,555

0.05 0.05

During the year there is a change in Promoters holding due to various factors 1) Sale of 11,00,000 Equity shares by Promoter i.e Jayneer Infrapower and
Multiventures Pvt. Ltd,.
2) Change in total paid up Capital of the Company, post ESOP Allotment.
III)

Change In Promoters’ Shareholding
Particulars

123
21,498
1,05,088

0
274
0

123
21,772
1,05,088

0.00
0.00
0.03

123
20,727
88

0
274
0

123
21,001
88

30,46,053
15,47,136
15,60,943
9,47,905
59,069,316

1,06,561
0
0
0
2,04,728

31,52,614
15,47,136
15,60,943
9,47,905
5,92,74,044

0.97
0.48
0.48
0.29
18.18

38,51,456
13,96,932
17,30,943
4,18,874
5,96,00,822

98,894
0
0
0
1,89,343

39,50,350
13,96,932
17,30,943
4,18,874
5,97,90,165

0.00 0.00
0.01 0.00
0.00 0.03
1.21
0.43
0.53
0.13
18.34

0.24
-0.05
0.05
-0.16
0.15

13,81,45,069

2,08,015

13,83,53,084

42.45

13,94,43,707

1,92,630

13,96,36,337

42.82 0.37

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- 0.00

32,56,87,457

2,08,015

32,58,95,472

100.00

32,58,86,095

1,92,630

32,60,78,725 100.00

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
No. of Shares

At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase/ Decrease in promoters share
holding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/ decrease
At the end of the year

18,75,42,388

Cumulative shareholding
during the year

% of total shares of
the Company
57.55%

No. of Shares

% of total shares of
*
the Company

-

-

-11,00,000

-0.37

18,64,42,388

57.18

* During the year there is a change in Promoters holding due to various factors 1) Sale of 11,00,000 Equity shares by Promoter i.e Jayneer Infrapower and
Multiventures Pvt. Ltd,.
2 Change in total paid up Capital of the Company, post ESOP Allotment.

-

Note:
* The change in percentage of share capital is due to change in total paid up capital of the company, post ESOP allotment.
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IV)

Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

Moon Capital Trading Pte Ltd.
Polus Global Fund
Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore) Pte
Copthall Mauritius Investment Limited
Ganjam Trading Company Pvt. Ltd.
UBS Principal Capital Asia Ltd.
Veena Investments Pvt. Ltd.
Naravi Infra and Utilities Private Limited
Hornbill Orchid India Fund
Vittoria Fund-Sr, L.P.-Asia Portfolio
Tarra Fund

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
@
@
$
$

2,09,55,327
2,38,25,743
1,24,85,786
82,10,585
4949,506
46,34,088
34,49,013
12,00,000
0
32,21,500
21,72,000

6.43
7.31
3.83
2.52
1.52
1.42
1.06
0.37
0.00
0.98
0.67

Particulars

% Equity
Share Capital

No. of Shares

2,09,55,327
2,08,56,608
1,13,18,127
81,05,371
49,49,506
46,34,088
34,49,013
32,76,655
31,60,000
31,20,619
24,62,530

(i) Principal Amount
(ii) Interest due but not paid
(iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)

• Addition including IND AS adjustments
•Reduction including IND AS adjustments
Net Change

Cumulative shareholding
during the year

No. of
Shares

% of share
Capital

Date

14,30,943

0.43

28-Jun-18

1,70,000

Mr. Himanshu Mody
Non-Executive Director

80,500

0.02

-

Dr. Manish Agarwal
Independent Director

49,500

0.01

-

Dr. Sangeeta Pandit
Independent Director

-

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker
Independent Director

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay
Chief Executive Officer

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mr. Umesh PradhanChief Financial Officer

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mr. Bhautesh Shah
Company Secretary

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mr. Ajey Kumar
Managing Director

90

No. of
Shares

% of share
Capital

ESOP Exercised

16,00,943

0.49

-

-

80,500

0.02

-

-

49,500

0.01

Reason

(i) Principal Amount
(ii) Interest due but not paid
(iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
VI.

-

-

-

-

9,981.21
27.94
2,016.89
12,026.04

970.91
328.70
1,299.61

5,509.68
5,509.68

16,461.80
27.94
2,345.59
18,835.33

5,436.53
(827.34)
4,609.18

5,886.23
(5,700.00)
186.23

3,630.48
3,630.48

14,953.24.06
(6,527.34)
8,425.90

13,569.91
25.31
3,040.01
16,635.23

970.91
514.94
1,485.85

9,140.16
9,140.16

23,680.98
25.31
3,554.95
27,261.23

-

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time Directors and/ or Manager

(`. in lakhs)

Particulars or Remuneration of Mr. Ajey Kumar @
Gross Salary (As per Income Tax Act)

47.68
0.17

Profits in lieu of salary

-

Total Stock Options Granted during the year

-

Stock Options Exercised during FY

1,70,000

Sweat Equity

-

Commission as % of Profit

-

Others (contribution to Provident Fund
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Companies Act,

-

Total
Indebtedness

Deposits

Indebtedness at the end of FY i.e., March 31, 2019

Perquisites

No. of
Shares

Unsecured
Loans

Change in Indebtness during the Financial Year

V)
Change in Shareholding of Directors & KMP
Details of changes in the shareholding of Directors of the Company who held/ hold Equity Shares of the Company are as mentioned herein. None of the other
Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company held any Equity Shares of the Company either at the beginning of the year i.e. April 1, 2018 or at the end of the
year i.e. March 31, 2019 or dealt in the Equity Shares of the Company during financial year ended March 31, 2019:
Changes

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of FY i.e., April 01, 2018

6.43
6.40
3.47
2.49
1.52
1.42
1.06
1.00
0.97
0.96
0.76

Notes:
1.
The shares of the Company are substantially held in dematerialised form and are traded on a daily basis and hence date wise increase/decrease in
shareholding is not indicated.
$ denotes common top 10 shareholders as on April 1, 2018 and March 31, 2019
@ denotes common top 10 shareholders only as on March 31, 2019
NA denotes that the shareholder was not amongst top ten shareholders during relevant date

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year i.e. April 1, 2018

(`. in lakhs)

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Shareholding at the end
of the year (March 31, 2019)

Name of Shareholder
No. of Shares

Financial Statement

INDEBTEDNESS

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year (April 1, 2018)
% Equity
Share Capital

Management Report

3.41
51.26
Within the ceiling of the Companies Act, 2013

-

Annual Report 2018-19

@ Mr. Ajey Kumar, Executive Director was re-designated / appointed as the Managing Director of the Company w.e.f October 1,
2018, hence the above Gross salary is for the period from October 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019. The Managing Director is currently
working in the capacity of Professional Director and hence is not governed, to that extent, by the applicable limits prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time. The remuneration also constitutes the value
of perquisite calculated upon exercise of ESOPs during the year, if any.
Note: Mr.Umesh Pradhan was appointed as Manager of the Company for a period of three years w.e.f. April 1, 2016, without being
paid any remuneration as Manager. However, he draws remuneration as Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He resigned as the
Manager of the Company w.e.f the close of business hours of September 30, 2018.
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B.

Remuneration to other Directors

(`. in lakhs)
Commission

Others

Total

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial Year ended March 31, 2019

Dr. Manish Agarwal

2.40

4.50

-

6.90

Dr. Sangeeta Pandit

2.40

4.50

-

6.90

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Nandita Agarwal Parker

0.40

4.50

-

4.90

Total

5.20

13.50

-

18.70

Independent Directors

Overall Ceiling as per Act

1% of Net Profits as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Manager/ WTD

(`. in lakhs)
Key Managerial Personnel
Bhautesh Shah
Company Secretary

Debshankar
Mukhopadhyay
CEO

Umesh Pradhan
CFO

Gross Salary (As per Income Tax Act)

70,56,398

60,17,753

16,86,943

1,47,61,094

Salary

70,56,398

60,17,753

16,86,943

1,47,61,094

Perquisites

-

-

-

-

Profits in lieu of salary

-

-

-

-

Total Stock Options Granted

-

-

-

-

Stock Options Exercised during FY

-

-

-

-

Sweat Equity

-

-

-

-

Commission

-

-

-

-

2,61,696

2,41,236

79,236

5,82,168

73,18,094

62,58,989

17,66,179

1,53,43,262

Particulars of Remuneration

Others (Contribution to Provident Fund)
Total

Total

VI. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: None
For and on behalf of the Board
Himanshu Mody
Chairman
DIN: 00686830

Sangeeta Pandit
Director
DIN: 06748608

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019
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FORM NO MR-3

Sitting Fees

Name of Directors

A.

Management Report

To,
The Members,
Zee Learn Limited
CIN No-L80301MH2010PLC198405
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Zee Learn Limited
(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby
report that in my opinion, the company has, during the period covered by our
audit, that is to say, from April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 (hereinafter referred
to as “Audit Period”), complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliancemechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2019 according to the provisions of:
.i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules
made thereunder;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Amendment) Act, 2013 (‘SEBI Act’):a.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition
of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’);

d.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations,
2013 (These regulations are not applicable to the company as the
Company has not issued such preference shares)

Annual Report 2018-19

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014;
vi. Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company
belongs, as identified and compliance whereof as confirmed by the
management, that is to say:
a. Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
b. Employee State Insurance Act, 1948
c. Employees Liability Act, 1938
d. Employees Remuneration Act, 1938
e. Maternity Benefits Act, 1961
f. Minimum Wages Act, 1948
g. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
h. Payment of Gratuity Act 1972
i. Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and other applicable Laws
j. The Bombay Shop Establishments Act, 1948
k. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013
We have relied on the representation made by the Company, its officers and
Reports of the Statutory Auditor for systems and mechanism framed by the
Company for compliances under other Acts, Laws and Regulations
applicable to the Company as listed in point vi
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial
Standards 1 & 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
During the Audit period under review, based on the said verifications and as
per representations and clarifications provided by the management, I confirm
that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned hereinabove. I further
report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and
Indirect Tax laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since
the same has been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and other
designated professionals
Management Responsibility:
.i. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these secretarial records based on our audit;
ii. We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the
contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
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that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion;
iii. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and Books of Accounts of the Company or verified compliance of
laws other than those mentioned above;
iv. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis;
v. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
I further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
The changes in composition of Board of Directors are mentioned hereinunder:
During the Audit period:
• Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker who was appointed as an Additional Director
on January 15, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the Company was
appointed as an Independent Director of the company vide E-voting /
Postal Ballot Notice dated May 7, 2018 approved by the members by Evoting / Postal Ballot on July 5, 2018.
• Mr. Ajey Kumar was re-designated from Executive Director to Managing
Director of the company w.e.f. 1.10.2018.
• Mr. Umesh Pradhan (Chief Financial Officer [CFO] and Manager) resigned
from the Post of Manager w.e.f. the close of business hours of September
30, 2018. Accordingly, he continues to be the CFO and Key Managerial
Person of the Company.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance, except in case of one meeting, which was called at shorter notice in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and Secretarial Standard,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting. Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented
by the management and recorded in the minutes, were generally unanimous
I further report that
there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
I further report that during the

44.53% stake in MT Educare Ltd. The subscription to the Preferential
allotment triggered an open offer under Regulation 3, 4 and other applicable
provisions of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011 for the acquisition of 26% from the shareholders of MT
Educare Limited for which the Company appointed M/s Axis Capital Limited,
Merchant Banker as Manager to the Offer for the open offer process.
Accordingly, the Company had acquired 1,07,36,973 Equity shares of ` 10/each from the shareholders of MT Educare Limited at an open offer price of
`.72.76/-. The total shareholding of the Company as on March 31, 2019
aggregates to 4,27,01,173 Equity shares of `.10/- each constituting 59.12%
of the paid up share capital of the Company. Thus, as on March 31. 2019 MT
Educare Limited is a subsidiary of the Company.
b) Declaration of Dividend by the Company
The Company has declared dividend of ` 0.10 per Equity share for the
financial year ended March 31, 2018 at the Annual General Meeting of the
company held on 24th September, 2018.
c) Secretarial Audit of Material Subsidiary
During the Audit period since one of the Subsidiary company of the Company
namely Digital ventures Private Limited falls under the definition of Material
Subsidiary whereby the provision of Secretarial Audit of such material
company as per Reg 24A of SEBI LODR are now applicable, the Company
has complied with the requirements of these Listing Regulation and
conducted Secretarial Audit for the period April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 for
it’s material subsidiary. Further, the Company has also complied with the
requirement for appointment of a Director on the Board of the Material
subsidiary mentioned in SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015. Dr. Sangeeta
Pandit, who serves as the Independent Director of the company has been
appointed as an Independent Director of material subsidiary, Digital
Ventures Private Limited

Management Report
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ANNEXURE A
CIN No-L80301MH2010PLC198405

To,
The Members,
Zee Learn Limited,
135, Continental Building
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai - 400 018
My Secretarial Audit Report is to be read along with this letter
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial
records based on our audit.
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination
was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the company.

d) Approval of shareholders for adoption of new set of Articles of
Association by the Company and entering into related party transactions
It was further noted that the company has received the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting dated 24.09.2018 for Adoption
of new set of Articles and for entering into related party transaction with
Taleem Research which exceeded the threshold limits as per Regulation 23
of the Listing Regulation

MITA SANGHAVI
FCS No.7205
CP No. 6364
Date: 17th May, 2019
Place: Mumbai

I further report that as confirmed by the Legal Department and the
Management of the Company, the Company is under no obligation to comply
with the provisions of Right to Education Act 2005 and the said provisions are
required to be complied by franchisees as per the franchise agreement

Audit Period, the Company had the following specific events
(a) Acquisition of additional shares of MT Educare Ltd
The Board, at its meeting held on February 14, 2018 had accorded its
approval to subscribe for 3,19,64,200 Equity Shares as preferential allotment
in MT Educare Ltd. for an aggregate amount of `. 200 crores (`.
200,00,00,000) approx. Post preferential allotment, the Company owned a

94

MITA SANGHAVI
Practising Company Secretary
FCS No.7205
CP No. 6364
Date: 10th May, 2019
Place: Mumbai
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

Financial Statement

FORM NO MR-3

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
To,
The Members of,
ZEE LEARN LIMITED
Continental Building,
135, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai - 400018
Maharashtra - India

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial Year ended March 31, 2019
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No- U72900MH2006PTC165215

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Zee Learn Limited having CIN
L80301MH2010PLC198405 and having registered office at Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai Maharashtra - 400018 India
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3)
read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal
www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board
of the Company for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2019 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility
is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
Mita P. Sanghavi
Membership no: 7205
CP No: 6364
Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th May 2019

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Digital
Ventures Private Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby
report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period that is to
say, from April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 (hereinafter referred to as “Audit
Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2019 according to the provisions of:
1. The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under
2. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Amendment) Act, 2013
(‘SEBI Act’):
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing
Regulations’)
3. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings to the extent applicable to the Company
4. Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company
belongs, as identified and compliance whereof as confirmed by the
management, that is to say:
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a. Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952
b. Employees Liability Act, 1938
c. Employees Remuneration Act, 1938
d. Maternity Benefits Act, 1961
e. Minimum Wages Act, 1948
f. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
g. Payment of Gratuity Act 1972
h. Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and other applicable Laws
i. The Bombay Shop Establishments Act, 1948
j. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
We have relied on the representation made by the Company, its officers and
Reports of the Statutory Auditor for systems and mechanism framed by the
Company for compliances under other Acts, Laws and Regulations
applicable to the Company as listed in point 4.
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
Secretarial Standards 1 & 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.
During the Audit period under review, based on the said verifications and as
per representations and clarifications provided by the management, I confirm
that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned hereinabove. I further
report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and
Indirect Tax laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since
the same has been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and other
designated professionals
Management Responsibility:
i Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit;
ii. I have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate
to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of
the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the
processes and practices, I have followed provide a reasonable basis for my
opinion;
iii. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records
and Books of Accounts of the Company or verified compliance of laws
other than those mentioned above;
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iv. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis;
v. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

• Mr. Debshankar Mukhopadhyay is appointed as the Additional Director
of the company w.e.f 15th January, 2019

Management Report
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ANNEXURE A
CIN No-L80301MH2010PLC198405

b) Changes in Statutory Auditors of the Company during the Audit
Period:
• Ms. Pooja Kaku resigned as a statutory Auditor with effect from the
close of business of 4th May, 2018

I further report that:
• M/s A. Sridhar Iyer and Associates were appointment as statutory
Auditors by shareholders to fill up the casual vacancy

To,
The Members,
Digital Ventures Private Limited,
135, Continental Building,
Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai - 400 018

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance, except in case of one meeting, which was called at shorter notice in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and Secretarial Standard,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

• Casual vacancy created due to death of Statutory Auditor Mr. Sridhar
Iyer, was filled in by the Board by appointing Ms. Heena Raj Patangia
as the statutory auditor for FY 2018-2019.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

I further report that during the Audit Period, the Company had the following
specific events:

I would like to further report that as informed to us by the Management and
since the Company is a private Company though a material subsidiary of the
listed Company, the provisions relating to The Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder and the
Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder
are not applicable to the company.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination
was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

Date: 13th May, 2019
Place: Mumbai

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the company.

a) Changes in the constitution of Board of Directors of the Company
during the Audit period:
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted and comprised
of 3 Directors and the following were the changes in the constitution of
Board of Directors during the Audit period
• Dr. Sangeeta Pandit holds the position as an independent Director of
the company who is also an independent Director of the holding
Company in compliance of Regulation 24(1) of (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

• M/s A Sridhar Iyer and Associates were reappointed in Annual General
Meeting held on 28.09.2018 for the period of 5 years as Statutory
Auditors of the company.

MITA SANGHAVI
Practising Company Secretary
FCS No.7205
CP No. 6364

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial
records based on our audit.
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

MITA SANGHAVI
FCS No.7205
CP No. 6364

• Mr. Dinesh Kanodia was re-appointed as Director of the Company in
Annual General Meeting held on 28th September 2018 but
eventually has resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f
15th January, 2019.
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Place: Mumbai

Annual Report 2018-19

Annual Report 2018-19

99

Corporate Overview

ZEE LEARN LIMITED

Report on Corporate Governance
COMPANY'S GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY
Your Company has laid strong foundation for making Corporate Governance a
way of life by constituting a Board with a balanced mix of professionals of
eminence and integrity from within and outside the business, forming a core
group of top executives, inducting competent professionals across the
organization and putting in place appropriate system, process and
technology. The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and its well structured
internal financial control systems which are subjected to regular assessment
for its effectiveness, reinforces integrity of Management and fairness in
dealing with the Company’s stakeholders. Your Company has enabled to earn
the trust and goodwill of its investors, business partners, employees and the
communities in which it operates. In its endeavor to improve on the Corporate
Governance practices.

POLICIES
In compliance with the requirements of, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), and Companies Act,
2013, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved various policies, as
detailed herein:

Whistle Blower & Vigil Mechanism Policy
As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Listing
Regulations, a comprehensive Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy
has been approved and implemented within the organization. The policy
enables the employees and directors to report instances of any unethical act
or suspected incidents of fraud or violation of Companies Code of conduct.
This mechanism/Policy provides adequate safeguards to whistle blowers
against reprisals or victimization. The Copy of the Policy has been uploaded
on the Company’s Website viz. www.zeelearn.com
Code of Conduct
The Company has also adopted a Code of Conduct for the Members of the
Board of Directors and Senior Management, and all the Directors and senior
functionaries as defined in the Code provide their annual confirmation of
compliance with the Code. Copy of the Code is available on the website of the
Company www.zeelearn.com.
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Declaration:
I confirm that the Company has obtained from all Directors and Senior
Management Personnel of the Company their affirmation of compliance with
the Code of Conduct for Members of the Board of Directors and Senior
Management of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019.
Debshankar Mukhopadhyay
Chief Executive Officer
Mumbai, April 1, 2019
Related Party Transaction Policy
In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations,
the Board of Directors of the Company has approved a Related Party
Transaction Policy, to facilitate management to report and seek approval for
any Related Party Transaction proposed to be entered into by the Company.
The said Related Party Transaction Policy can be viewed on
www.zeelearn.com.
Policies & Code as per SEBI Insider Trading Regulations
In accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015,
the Company has formulated and approved (i) an Insider Trading Code to
regulate dealing in the securities of the Company by designated persons in
compliance with the regulations; and (ii) a Policy for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information.
Mr Bhautesh Shah, Company Secretary of the Company is Compliance officer
for the purposes of Insider Trading Code, while Mr. Umesh Pradhan, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company has been appointed as Chief Investor
Relations Officer for the purpose of Fair Disclosure policy.
In line with the amendment to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015, the Insider Trading Code and Policy for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information was revised with effect from April 1,
2019. The revised code and Policy can be viewed on Company’s website
www.zeelearn.com.
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Composition of the Board as on March 31, 2019

Familiarization Program for Independent Directors

A declaration affirming compliance with the Code of Conduct by the
Members of the Board and Senior Management personnel is given below:

Management Report

Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights and
responsibilities in the Company as well as with the nature of industry and
business model of the Company through induction programs at the time of
their appointment as Directors and also annually by providing detailed
presentations on the businesses of the Company. While review and approval
of quarterly and annual financial statements of the Company are taken up,
detailed presentation covering inter alia economy and industry overview, key
regulatory developments, strategy and performance of individual profit
centres is made to the Board.
Apart from the above policies, the Board has in accordance with the
requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations approved and
adopted Policy for determining Material Subsidiary, Remuneration Policy,
Material Events Determination and Disclosure Policy and Document
Preservation Policy. These policies can be viewed on Company’s website at
www.zeelearn.com.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition & Category of Directors
Zee Learn Limited is in compliance with the Board composition requirements
of the Listing Regulations. Independent Directors of the Company provide
appropriate annual certifications to the Board confirming satisfaction of the
conditions of their being independent as laid down in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. In
the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions
specified in the Listing Regulations and are Independent of the Management.

The Company requires skill/expertise/competencies in the areas of Finance,
Legal, Education, Content, Marketing/Sales, Technology, Business
Specialization. Currently, the Board of the Company comprises of Directors
with qualification/experience in all the above areas.
During the financial year under review, 4 (Four) meetings of the Board were
held May 7, 2018, August 9, 2018, October 15, 2018 and January 18, 2019
The annual calendar of meetings in connection with approval of quarterly and
annual financial statements of the Company is broadly determined at the
beginning of each financial year.
Particulars of Directors, their attendance at the Annual General Meeting and
Board Meetings held during the financial year 2018-19 and also their other
directorships/ memberships held in Indian Public Companies (excluding
Foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies of Companies Act, 2013) and
Membership/Chairmanship of Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship
Committee of other Public Companies as at March 31, 2019 are as under:

Attendance at

Name of Director

No. of Directorship in
other Public Companies

Board Meeting
(Total 4 Meetings)

Member

Chairman

No. of Committee
positions held in
other public Companies
Member

Chairman

Non- Executive Chairman
Mr. Himanshu Mody

3

No

5

1

1

1

4

Yes

1

-

-

-

Dr. Manish Agarwal

4

Yes

1

-

1

-

Dr. Sangeeta Pandit

4

Yes

3

-

3

1

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker

2

No

-

-

-

-

Managing Director
Mr. Ajey Kumar
Non- Executive Independent Director
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Notes:
The number of Directorship (s), Committee Membership(s) / Chairmanship (s) of all Directors is/are within the respective limits prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Particulars of Meetings of Board Committees held during the year along with details of Directors attendance at such Committee Meeting(s) are detailed herein:

Audit Committe

Nomination &
Remuneration Committee

Stakeholders
Relationship Committee

Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee

Details of other Directorships of Directors in the Listed entities as at March 31, 2019 are as under
Sr. No.

Name of the Director

Directorship in other Listed Companies

Category of Directorship

1

Mr. Ajey Kumar

MT Educare Limited

Executive Director

2

Mr. Himanshu Mody

MT Educare Limited

Non-Executive Director

3

Dr. Sangeeta Pandit

The Indian Card Clothing Company Limited
MT Educare Limited

Independent Director

4

Dr. Manish Agarwal

MT Educare Limited

Independent Director

5

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker

NA

NA

Independent Directors Meeting and Board Evaluation Process
Terms of reference
In compliance with requirements of Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations
and Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Independent Directors of the Company met on January 18, 2019 to review the
performance of Chairman and Non-Independent Directors, evaluate
performance of the Board of Directors and its Committees and review flow of
information between the management and the Board.
The evaluation process was carried out based on an assessment sheet
structured in line with ICSI guidance note and the guidance note issued by
SEBI in this regard.
The parameters for evaluation of performance of the Board & Board Committees
include the structure & composition, contents of agenda, quality and timelines of
information provided, decision-making process & review thereof, attention to the
Company’s long-term strategic issues, evaluation of strategic risks, overseeing
and review of major plans of action, acquisitions etc. Outcome of such evaluation
exercise was discussed at subsequent board meeting. The performance of each
of the Independent Directors was also evaluated taking into account the time
devoted, attention given to professional obligations for independent decision
making, contribution towards providing strategic guidance, determining
important policies, utilising their expertise, independent judgment that
contributes objectively in the Board’s deliberations.

The role and the powers of the Audit Committee is as set out in Part C of
Schedule II of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013. The terms of reference of Audit Committee broadly includes:
Ÿ

Review Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient,
accurate, timely and credible.

Ÿ

Review and recommend for approval of the Board quarterly, half yearly and
annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.

Ÿ

Review internal audit reports, related party transactions, company’s
financial and risk management policies and functioning of Whistle Blower
& Vigil Mechanism Policy.

Ÿ

Review with the management performance of Statutory and Internal
Auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems including
computerized information system controls and security.

Ÿ

Recommend to the Board the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the Statutory Auditor and Cost Auditor, fixation of audit fee and
approval of payment of fees for any other services.

Ÿ

Review the adequacy of internal audit function including approving
appointment and remuneration payable to Internal Auditor, including the
structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the
official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit.

Ÿ

Review, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement
of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document /
prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring
the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter.

Ÿ

Review and monitoring the auditor‘s independence and performance,
and effectiveness of audit process.

Details of Board Committees are as mentioned herein:

Audit Committee
Constitution

Committee positions held

As at March 31, 2019, the Audit Committee of the Board comprises of Three
(3) Directors, including Dr. Sangeeta Pandit, Independent Director as
Chairperson, Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non-Executive Director; and Dr. Manish
Agarwal, Independent Director as Members of the Audit Committee.

Nil

During the year under review, four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held
on May 7, 2018, August 9, 2018, October 15, 2018, and January 18, 2019.
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Ÿ

Approve or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company
with related parties.

Ÿ

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

Ÿ

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.

Ÿ

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

of Subsidiary Companies viz., its financial statements, to grant omnibus
approval for related party transactions which are in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length pricing basis and to review and approve such
transactions subject to the approval of the Board, statement of investments
and minutes of meetings of its Board and Committees.

Ÿ
Ÿ
Ÿ

Audit Committee Meetings are generally attended by the Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, AVP (Finance & Accounts) and representative of the
Statutory Auditors of the Company. Internal Auditors have attended Audit
Committee Meetings wherein the Internal Audit reports are considered by the
Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Audit Committee.

Ÿ

Formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors
and the board of directors;
Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;
Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down,
and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal.
Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the
Independent Director, on the basis of the report of performance
evaluation of Independent Directors.

Ÿ

Review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Ÿ

Discuss with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain
any area of concern.

Remuneration Policy

Constitution

Ÿ

Look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends) and creditors.

Ÿ

Review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism.

As at March 31, 2019, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises
of Dr. Manish Agarwal, Independent Director as Chairman, Mr. Himanshu
Mody, Non-Executive Director and Dr. Sangeeta Pandit, Independent Director
as members of the Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company acts
as Secretary of Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

The guiding principle of the remuneration policy of the Company is that the
remuneration and other terms of engagement / employment shall be
competitive enough to ensure that the Company is in a position to attract,
retain and motivate right kind of human resource(s) for achieving the desired
growth set by the Company’s management year on year thereby creating
long-term value for all stakeholders of the Company. An extract of the
Remuneration Policy approved by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee of the Board has been included as a part of this Annual report.

Ÿ
Ÿ

Ÿ

Approve appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate.
Review the utilization of loans and/or advances from/investment in the
subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 Crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans/advances/ investments.
The committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

During the year under review, the Committee met 3 (Three) times on August 9,
2018, October 25, 2018 and January 18, 2019.
Terms of reference
Terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee include:
Ÿ

- Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and
results of operations;
- Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the
audit committee), submitted by management;
- Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by
the statutory auditors;

Ÿ

Formulate the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating
to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees.

Ÿ

Ensure the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality required to
run the Company successfully.

- Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
- The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief
internal auditor shall be subject to review by the audit committee.

Ÿ

Ensure that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and
meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

- Statement of deviations:

Ÿ

Formulate policy with regard to remuneration to directors, key managerial
personnel and senior management involving a balance between fixed
and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

(a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring
agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of
Regulation 32(1).
(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those
stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of
Regulation 32(7).
The Audit Committee also reviews adequacy of disclosures and compliance
with all relevant laws. In addition to these, in compliance with requirements of
Regulation 24 of Listing Regulations, the Audit Committee reviews operations
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Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall
carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

Ÿ

Ÿ

Approve the remuneration policy and other matters relating thereto as
applicable to directors and senior management and other employees of the
Company and administer Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company.
Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes
and independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors
a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;
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Remuneration payable to Executive DirectorBased on recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at the
meeting held on October 28, 2015, had approved appointment of Mr. Ajey
Kumar, as an Executive Director for a period of 5 years which was approved by
the members of the Company vide Postal Ballot / e-voting process on
December 18, 2015. As per the terms of his appointment he was eligible for
grant of stock options from the Company as an Executive Director or
otherwise but without any remuneration as of then. In line with his increased
inputs and efforts that are required in the Company and in order to remunerate
him commensurate with his role, abilities and responsibilities the Board of
Directors based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee at its meeting held August 9, 2018, have approved the redesignation / appointment of Mr. Ajey Kumar from Executive Director to

Management Report

Financial Statement

Managing Director of the Company w.e.f October 1, 2018 with remuneration
till the end of the tenure of his appointment viz. October 27, 2020 with
remuneration which was also approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting held on September 24, 2018.

Remuneration payable to Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Directors were entitled to sitting fees of Rs.20,000/- per
meeting of the Board and Committees thereof, other than Stakeholder’s
Relationship Committee and Finance Sub-Committee.
The Independent Directors are additionally entitled to remuneration up to an
aggregate limit of 1% of net profits of the Company by way of Commission for
each financial year, as approved by the Members by way of Postal Ballot on
18th December 2015. Commission payable to the Independent Directors is
determined by the Board based on various criteria including contribution
made by each Director, performance of the Company, etc.
Amount in `

4,50,000

6,90,000

4,50,000

6,90,000

4,50,000

4,90,000

13,50,000

18,70,000

In addition to this, the Directors are also granted Stock Options (except
Independent Directors) [each convertible into equivalent number of equity
shares of Re. 1/- each of the Company] at closing Market Price of Equity Shares
of Company of Previous Closing day as on the date of respective grant of Option,
in terms of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

Particulars of Stock Options granted under the ESOP scheme to the Directors and their outstanding as at March 31, 2019, are as under:

Name of Director

No. of Stock Options granted at

` 34.15

` 42.20

Options
Vested

Options
Exercised

NA

1,50,000

1,75,000

3,55,500

80,500

NA

64,02,980

8,46,214

NA

71,22,262

46,73,597

30,000

NA

NA

NA

NA

90,000

90,000

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

` 26.05

` 14.50

` 20.85

` 35.25

28,000

32,500

40,000

40,000

NA

NA

NA

Dr. Manish Agarwal
Independent Director

30,000

30,000

Dr. Sangeeta Pandit
Independent Director

NA

Ms. Nandita Agarwal Parker
Independent Director

NA

Mr. Himanshu Mody
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ajey Kumar
Managing Director

` 31.80

During the year under review, no new Stock Options have been granted to the Independent Directors of the Company.
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The Non-Executive Directors of the Company do not have any other material
pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company or its Directors,
Senior Management, Subsidiary or Associate, other than in normal course of
business.

Officer pursuant to the Listing Regulations. The designated email for investor
service and correspondence is investor_relations@zeelearn.com.
Details of number of requests/complaints received and resolved during the
year ended March 31, 2019, are as under:

facilities etc., including the acceptance of terms and conditions of such
facilities being offered and exercising other authorities as may be delegated
by the Board from time to time, the Board has constituted a Finance SubCommittee.
iii) Corporate Management Committee

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The Board has also constituted a Corporate Management Committee
comprising of Senior Executives of the Company to review, approve
and/or grant authorities for managing day-today affairs of the Company
within the powers delegated by the Board.

Constitution
As at March 31, 2019, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board
comprises of Dr. Sangeeta Pandit, Independent Director as Chairperson and
Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non-Executive Director as the member and Ms. Nandita
Agarwal Parker, Independent Director as the members.

The Finance Sub-Committee and Corporate Management Committee

Management Report

Financial Statement

meet as and when required to deliberate and decide on various matters
within their respective scope or powers delegated by the Board.
iv) Issue & Allotment Sub- Committee
In order to facilitate the process of approving Company’s Offering Document
for issue of Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) etc, appointment of various
intermediaries, approving various agreements, deciding on the terms of
issue along with timing thereof, obtaining approval of Stock Exchange(s)
and/or other regulatory / statutory / administrative authorities etc., the Board
has constituted an Issue and Allotment Committee comprising of Dr.
Sangeeta Pandit, Independent Director as Chairperson and Mr. Himanshu
Mody, Non-Executive Director as its member.

GENERAL MEETINGS
Ms Nandita Agarwal Parker was inducted in the said committee w.e.f January
18, 2019.
During the year under review, Stakeholders Relationship Committee met
eight (8) times on April 24, 2018, August 6, 2018, October 15, 2018, October
25, 2018, November 28, 2018, February 15, 2019, February 21, 2019 and
March 13, 2019.

Terms of Reference

The Ninth Annual General Meeting of the Company for the financial year 2018-19 will be held on Thursday, September 26, 2019 at 11:30 a.m. at 'The Hall of
Culture', Nehru Centre, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
In compliance with requirements of Section 135 read with Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Board has constituted Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee comprising of Dr. Manish Agarwal, Independent
Director as Chairman, Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non-Executive Director and Dr.
Sangeeta Pandit, Independent Director as its Members.

The terms of reference of Stakeholder Relationship Committee revised
effective from April 1, 2019 include the following:

During the year under review, CSR Committee met once on January 18, 2019.

Ÿ

Other Board Committees

Resolve the grievances of the shareholders of the Company including
complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of
annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate
certificates, general meetings etc.

Ÿ

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by
shareholders.

Ÿ

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company
in respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent.

Ÿ

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for
reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt
of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders
of the company.

The Committee has delegated various powers including approving requests
for transfer, transmission, rematerialisation & dematerialisation etc. of Equity
shares to the Executives of the Company and the Company Secretary, being
the compliance officer, is entrusted with the responsibility, to specifically look
into the redressal of the shareholders and investors complaints jointly with
representative (s) of Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company and
report the same to Stakeholders Relationship Committee.
Mr. Bhautesh Shah, Company Secretary has been appointed as Compliance
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The location, day, date and time of the Annual General Meetings held during last three years along with Special Resolution(s) passed at these
meetings are as follows:

Year
2015 - 2016

Day and Time

Special Resolutions passed

Venue

Monday, September 19,
2016 at 11.00 a.m.

In addition to the above, the Board has constituted following Committees to
exercise powers delegated by the Board as per the scope mentioned herein:
.i) ESOP Allotment Sub-Committee
In order to process and facilitate allotment of Equity Shares, from time to
time, upon exercise of Stock Options granted under Company’s ESOP
Scheme, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee has constituted
ESOP Allotment Sub-Committee. As on March 31, 2019, the Committee
comprises of Mr. Himanshu Mody, Non Executive Director, Mr. Debshankar
Mukhopadhyay, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Vikash Kar, Head – Human
Resources and Mr. Bhautesh Shah, Company Secretary of the Company
as its members.

2016 - 17

Thursday, September 28,
2017 at 3.30 p.m.

2017-18

Monday, September 24,
2018 at 11.30 a.m.

ii) Finance Sub-Committee
The Finance Sub-Committee of the Company comprises of Dr. Sangeeta
Pandit, Independent Director as the Chairperson and Mr. Himanshu Mody
Non-Executive Director as member.
With a view to facilitate monitoring and expediting any debt fund raising
process, approve financing facilities offered and / or sanctioned to the
Company by various Banks and /or Indian Financial Institutions from time
to time, in the form of Term Loans, Working Capital facilities, Guarantee
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Date of Notice: May 7, 2018

Your Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at workplace
and has adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual
harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder. There was no complaint on sexual harassment
during the year under review.

Date of Result: July 5, 2018
Details of Votes Cast
(number of Shares & % of total shares for
which votes were cast)
Against

Particulars of Resolution

Special resolution under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 authorising the Board to borrow
moneys in excess of Paid-up Share Capital and free reserves of the Company upto Rs. 750 crore;

198912722
90.2662%

21449741
9.7338%

198914289
90.2669%

21448161
9.7331%

198909705
90.2648%

21452745
9.7352%

220352277
99.9954%

10173
0.0046%

The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation
46 of the Listing Regulations 2015. The Statutory Auditors’ Certificate that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance is
annexed to the Directors’ Report.

Management Report

Financial Statement

Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed. Such information is
also simultaneously displayed on the Company’s website
www.zeelearn.com. The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results and
other statutory information were communicated to the shareholders by way of
advertisement in an English newspaper ‘Daily News and Analysis (DNA)’ and
in a vernacular language newspaper ‘Punya Nagari / Free Press Journal
(Marathi)’ as per the requirements of Listing Regulations. The financial and
other information are filed by the Company on electronic platforms of NSE
(NEAPS) and BSE Listing Centre.
Pursuant to Regulation 46 of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company
Publishes its Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Financial results, Annual
Reports and post such results on Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of the Listing
Regulations and the status of compliance with non-mandatory requirements
of SEBI Listing Regulations are as detailed hereunder:

Official press releases and presentations made to institutional investors or to
the analysts, if any, are displayed on Company’s website www.zeelearn.com.
Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of this Annual
Report is annexed separately.

Audit Qualification – The financial statements of the Company are unqualified.
General Shareholders Information
Separate posts of Chairman and CEO – The office and posts of Chairman and
CEO in the Company are separate.

The required information is provided in Shareholders Information Section.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
Mrs. Mita Sanghavi, Practicing Company Secretary (holding FCS No. 7205
and CP No. 6364) was appointed as the Scrutinizer in respect of the aforesaid
resolutions, to ensure that E-voting and Postal Ballot Voting process is
conducted in fair and transparent manner. The above resolutions were
passed with requisite majority.

DISCLOSURES
The Whistle Blower & Vigil Mechanism Policy approved by the Board has
been implemented and no personnel have been denied access for making
disclosure or report under the Policy to the Vigilance Officer and/or Audit
Committee.
There are no materially significant related party transactions between the
Company and its promoters, directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives, having any potential conflict with interests of the Company at large.
Transactions with related parties including material related party transaction
with one of the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company Digital Ventures
Private Limited are disclosed in the Annual Report.
In Compliance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations,
the Board of Directors of the Company has approved Related Party
Transaction Policy, to facilitate management to report and seek approval for
any Related Party transaction proposed to be entered into by the Company.
The Company‘s Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on
dealing with Related Party Transactions is put on Company’s website
www.zeelearn.com.
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There has not been any non-compliance by the Company and no penalties or
strictures have been imposed by SEBI or Stock Exchanges, or any other statutory
authority on any matter relating to capital markets during last three years.

The Company has promptly reported all material information including
declaration of quarterly financial results, press releases etc., to the Stock

Since the Company is engaged in Education business, there is no risk
associated with Commodity Price and therefore the disclosure relating to
Commodity Price risk and Commodity hedging activities is Not applicable.
Your Board hereby confirms that the Company has obtained a certificate from
Mrs. Mita Sanghavi (FCS No:7205 CP No. 6364) a Company Secretary in
Practice confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors by SEBI, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory
authority.
The Company has obtained rating from CARE Ratings Limited during the
financial year 2018-19 for the debt instrument of the Company. There has
been no revision in credit ratings during the financial year 2018-19.
During FY 2018-19, the total fees paid by the Company to M/s. MGB & Co.
LLP, Statutory Auditors of the Company are detailed in the Standalone
Financial Statements, the Company had paid an aggregate remuneration of
Rs.21.30 lakhs to its Statutory Auditors bifurcated as Rs. 17.00 lakhs be paid
as Audit fees to the Statutory Auditors for the period ended March 31, 2019;
and Rs. 2.00 lakhs as Tax Audit Fees and Rs. 2.30 lakhs as fees for
certifications and tax representations.
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Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance
To
The Members,
Zee Learn Limited
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Zee Learn Limited (‘the Company’), for the year ended March 31st 2019 as
stipulated in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (collectively referred to as “SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015”).

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

1

Date, Time and Venue of Shareholder’s Meeting

Meeting
Day & Date
Time
Venue

2

Financial Year

April 1, 2018 till March 31, 2019

First Quarterly Results
Second Quarterly Results
Third Quarterly Results
Fourth Quarterly Results

On or before 14th August, 2019
On or before 14th November, 2019
On or before 14th February, 2020
On or before 30th May, 2020

3

Date of Book Closure

From Thursday, September 19, 2019 to Thursday, September 26, 2019

4

Dividend Payment Date

Dividend @ Re.0.10/- to be paid on or after October 3, 2019

5

Address for Correspondence

Registered Ofﬁce:
Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.
Tel: +91-22-2483 1234, Fax: +91-22-2495 5974
Website : www.zeelearn.com

For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 101169W/W-100035

: Ninth Annual General Meeting
: Thursday, September 26, 2019
: 11:30 a.m
: ‘The Hall of Culture’, Nehru Centre, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400 018

Corporate Ofﬁce:
513/A, 5th Floor, Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Off. L.B.S Marg, Kurla (West),
Mumbai - 400070
Tel: +91-22-4034 3900, Fax: +91-22-2674 3422

Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019
UDIN : 19048215AAAABJ5244

Financial Statement

Shareholders’ Information

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on financial statements of the Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has compiled with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

Management Report

6

Corporate Identity Number

L80301MH2010PLC198405

7

Listing on Stock Exchanges

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400 051
BSE Limited (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001
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8

Stock Code

NSE : ZEELEARN
BSE : 533287

9

ISIN No.

INE565L01011 (Equity shares of Re. 1/- each, fully paid up)

10

Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) Details

As at March 31, 2019, none of the Global Depository Receipts have remained outstanding
as all the GDRs have been converted into the underlying shares of the Company as on
January 15, 2018 which forms part of the existing paid up share capital of the Company.

a. Listed at

Societe DE LA Bourse De Luxembourg
Societe Anonyme, 35A, Boulevard Joseph II
L- 1840, Luxembourg

b. ISIN Code

US9892181028

Annual Report 2018-19

111

Corporate Overview

ZEE LEARN LIMITED

c.

Overseas Depository & Domestic Custodian

Financial Statement

17. Unclaimed Shares

As at March 31, 2019, none of the Global Depository Receipts have remained outstanding as all the GDRs have been converted into the underlying shares
of the Company as on January 15, 2018, thus the services of the Overseas Depository and Domestic Custodian have been discontinued.
d.

Management Report

As per Regulation 39 of Listing Regulations, details in respect of the physical shares, which were issued pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement and lying in
the Suspense account, is as under:
Description

Market Data Relating to GDRs Listed on Luxembourg Stock Exchange
All the Global Depository Receipts have been converted into the underlying shares of the Company as on January 15, 2018 hence the ﬁgures of market data
are not mentioned.

11. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg,
Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400083. Tel No: +91-22-49186000
Fax No: +91-22-49186060
Email id: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
12. Investor Relations Ofﬁcer
The Company Secretary
Zee Learn Limited
Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.
Tel: +91-22-40343900 Fax: +91-22-26743422
E-mail: investor_relations@zeelearn.com

Number of
shareholders

Number of
Equity Shares

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account as
at April 1, 2018

219

39427

Fresh undelivered cases during the Financial Year 2018-2019

NIL

NIL

Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares from suspense
account till March 31, 2019

NIL

NIL

Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the Suspense account
till March 31, 2019

NIL

NIL

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying
as on March 31, 2019

219

39427

The voting rights on the Equity shares outstanding in the suspense account as on March 31, 2019 shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares
claims the shares.
18. Transfer of Unclaimed dividend / Shares to Investor Education Protection Fund

13. Listing Fee
Company has paid the Annual Listing fees for the Financial Year 2019-20 to the stock exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed (viz NSE &
BSE). The Company had also paid the Annual Maintenance Fee for the Year 2019 to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange where the GDRs of the Company are
listed.
14. PAN & Change of Address

Section 124 and Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘the Rules’) mandates that companies transfer dividend that has remained unclaimed for a period of seven years from unpaid dividend
account to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Further, the Rules mandate the transfer of shares with respect to the dividend, which has not
been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more to IEPF. Accordingly, the dividend for the years mentioned as follows will be transferred to the
IEPF on the respective dates if the dividend remains unclaimed for seven years, and the corresponding shares will also be transferred to IEPF if dividend is
unclaimed for seven consecutive years. The shareholders are requested to claim the unclaimed dividend amount immediately in order to avoid the transfer
of shares to IEPF.

Members holding equity share in physical form are requested to notify the change of address/dividend mandate, if any, to the Company’s Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent, at the address mentioned above.

Year

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities
market. Members holding Shares in dematerialized form are requested to submit their PAN, notify the change of address including e-mail address/ dividend
mandate, if any, to their respective Depository Participant (DP). Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN, notify the change of address
including e-mail address/ dividend mandate, if any, to the Company/ Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

2016-17
2016-17
2017-18

Type of Dividend
Interim
Final
Final

Dividend Per Share
(in `)
0.05
0.05
0.10

Date of declaration
of dividend
21.10.2016
28.9.2017
24.9.2018

Due Dates for transfer
to IEPF
20.11.2023
27.10.2024
23.10.2025

Shareholders who have not yet encashed their dividend warrants for the previous years may approach with unencashed dividend warrants to the Company,
at its Corporate Ofﬁce for revalidation / issue of duplicate dividend warrants.

15. Share Transfer System
Equity Shares sent for physical transfer or for dematerialisation are generally registered and returned within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt of
completed and validly executed documents.

19. Shareholders’ Correspondence
The Company has attended to all the investors’ grievances/ queries/ information requests. It is the endeavor of the Company to reply to all letters/
communications received from the shareholders within a period of 5 working days.

16. Dematerialisation of Equity Shares & Liquidity
To facilitate trading in demat form the Company has made arrangements with both the depositories viz. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). Shareholders may open account with any of the Depository Participant registered with any of these two
depositories. As on March 31, 2019, 99.94% of the equity shares of the Company is held by 1,01,124 Equity Shareholders in dematerialized form and the
balance 0.06% is held by 892 Equity Shareholders in physical form. Entire Equity shareholding of the promoters in Company is held in dematerialized form.

All correspondence may please be addressed to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at the address given above. In case any shareholder is not satisﬁed
with the response or do not get any response within reasonable period, they may approach the Investor Relations Ofﬁcer at the address given above.
20. Outstanding Convertible Securities
There are no outstanding warrants or any other convertible instruments which are likely to impact the equity capital of the Company as on March 31, 2019.
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21.

Share Capital Build- up
Particulars

Particulars
No. of Shares issued

Management Report

No. of Shares issued

Financial Statement

Date of Issue

Date of Issue
Allotment under ESOP

51,248

08.11.2016

50,000

20.01.2010

Allotment under ESOP

45,000

18.11.2016

5,00,000

22.01.2010

Allotment under ESOP

7,606

19.12.2016

Issued to ZEEL Shareholders pursuant to Scheme

12,22,38,599

14.10.2010

Allotment under ESOP

64,025

16.01.2017

Issued to Essel Entertainment Media Limited Shareholders pursuant to Scheme

14,00,00,000

01.07.2011

Allotment under ESOP

1,21,269

20.01.2016

Allotment under ESOP

2,12,000

30.11.2012

Allotment under ESOP

2,49,993

02.02.2017

Allotment under ESOP

59,650

13.03.2013

Allotment under ESOP

3,14,650

14.02.2017

5,61,79,770

21.05.2013

Allotment under ESOP

24,723

20.02.2017

Allotment under ESOP

18,500

14.08.2013

Allotment under ESOP

2,64,825

28.02.2017

Allotment under ESOP

52,500

25.10.2013

Allotment under ESOP

1,58,525

02.03.2017

Allotment under ESOP

54,700

30.01.2014

Allotment under ESOP

1,96,650

14.03.2017

Allotment under ESOP

15,925

24.03.2014

Allotment under ESOP

2,17,250

21.03.2017

Allotment under ESOP

30,200

12.05.2014

Allotment under ESOP

1,37,500

23.03.2017

Allotment under ESOP

28,250

11.06.2014

Allotment under ESOP

1,06,850

27.03.2017

Allotment under ESOP

36,550

25.08.2014

Allotment under ESOP

2,17,606

24.04.2017

Allotment under ESOP

2,39,189

24.09.2014

Allotment under ESOP

6,00,000

25.04.2017

Allotment under ESOP

1,35,950

07.10.2014

Allotment under ESOP

25,067

28.04.2017

Allotment under ESOP

74,663

29.10.2014

Allotment under ESOP

20,158

18.05.2017

Allotment under ESOP

52,500

02.12.2014

Allotment under ESOP

14,806

25.05.2017

Allotment under ESOP

15,488

02.01.2015

Allotment under ESOP

2,45,238

07.06.2017

Allotment under ESOP

18,975

11.02.2015

Allotment under ESOP

2,35,000

08.06.2017

Allotment under ESOP

37,688

23.03.2015

Allotment under ESOP

3,11,190

19.07.2017

Allotment under ESOP

64,788

30.04.2015

Allotment under ESOP

20,400

21.07.2017

Allotment under ESOP

20,600

11.06.2015

Allotment under ESOP

31,425

07.09.2017

Allotment under ESOP

29,000

06.08.2015

Allotment under ESOP

4,10,820

23.10.2017

Allotment under ESOP

33,535

24.09.2015

Allotment under ESOP

82,634

02.11.2017

Allotment under ESOP

45,188

03.11.2015

Allotment under ESOP

24,925

06.12.2017

Allotment under ESOP

85,799

09.12.2015

Allotment under ESOP

3,57,747

22.12.2017

Allotment under ESOP

5,591

18.12.2015

Allotment under ESOP

6,56,075

31.01.2018

Allotment under ESOP

16,035

19.12.2015

Allotment under ESOP

1,70,000

21.06.2018

Allotment under ESOP

1,22,289

21.12.2015

Allotment under ESOP

13,253

29.11.2018

Allotment under ESOP

52,004

19.01.2016

Issue & Paid- up Capital as on 31.03.2019

Allotment under ESOP

62,294

04.02.2016

Allotment under ESOP

16,035

10.02.2016

Allotment under ESOP

49,106

01.09.2016

Allotment under ESOP

78,906

26.09.2016

Issued to Subscribers
Sub- Division of Shares from Rs. 10/- each to Re. 1/- each

Global Depository Receipt
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Stock Market Data Relating to Shares Listed in India
Monthly high and low quotations and volume of Equity Shares traded on BSE and NSE for the ﬁnancial year 2018 - 2019:

Closing Monthly Price VS Closing Monthly Sensex
BSE
Months

23.

High (`)

Low (`)

NSE
Volume of
shares traded

High (`)

Volume of
shares traded

Low (`)

39,000

45

April 2018

38.00

35.00

4,87,997

37.75

35.10

33,52,654

May 2018

37.70

31.20

7,15,503

37.70

31.10

58,25,252

June 2018

39.00

33.00

5,49,786

39.05

33.20

78,27,231

July 2018

37.75

34.00

7,96,687

37.50

33.65

50,37,689

August 2018

42.00

35.90

5,65,257

41.50

35.80

60,76,296

September 2018

40.65

34.30

5,16,112

40.90

34.40

37,18,611

34,000

October 2018

42.00

32.50

8,36,007

42.20

32.05

65,88,638

33,000

20

32,000

15

November 2018

41.30

35.85

3,49,961

41.40

35.45

22,90,579

December 2018

36.90

34.05

2,88,763

37.25

34.05

12,31,216

January 2019

40.00

24.40

12,44,157

36.45

24.20

79,10,703

February 2019

30.40

24.60

4,68,367

30.25

24.80

46,31,919

March 2019

32.20

26.60

3,62,272

32.50

26.75

33,52,997
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Relative Performance of the Equity Shares Vs. BSE Sensex & Nifty Index

24.

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2019
No. of Equity Shares

Closing Monthly Price VS Closing Monthly Nifty

Share Holders
Number

12,000

50

11,500

45

11,000

40

10,500

35

9,500
9,000

Ap

Ma

Ju

l

Ju

8
g-1

Au

8
p-1

Se

Nifty 50

-18

t

Oc

No

8
v-1

De

8
c-1

Ja

9
n-1

9
b-1

Fe

Up to 500

92922

91.0857

5831017

1.7882

501 - 1000

4276

4.1915

3577434

1.0971

1001 - 2000

2161

2.1183

3348738

1.027

2200766

0.6749

3001 - 4000

367

0.3598

1332487

0.4086

25

4001 - 5000

402

0.3941

1922387

0.5896

5001 -10000

512

0.5019

3935356

1.2069

10001 and Above

526

0.5156

303930540

93.2077

102016

100.00

326078725

100.00

15
-18

% of Capital

0.8332

8,000
8
n-1

Number

850

20

8
y-1

% of Holders

2001 - 3000

8,500
8
r-1

No. of Shares

30

10,000

116

8

g-1

Au

Total

9
r-1

Ma

Zee Learn Ltd
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25.

Categories of Equity Shareholders as on March 31, 2019

26.

Category
% of shareholding

No. of shares held

Promoters

57.18%

186,442,388

FII's/NRI's/OCB's

24.49%

79,845,898

Individuals

10.98%

Financial Statement

Particulars of Shareholding
a)

March 31, 2019

Management Report

Promoter Shareholding as on March 31, 2019

Sr. No.

Name of Shareholder

No of Shares held

% of shareholding

1

Jayneer Infrapower & Multiventures Pvt. Limited
(Formerly Jayneer Capital Pvt. Ltd.)

7,68,75,375

23.58

35,788,559

2

Asian Satellite Broadcast Pvt. Ltd

6,30,52,512

19.34

3

Jayneer Enterprises LLP

1,50,00,000

4.60

Indian Companies (Bodies Corporate)

5.01%

16,327,740

Others

2.34%

7,674,140

4

Essel Media Ventures Private Limited

1,28,61,036

3.94

Total

100.00

326,078,725

5

Sprit Infrapower & Multiventures Private Limited
(Formerly Sprit Textiles Pvt. Ltd.)

1,11,03,864

3.41

6

Essel Infraprojects Limited

17,52,286

0.54

7

Essel Holdings Limited

57,97,315

1.78

18,64,42,388

57.18

Total

Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2019
Indian
Companies
5.01%

Others, 2.34%

b)
Sr. No.

Individuals,
10.98%

Fll’s/NRl’s/OCB’s,
24.49%

Promoters,
57.18%

Top ten (10) Public Shareholding as on March 31, 2019
Name of Shareholder

1

Moon Capital Trading Pte. Ltd.

2,09,55,327

6.43

Polus Global Fund

2,08,56,608

6.40

3

Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore) Pte.

1,13,18,127

3.47

4

Copthall Mauritius Investment Limited

81,05,371

2.49

5

Ganjam Trading Company Private Limited

49,49,506

1.52

6

UBS Principal Capital Asia Ltd

46,34,088

1.42

7

Veena Investments Private Limited

34,49,013

1.06

8

Naravi Infra and Utilities Private Limited

32,76,655

1.00

9

Hornbill Orchid India Fund

31,60,000

0.97

Vittoria Fund-Sr, L.P.-Asia Portfolio

31,20,619

0.96

8,38,25,314

25.72

Total
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Certification on Financial Statements of the Company

Management Report

Financial Statement

Independent Auditor’s Report

We, Debshankar Mukhopadhyay, Chief Executive officer and Umesh Pradhan, Chief Financial Officer of Zee Learn Limited (‘the Company’), certify that:
(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:
(i)

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statement that might be misleading;

(ii)

these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable
laws and regulations.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2019 are fraudulent, illegal or violative
to the Company’s Code of Conduct.
(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal
control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the Auditors and Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.
(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee that suring the year:
(i)

there has not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting;

(ii)

there have not been any significant changes in accounting policies; and

(iii)

there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we are aware that involve management or other employees, having significant role in the
company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

To
The Members of
Zee Learn Limited
Report on the audit of standalone financial statements
1. Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Zee Learn Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
March 2019, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (herein after referred to as “standalone financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.
2. Basis for opinion

For Zee Learn Limited
Mumbai, 17 May 2019

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
3. Key Audit Matters

Debshankar Mukhopadhyay
Chief Executive Officer
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Umesh Pradhan
Chief Financial Officer
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2019. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Description of Key Audit Matter
Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of
revenues and other related balances in view of adoption of Ind AS 115
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (new revenue accounting
standard)
• Sales are recognized when the control of the goods and services is
transferred to the customer.
• Revenue is recognized at the amount that reflect the considerations to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to customer.
• Revenue is recognized over a time or point in time.
• The Company focuses on revenue as a key performance measure which
could create an incentive for revenue to be recognized before the control.

Description of Auditor’s Response
Principal Audit Procedures
We assessed the Company’s process to identify the impact of adoption of the
new revenue accounting standard.
Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing as follows:
• Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to implementation of the
new revenue accounting standard.
• Assessing the application of Company’s accounting policies over revenue
recognition and comparing the Company’s accounting policies over
revenue recognition with applicable accounting standards.
• Identifying the nature of the revenues and identification of any unusual
contract terms.

the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

• Assessing the revenue recognized with substantive analytical procedures,
and
• Assessing the Company’s disclosure on revenue recognition.
•

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board
Report and Chairman's Statement but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
5. Management’s responsibilities for the Standalone Financial
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone
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financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
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Financial Statement

but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

• Testing the revenue recognized including testing of Company’s control on
revenue recognition, when applicable. Our testing included tracing the
information to agreements and payments.

4. Other information

Management Report

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, wether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(If the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether

•
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.
7. Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements
I.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act
(“the Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of
the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure A”, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

II. As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;
c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply
with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;
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e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors
of the Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with the requirements of section 197 (16) of the act,
as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/payable by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197of the Act.
h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

Financial Statement

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on
its financial position in its standalone financial statements;

Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts having any material foreseeable losses; and

Annexure referred to in paragraph 7(I) under “Report on other Legal and
Regulatory requirements” of our report of even date to the members of
Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company during the year.
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101169W/W-100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019

I

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.
(b) All the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by
the management during the year which in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. As informed to us, no discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title
deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

ii. The physical verification of inventory including stocks lying with third
parties have been conducted by the Management during the year at
reasonable intervals. As explained to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on physical verification as compared to book records.
iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
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Name of the Statute

Nature of
the Dues

The Central Sales Tax Act, 1956

Sales Tax

The Central Sales Tax Act, 1956
The Central Sales Tax Act, 1956
The Central Sales Tax Act, 1956
The Maharashtra Value Added
Act, 2002
The Maharashtra Value Added
Tax Act, 2002
The Maharashtra Value Added
Tax Act, 2002

Annual Report 2018-19

Amount
(In lakhs)

us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186
of the Act, in respect of loan given and investments made and
guarantees and securities provided during the year.
v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act.
vi. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as
amended prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of
the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have however not
made a detailed examination of such records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.
vii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and information
and explanations given to us:
(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and
services tax ,duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax , cess
and others as applicable have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of aforesaid dues outstanding as at 31 March
2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.
(b) There are no amounts on account of goods and service tax, duty of
customs and duty of excise which are yet to be deposited on account
of any dispute. The disputed dues of service tax, sales tax and value
added tax which have not been deposited as under:

Period to which the
amount relate

Forum where dispute is pending

49.95

F.Y. 2005 - 2006

Sales Tax
Sales Tax

90.81
14.73

F.Y. 2010 - 2011
F.Y. 2010 - 2011

Sales Tax
Value Added Tax

50.49
74.64

F.Y. 2012 - 2013
F.Y. 2005 - 2006

Value Added
Tax - Penalty
Value Added Tax

46.55

F.Y. 2005 - 2006

42.85

F.Y. 2010 - 2011

Deputy Commissioner of Sales
Tax , Appeals
Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax
Deputy Commissioner of Sales
Tax
Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax
Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax
Tax , Appeals
Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax
Tax , Appeals
Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax
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Name of the Statute

Nature of
the Dues

Amount
(In lakhs)

Period to which the
amount relate

Forum where dispute is pending

The Maharashtra Value Added
Act, 2002
The Maharashtra Value Added
Tax Act, 2002
The Central Excise Act, 1944

Value Added Tax

0.89

F.Y. 2010 - 2011

Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax

Value Added Tax

41.08

F.Y. 2012 - 2013

Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax

Service Tax

17.90

The Central Excise Act, 1944

Service Tax

7.24

The Central Excise Act, 1944

Service Tax

19.49

The Central Excise Act, 1944

Service Tax

1.61

F.Y. 2011 – 2012

The Central Excise Act, 1944

Service Tax

2.66

F.Y. 2012 - 2013

The Central Excise Act, 1944

Service tax

512.33

The Central Excise Act, 1944

Service Tax - Penalty

The Central Excise Act, 1944

Service Tax

F.Y. 2012 - 2013

Central Excise and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal
Central Excise and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Zee
Learn Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

F.Y. 2011 – 2012 to
F.Y. 2014 - 2015

Central Excise and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal
Central Excise and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal
Central Excise and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

553.97

F.Y. 2011 – 2012 to
F.Y. 2014 - 2015

Central Excise and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

602.73

F.Y. 2016 - 2017 to
F.Y. 2017 - 2018

Commissioner of Central Goods
and Service Tax

ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) .The term loans raised
during the year have been applied for the purposes for which they were
raised.
x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed
or reported during the year, nor have been informed of any such case by
the Management.
xi. According to the records of the Company examined by us, and
information and explanations given to us, the Company has
paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.
xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company is not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are
not applicable to it.
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in
paragraph 7(II)(f) under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date to the members of Zee Learn
Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019

Central Excise and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the
information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and debenture holders. The
Company does not have any loans from Government.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable Accounting
Standards.
xiv. According to the records of the Company examined by us, and
information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.
xv. According to the records of the Company examined by us, and
information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101169W/W-100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

F.Y 2009 - 2010 to
F.Y. 2011 – 2012

F.Y 2007 - 2008 to
F.Y. 2010 – 2011

Management Report

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial control based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on “Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting” (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101169W/W-100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019

127

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019
Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Investment property
(d) Intangible assets
(e) Intangible assets under development
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Loans
(iii) Other ﬁnancial assets
(g) Income tax assets (net)
(h) Deferred tax assets
(i) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(v) Loans
(vi) Other ﬁnancial assets
(c) Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Others
(b) Provisions
(c) Other Liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i)
Borrowings
(ii)
Trade Payables
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current tax liabilities (net)
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Notes forming part of the ﬁnancial statements
As per our attached report of even date
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035

31 March 2019

(₹ lakhs)

3
3
4
5
5

449.65
100.57
5.85
102.63
50.86

189.35
4.98
5.85
258.97
24.99

6
7
8
9
10
11

50,601.73
253.64
142.33
463.53
150.90
52,321.69

22,788.49
1,436.12
20,092.48
51.28
455.18
133.12
45,440.81

12

1,314.48

934.14

13
14
15 (a)
15 (b)
7
8
11

9,572.00
2,284.61
967.80
27.21
9,067.90
874.56
328.06
24,436.62
76,758.31

10,849.45
764.26
1,597.43
275.30
1.11
901.79
361.58
15,685.06
61,125.87

16
17

3,260.79
38,015.30
41,276.09

3,258.95
32,109.47
35,368.42

18
19 (b)
20
21

12,436.60
799.38
164.93
8,301.62
21,702.53

11,198.00
610.27
155.75
5,339.70
17,303.72

18
19 (a)

4,361.52

1,299.61

467.67
1897.81
3,704.78
3,313.88
33.90
0.13
13,779.69
35,482.22
76,758.31

251.98
548.86
3,111.87
2,942.86
92.78
205.77
8,453.73
25,757.45
61,125.87

Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income
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Note

31 March 2019

23
24

20,977.80
1,683.96
22,661.76

18,634.25
1,568.18
20,202.43

25
26
27
28
29

4,826.39
2,951.65
1,997.13
377.19
3,840.95
13,993.31

4,506.94
2,873.08
1,336.14
312.46
4,037.17
13,065.79

8,668.45

7,136.64

2,525.82
45.74
(15.38)
(57.32)

2,578.81
(18.19)
-

6,169.59

4,576.02

24.17

16.33

(7.04)

(5.65)

17.13

10.68

6,186.72

4,586.70

1.89
1.89

1.41
1.41

Total
Expenses
Operational cost
Employee beneﬁts expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total
Proﬁt before tax
Less : Tax expense
Current tax - current year
- earlier years
Deferred tax beneﬁt
MAT credit entitilement of earlier years
Proﬁt for the year
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(A)

Other comprehensive income
A. Items that will not be reclassiﬁed to proﬁt or loss
(i) Re-measurement of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassiﬁed
to the proﬁt or loss
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

19 (b)
21
20
22

Financial Statement

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(B)
(A+B)

Earnings per equity share (face value ` 1 each)
Basic
Diluted
Notes forming part of the ﬁnancial statements
As per our attached report of even date

(₹ lakhs)

31 March 2018

43
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For and on behalf of the board

For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035
Himanshu Mody

Sangeeta Pandit

Chairman

Director

Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215

Himanshu Mody
Chairman

Sangeeta Pandit
Director

Debshankar Mukhopadhyay
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer

Umesh Pradhan
Chief Financial Ofﬁcer

Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Bhautesh Shah
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019
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Debshankar Mukhopadhyay

Umesh Pradhan

Bhautesh Shah

Chief Executive Ofﬁcer

Chief Financial Ofﬁcer

Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

(₹ lakhs)
A.

Equity share capital
As at 01 April 2017
Changes in equity share capital
As at 31 March 2018
Changes in equity share capital
As at 31 March 2019

Note

(₹ Lakhs)
3,226.42
32.53
3,258.95
1.84
3,260.79

16a
16a

B. Other equity

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Final Equity Dividend
Tax on Final Equity Dividend
Shares option excercised
Share based payments
As at 31 March 2018
Proﬁt for the year
Other comprehensive income (Refer note 17)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Final Equity Dividend
Shares option excercised
Tax on Final Equity Dividend
Shared based payments
As at 31 March 2019

A.

406.25
406.25
406.25
812.50
812.50
406.25
406.25
1,218.75

Reserves and surplus
Share based
Securities
General
payment
premium
reserve
reserve
562.79
562.79
(335.70)
295.95
523.04
523.04
(18.84)
56.24
37.40
560.44

11,097.30
11,097.30
1,350.28
12,447.58
12,447.58
74.80
74.80
12,522.38

Retained
earnings

13,971.80
13,971.80
13,971.80
13,971.80
13,971.80

369.29
4,576.02
10.68
4,586.70
4,955.99
(406.25)
(162.17)
(33.02)
4,354.55
6,169.59
17.13
6,186.72
10,541.27
(406.25)
(326.07)
(67.02)
(799.34)
9,741.93

Total other
equity
26,407.43
4,576.02
10.68
4,586.70
30,994.13
(162.17)
(33.02)
1,014.58
295.95
32,109.47
6,169.59
17.13
6,186.72
38,296.19
(326.07)
55.96
(67.02)
56.24
(280.89)
38,015.30

Debenture redemption reserve is created out of the proﬁts which is available for payment of dividend for the purpose of redemption of debentures.
Share Based Payment Reserve is related to share options granted by the Company to its employee under its employee share option plan.
Securities premium is used to record premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.
General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer proﬁts from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. General Reserve includes `/Lakhs 8881.25
(2018 - `/Lakhs 8881.25) pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation, sanctioned by the Hon'ble Court of Bombay and shall not be used for the purpose of declaring
dividend.
5) Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings net of losses if any made by the Company over the years.

For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215

8,668.45

7,136.64

Depreciation and amortisation expense

377.19

312.46

Liabilities / excess provision written back

(57.01)

(37.90)

(4.49)

42.97

1,958.89

1,336.14

218.86

123.85

Adjustments for

1)
2)
3)
4)

Notes forming part of the ﬁnancial statements
As per our attached report of even date

(Proﬁt) / Loss on sale / impairment / discard of property, plant and equipment /
intangibles / capital work-in-progress (net)
Interest expenses
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision (beneﬁt) of deferred taxes
Dividend income
Interest income
Operating proﬁt before working capital changes

1-49
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(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables

(1,286.70)

(1,278.18)

9,871.55

7,631.19

(380.34)

431.41
64.37

5,015.90

4,575.26

Cash generated from operations

12,685.78

12,702.23

Direct taxes paid (net)

(2,810.93)

(2,305.42)

9,874.85

10,396.81

(547.33)

(195.46)

Net cash ﬂow from operating activities (A)
B. Cash ﬂow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets /
investment property / capital work-in-progress

22.64

(42.97)

Investments in bank deposits

Sale of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets

248.09

2.86

Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 12 months)

(33.25)

(44.69)

Sale of non current investments

1,277.45

2,998.71

Purchase of current investments

(7,813.24)

(646.93)

Amount given towards share allotment

Dividend received from others

Debshankar Mukhopadhyay Umesh Pradhan
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
Chief Financial Ofﬁcer

11.30
(16.09)

(1,821.33)

Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables

Dividend received from subsidiary company
Interest received

Sangeeta Pandit
Director

14.08
(17.72)

Adjustments for

Loans repaid by others

Himanshu Mody
Chairman

31 March 2018

Cash ﬂow from operating activities
Proﬁt before tax

(₹ Lakhs)
Debenture
redemption
reserve

As at 01 April 2017
Proﬁt for the year
Other comprehensive income (Refer note 17)
Total comprehensive income for the year

31 March 2019

Net cash ﬂow from / (used in) investing activities (B)

-

(20,000.00)

(7,630.67)

5,615.93

0.01

0.01

17.71

16.08

355.53

1,657.33

(14,103.06)

(10,639.13)

Bhautesh Shah
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019

Management Report

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
(₹ lakhs)

31 March 2019
C.

31 March 2018

1

(ii)

Zee Learn Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in State of
Maharashtra on 4 January, 2010. The Company is one of the most
diversiﬁed premium education companies which delivers learning
solutions and training through its multiple products viz. Kidzee, Mount
Litera Zee Schools, Mount Litera World Preschool, Zee Institute of
Media Arts (ZIMA), Zee Institute of Creative Arts (ZICA) and E Learning Online Education and Testing.

Cash ﬂow from ﬁnancing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares

57.80

1,382.81

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

6,723.13

238.82

Repayment of long-term borrowings

(6,475.50)

-

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

4,361.52

-

Repayment of short-term borrowings

-

(430.80)

Dividend paid (including dividend tax)

(381.13)

(191.80)

Interest paid

(687.24)

(498.90)

Net cash ﬂow from / (used in) ﬁnancing activities (C)

3,598.58

500.13

Net cash ﬂow during the year (A+B+C)

(629.63)

257.81

2

Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

1,597.43

1,339.62

a

Basis of preparation

967.80

1,597.43

27.21

275.30

995.01

1,872.73

Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Add : Balances earmarked
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year

The ﬁnancial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March
2019, were authorised for issue by the Audit Committeee and by the
Board of Directors at their meeting held on 17 May 2019

Previous year's ﬁgures have been regrouped, recast wherever necessary.
As per our attached report of even date

For and on behalf of the board

For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215

Himanshu Mody
Chairman

Director

Debshankar Mukhopadhyay

Umesh Pradhan

Bhautesh Shah

Chief Executive Ofﬁcer

Chief Financial Ofﬁcer

Company Secretary

Sangeeta Pandit

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the ﬁnancial statements and notes have been
rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III
(except per share data), unless otherwise stated. Zero ‘0’ denotes
amount less than ` 50,000/Current non-current classiﬁcation

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019

All assets and liabilities have been classiﬁed as current or non-current
as per the Company’s normal operating cycle (twelve months) and
other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.
b

Property, plant and equipment
(i)
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c

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (except freehold
land which is stated at cost), if any. The cost comprises purchase
price, borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use.

Annual Report 2018-19

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant and
equipment and related expenses that are not yet ready for their
intended use at the reporting date.
Investment property
Investment property is land held for capital appreciation. Investment
property is measured initially at cost including purchase price. It is
measured and carried at cost.

d

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired or developed are measured on initial
recognition at cost and stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment loss, if any.

e

These ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as
notiﬁed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, as and when amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed there under and
guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).
These ﬁnancial statements have been prepared and presented under
the historical cost convention, on the accural basis of accounting except
for certain ﬁnancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting
policies stated out below.

Notes:
1.

Corporate Information

Depreciation / amortisation on property, plant and equipment /
intangible assets
Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment / intangible ﬁxed
assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less
its estimated residual value.
(i)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment(except freehold land
which is stated at cost) is provided on straight-line method as per
the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii)

Leasehold Improvements are amortised over the period of Lease.

(iii) Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over their
respective individual useful lives estimated by the management.
f

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If there are indicators of
impairment, an assessment is made to determine whether the asset’s
carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
An impairment is recognised in statement of proﬁt and loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of net
selling price, deﬁned as the fair value less costs to sell, and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash ﬂows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reﬂects current market rates and risks speciﬁc to the asset.
An impairment loss for an individual asset or cash generating unit are
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised and
is only reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised. Impairment loss are recognised in the statement of proﬁt
and loss.
g

freight and other expense incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Costs are taken on weighted average
basis and speciﬁc identiﬁcation method.
k

Derecognition of property, plant and equipment / intangibles /
investment property
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment /
intangibles is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
beneﬁts are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment /
intangibles is measured as the difference between the net disposal in
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the
statement of proﬁt and loss when the item is derecognised.

h

(i)

Finance lease

(ii) Operating lease

i

Cash and cash equivalents
(i)

(ii)

j

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at
banks and in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insigniﬁcant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash ﬂows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as deﬁned
as they are considered s integral part of company's cash
management.

Inventories
Educational goods and equipments are valued at lower of cost or
estimated net realizable value. Cost comprises cost of purchase,
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(A) Financial assets

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
signiﬁcant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall
into different levels of a fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is signiﬁcant to the entire
measurement.

Leases are classiﬁed as ﬁnance leases whenever the terms of the
lease, transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classiﬁed as operating leases.

Lease of assets under which all the risks and rewards of
ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classiﬁed as
operating leases. Operating Lease payments / revenue are
recognised on straight line basis over the lease period in the
statement of proﬁt and loss account unless increase is on account
of inﬂation.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the
measurement of fair values. The management regularly reviews
signiﬁcant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
signiﬁcant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable, or

Leases

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
occurred.
l

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets are classiﬁed into the following speciﬁed categories:
amortised cost, ﬁnancial assets ‘at Fair value through proﬁt and loss'
(FVTPL), ‘Fair value through other comprehensive income' (FVTOCI).
The classiﬁcation depends on the Company's business model for
managing the ﬁnancial assets and the contractual terms of cash ﬂows.
(B) Debt instrument
(a) Amortised cost
A ﬁnancial asset is subsequently measured at amortised
cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash ﬂows and
the contractual terms of the ﬁnancial asset give rise on
speciﬁed dates to cash ﬂows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.
(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classiﬁed as at the FVTOCI if both of the
following criteria are met:
a)

b)

Financial instruments is any contract that gives rise to a ﬁnancial asset
of one entity and a ﬁnancial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Initial recognition
Financial assets are recognized when the company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the ﬁnancial instruments.
Financial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities
(other than ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities at fair value
through proﬁt and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the ﬁnancial assets or ﬁnancial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
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( c) Fair value through Proﬁt and Loss (FVTPL)

attributable to the acquisition of ﬁnancial assets or ﬁnancial
liabilities at fair value through proﬁt and loss are recognised
immediately in the statement of proﬁt and loss.
(ii) Subsequent measurement

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Fair value measurement

All ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the ﬁnancial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is signiﬁcant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Management Report

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is
classiﬁed as at FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to
designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is
considered only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch).
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair
value with all changes recognized in the statement of proﬁt and loss.
( C) Equity investments
The Company measures all equity investments other than its
subsidiaries at fair value through proﬁt and loss. Where the Company's
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassiﬁcation of fair value gains and losses to statement
of proﬁt and loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in
statement of proﬁt and loss as other income when the Company's right
to receive payment is established.
Investment in subsidiaries Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost
less impairment loss in accordance with IND AS 27 on "Separate
Financial Statements". Refer note 6 for list of investments.
(iii) Derecognition of ﬁnancial assets

The objective of the business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash ﬂows and selling the
ﬁnancial assets.

a)

The asset’s contractual cash ﬂows represent solely
payments of principal and interest.

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash ﬂows
from the asset or the rights have expired or

b)

The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
ﬂows of the ﬁnancial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash ﬂows to one or more recipients in an arrangement
Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company
evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the ﬁnancial asset. In such cases, the
ﬁnancial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
ﬁnancial asset, the ﬁnancial asset is not derecognised.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category
are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in
the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or
loss in the statement of proﬁt and loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassiﬁed from the
equity to statement of proﬁt and loss. Interest earned
whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.
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A ﬁnancial asset is derecognised only when

(iv) Impairment of ﬁnancial assets
The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its
assets based on historical trend, industry practices and the business
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt or equity instruments issued by the Company are classiﬁed as
either ﬁnancial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the deﬁnitions of a
ﬁnancial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

m

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

(ii)

(v) Financial liabilities subsequent measurement
Classiﬁcation
Financial liabilties are recognized when company becomes party to
contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company classiﬁes all
ﬁnancial liabilities at amortised cost or fair value through proﬁt or loss.

n

The measurement of ﬁnancial liabilities depends on their classiﬁcation,
as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through proﬁt or loss include ﬁnancial
liabilities held for trading and ﬁnancial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through proﬁt or loss. Financial liabilities are
classiﬁed as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the proﬁt or loss.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the ﬁnancial statements, however
they are disclosed where the inﬂow of economic beneﬁts is probable.
When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is
no longer a contingent asset and is recognised as an asset.

Derecognition of ﬁnancial liabilities
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The standard is applied retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed as at the date of initial application and the comparative
information is not restated in the ﬁnancial statements – i.e. the
comparative information continues to be reported under Ind AS 18.

Revenue recognition
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Retirement and other employee beneﬁts
(i)

(ii)

Services
a) Course fees and Royalty income is recognized over the duration of
the course and as per agreed terms
b) Franchise fees is recognized as per the agreed terms of the
agreement.
c) Revenue from other services is recognised as and when such
services are completed/performed.

For deﬁned beneﬁt plans, actuarial valuations are carried out at
each balance sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
All such plans are unfunded.
(ii)

q

(iv) Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive
dividend is established.

Transactions in foreign currencies
(i)

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees (“ ` ”).
Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of such transactions.

(ii)

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on settlement of monetary items or on reporting
such monetary items at rates different from those at which they
were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous
ﬁnancial statements are recognised as income or as expenses in
the period in which they arise.

(iii) Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at historical cost
and translated at the exchange rate prevelant at the date of the
transaction.

Arrangements with Multiple Performance Obligations
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Short term employee beneﬁts:
All employee beneﬁts payable wholly within twelve months of
rendering the service are classiﬁed as short term employee beneﬁts
and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders
the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted
amount of short term employee beneﬁts expected to be paid in
exchange for services rendered as a liability.

(iii) Interest income from ﬁnancial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic beneﬁts will ﬂow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the ﬁnancial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Company’s contracts with customers may include multiple
performance obligations. For such arrangements, the Company
allocates revenue to each performance obligation based on its
relative standalone selling price, which is generally determined
based on the price charged to customers.

The Company operates both deﬁned beneﬁt and deﬁned
contribution schemes for its employees.
For deﬁned contribution schemes the amount charged as expense
is equal to the contributions paid or payable when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Sales - Educational goods and equipments /content is recognised
upfront at the point in time when the goods/ equipments/ content is
delivered to the customer via online/ofﬂine delivery, wherever
applicable, while the Company retains neither managerial involvement
nor the effective control.

B.

The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notiﬁed Ind AS
115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" related to revenue
recognition which replaces all existing revenue recognition standards
and provide a single, comprehensive model for all contracts with
customers. The revised standard contains principles to determine the

p

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is recognised only when it can be reliably measured
and it is probable that future economic beneﬁts will ﬂow to the Company.
Transaction price is accounted net of GST. Since GST is not received by the
company on its own account, rather, it is collected by the Company on
behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.
(i)

Contract assets and liabilities
Contract assets relate primarily to the Company’s rights to
consideration for work completed but not billed at each reporting
date. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights
become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company
issues an invoice to a customer. Contract liabilities primarily relate
to consideration received in advance from customers, for which
the performance obligation is yet to be satisﬁed.

A. Revenue

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not require
an outﬂow of resources embodying economic beneﬁts or the amount of
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of
outﬂow of resources embodying economic beneﬁts is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made.

Financial liabilities at fair value through proﬁt or loss

(v) Determination of fair value

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assets till the time such assets are ready for intended
use are capitalised as part of cost of the assets. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event exists and it is probable
that an outﬂow of resources embodying economic beneﬁts will be
required to settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation
can be reliably estimated.

Subsequent measurement

A ﬁnancial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing ﬁnancial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modiﬁed, such an exchange or modiﬁcation is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of proﬁt or loss.

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs
incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Proﬁt and
Loss over the period of the borrowings using the EIR.

C.

measurement of revenue and timing of when it is recognized. The
amendment also requires additional disclosure about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash ﬂows arising from
customer contracts, including signiﬁcant judgments and changes in
those judgments as well as assets recognized from costs incurred to
fulﬁll these contracts.

Borrowings and borrowing costs
(i)

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.
In determining the fair value of its ﬁnancial instruments, the Company
uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market
conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used
to determine fair value include discounted cash ﬂow analysis and
available quoted market prices. All methods of assessing fair value
result in general approximation of value, and such value may never
actually be realized.

enviornment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a signiﬁcant increase in credit risk.

Management Report
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Accounting for taxes on income
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
(i)

carrying amount exceeds its recoverable value. The recoverable
amount is the greater of an asset’s or cash generating unit's, net selling
price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash ﬂows are discounted to the present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reﬂects current market assessment of the time value of money
and risks speciﬁc to the assets. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of proﬁt and loss in the year in which an asset is identiﬁed as
impaired. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. The
impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed by
crediting the statement of proﬁt and loss if there has been a change in
the estimate of recoverable amount.

Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of
taxable proﬁt for a period. Current tax for current and prior periods
is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered
from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the ﬁnancial statements except
when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability that effects neither accounting nor taxable proﬁt or loss
at the time of transition.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax beneﬁt will be realized.

u

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled.
Presentation of current and deferred tax
Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense
in the statement of proﬁt and loss, except to the extent they relate
to items recognized in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the current and deferred tax income / expense are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
(iii) Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in accordance with tax laws,
which give rise to future economic beneﬁts in the form of
adjustment of future tax liability, is recognised as an asset only
when, based on convincing evidence, it is probable that the future
economic beneﬁts associated with it will ﬂow to the Company and
the assets can be measured reliably.
s

Impairment of non-ﬁnancial assets
The carrying amounts of non ﬁnancial assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the
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v

Equity shares are classiﬁed as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Certain occassions, the size, type, or incidences of the item of income or
expenses pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Company is such
that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the
Company, such income or expenses is classiﬁed as an exceptional item
and accordingly, disclosed in the ﬁnancial statements.
z

a

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise
from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential
liabilities that have a low probability of crystallising or are very
difﬁcult to quantify reliably, are treated as contingent liabilities.
Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in
the ﬁnancial statements. There can be no assurance regarding
the ﬁnal outcome of these legal proceedings.

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition
method under the provisions of Ind AS 103, Business Combinations.

Annual Report 2018-19

Contingencies

b

Useful lives and residual values
The Company reviews the useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at each
ﬁnancial year end.

c

Impairment testing
i

Judgment is also required in evaluating the likelihood of
collection of customer debt after revenue has been
recognised. This evaluation requires estimates to be made,
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e

Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has
any indication of impairment also requires judgment. If an
indication of impairment is identiﬁed, further judgment is
required to assess whether the carrying amount can be
supported by the net present value of future cash ﬂows forecast
to be derived from the asset. This forecast involves cash ﬂow
projections and selecting the appropriate discount rate.

Tax
i

The Company’s tax charge is the sum of the total current and
deferred tax charges. The calculation of the Company’s total
tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and
judgment in respect of certain items whose tax treatment
cannot be ﬁnally determined until resolution has been
reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate,
through a formal legal process.

ii

Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make
judgments and estimates in relation to tax related issues and
exposures.

iii

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether
it is more likely than not that sufﬁcient and suitable taxable
proﬁts will be available in the future against which the
reversal of temporary differences can be deducted. Where
the temporary differences are related to losses, the
availability of the losses to offset against forecast taxable
proﬁts is also considered. Recognition therefore involves
judgment regarding the future ﬁnancial performance of the
particular legal entity or tax Company in which the deferred
tax asset has been recognized.

Critical accounting judgment and estimates

Business combinations

Business combinations between entities under common control is
accounted for at carrying value. Transaction costs that the Company
incurs in connection with a business combination such as ﬁnder’s fees,
legal fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting
fees are expensed as incurred.

d

Exceptional items

The Company recognizes compensation expense relating to sharebased payments in net proﬁt using fair-value in accordance with Ind AS
102, Share-Based Payment. The estimated fair value of awards is
charged to statement of proﬁt and loss on a straight-line basis over the
requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award
as if the award was in-substance, multiple awards with a corresponding
increase to share based payment reserves.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets
transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is
transferred to the Company. The cost of acquisition also includes the fair
value of any contingent consideration. Identiﬁable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition.

ii

Contributed equity

The preparation of ﬁnancial statements requires management to
exercise judgment in applying the Company’s accounting policies. It
also requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the
accompanying disclosures including disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with
revisions recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

Share based payments

including the level of provision to be made for amounts with
uncertain recovery proﬁles. Provisions are based on historical
trends in the percentage of debts which are not recovered, or
on more detailed reviews of individually signiﬁcant balances.

Dividend
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or before
the end of the reporting period but remaining undistributed at the end of
the reporting period, where the same has been appropriately authorised
and is no longer at the discretion of the entity.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive
earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares
outstanding during the period, except when the results would be antidilutive.

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
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Deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
The costs of providing pensions and other post-employment beneﬁts
are charged to the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss in accordance with Ind
AS 19 ‘Employee beneﬁts’ over the period during which beneﬁt is
derived from the employees’ services. The costs are assessed on the
basis of assumptions selected by the management. These
assumptions include salary escalation rate, discount rates, expected
rate of return on assets and mortality rates. The same is disclosed in
Note 44-, ‘Employee beneﬁts’.
Recent accounting pronouncements
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards)
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Amendment Rules, 2018, notifying Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 115
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”; notifying amendments to Ind AS
12 “Income Taxes” and Ind AS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates”. Ind AS 115, amendments to the Ind AS 12 and Ind AS 21
are applicable to the Company w.e.f. 1 April 2018.

accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies
have used or plan to use in their income tax ﬁling which has to be considered
to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment
when determining taxable proﬁt (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - i) Full retrospective
approach – Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively
to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with IAS 8 –
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without
using hindsight and ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially
applying Appendix 23 recognized by adjusting equity on initial application,
without adjusting comparatives.

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the
date of issuance of the Company’s ﬁnancial statements are disclosed below.
The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they
become effective.
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 amending the following standard.
IND AS 116 Leases
Ind AS 116 Leases was notiﬁed on 31 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17
Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet
model similar to the accounting for ﬁnance leases under Ind AS 17. The
standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees – leases of ‘lowvalue’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease,
a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be also required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a
change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as
an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today’s
accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using
the same classiﬁcation principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two
types of leases: operating and ﬁnance leases.
Amendment to Ind AS
Ind AS 12 Income Taxes
Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments:
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of corporate Affairs has notiﬁed Ind AS 12
Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied
while performing the determination of taxable proﬁt ( or loss ), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty
over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to Appendix ,
companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority
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Property, plant and equipment
(` Lakhs)
Description of Assets

I. Deemed Cost as at 31 March 2017

Furniture and
Fittings

Vehicles

Equipments

Computers

Leasehold
Improvements

Total

25.10

-

38.72

95.10

19.32

178.24

Additions

2.69

-

76.14

50.94

38.66

168.43

Disposals

14.33

-

28.64

-

-

42.97

As at 31 March 2018

13.46

-

86.22

146.04

57.98

303.70

Additions

19.10

21.57

146.34

100.10

96.06

383.17

Disposals

-

-

0.98

100.61

-

101.59

32.56

21.57

231.58

145.53

154.04

585.28

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2019, though early adoption is permitted. The
Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust
the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019
without adjusting comparatives.

As at 31 March 2019

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insigniﬁcant in the
ﬁnancial statements.

II. Depreciation upto 31 March 2017

4.66

-

18.68

26.02

14.41

63.77

Amendment to Ind AS 12 – Income taxes :

Depreciation charge for the year

4.21

-

10.44

29.75

6.20

50.59

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the
guidance in Ind AS 12, issued , ‘Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting
for dividend distribution taxes.

Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

-

upto 31 March 2018

8.87

-

29.12

55.77

20.61

114.36

Depreciation charge for the year

2.32

0.78

30.09

49.18

22.33

104.70

-

-

0.62

82.81

-

83.43

11.19

0.78

58.59

22.14

42.94

135.63

The amendment clariﬁes that an entity shall recognize the income tax
consequences of dividends in proﬁt or loss, other comprehensive income or
equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past
transactions or events.

Disposals

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on
or after April 1, 2019, although early application is permitted. The Company
is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the consolidated
ﬁnancial statements.

Net book value

Ind AS 19- Employee Beneﬁts

As at 31 March 2019

21.37

20.79

172.99

123.39

111.11

449.65

Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement : On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Beneﬁts’, in
connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

As at 31 March 2018

4.59

-

57.10

90.29

37.37

189.35

The amendments require an entity:

Net book value

• to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net
interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and

upto 31 March 2019

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Property, plant and equipment

449.65

189.35

Capital work-in-progress

100.57

4.98

• to recognize in proﬁt or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on
settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not
previously recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling.
Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on
or after April 1, 2019, although early application is permitted. The Company
does not have any impact on account of this amendment.
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Investment property

5

Intangible assets

(` Lakhs)
Description of Assets

Freehold Land

Description of Assets

5.85
-

5.85
-

As at 31 March 2018

5.85

5.85

-

-

5.85

5.85

II. Depreciation upto 31 March 2017
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

-

-

upto 31 March 2018

-

-

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

-

-

upto 31 March 2019

-

-

As at 31 March 2019

Net book value
As at 31 March 2019
As at 31 March 2018
Fair value
As at 31 March 2019
As at 31 March 2018

5.85
5.85

11.95
11.61

5.85
5.85

Content Development

Software

Total

I. Deemed Cost as at 31 March 2017
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

793.35
5.82
-

50.87
-

844.22
5.82
-

At cost as at 31 March 2018

799.17

50.87

850.04

8.65
-

107.52
-

116.17
-

At cost as at 31 March 2019

807.82

158.39

966.21

II. Amortization upto 31 March 2017
Amortisation for the year
Disposal

297.94
250.14
-

31.27
11.72
-

329.21
261.86
-

upto 31 March 2018

548.08

42.99

591.07

Amortisation for the year
Disposal

249.81
-

22.70
-

272.51
-

upto 31 March 2019

797.89

65.69

863.58

Net book value
As at 31 March 2019
As at 31 March 2018

9.93
251.09

92.70
7.88

102.63
258.97

Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

11.95
11.61
Net book value

a) Acquired pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement is mortgaged against the Secured Debentures.
b) The fair value of the Company’s investment property has been arrived by the management on the basis of a appropriate ready reckoner value. The fair
value measurement is categorised as Level 3.
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(` Lakhs)

Total

I. Deemed Cost as at 31 March 2017
Additions
Disposals

Additions
Disposals
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Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets under Development
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

102.63

258.97

50.86

24.99
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Non-current investments - Unquoted

8

Other ﬁnancial assets

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

(` Lakhs)

31 March 2018
31 March 2019

Investments carried at cost
Investment in Equity instruments
In wholly owned subsidiaries
5,010,000 (2018-5,010,000) Equity shares of ` 10/- each of Digital Ventures Private Limited
(Refer below note 1)
1,000 (2018-1000) Equity shares of `10/- each of Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited

Deposit with banks having original maturity period
of more than twelve months (refer note 15 b)

1,000 (2018-1000) Equity shares of ` 10/- each of Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
In subsidiaries - Others
42,701,173 (2018-Nil) Equity shares of ` 10/- each of MT Educare Limited extent of holding
as 59.12% (2018-Nil) (Refer note 40)
Investment in Convertible Debentures
In wholly owned subsidiaries-unquoted
11,324,045 (2018-11,324,045) 0.01 %, Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of ` 100/of Digital Ventures Private Limited (Refer below note 2)

10,601.00
0.10

10,601.00
0.10

0.10

0.10

27,812.22

-

11,327.64

11,326.62

860.67

860.67

50,601.73

22,788.49

Non-Current
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Current
31 March 2018

34.47

1.22

-

-

-

20,000.00

-

-

219.17

91.26

81.54
50.01

70.23
248.55

Premium on redemption of Preference shares - related parties

-

-

723.00

583.00

Claims receivable
Dividend receivable

-

-

20.00
0.01

0.01

253.64

20,092.48

874.56

901.79

Amount given towards share allotment *
Advances and deposits - unsecured and considered good
- to related parties
- to others

Total

Others - In wholly owned subsidiaries
Fair value of ﬁnancial guarantee issued

Financial Statement

* During the previous year, as required by regulation 22(2A) of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, the
Subscription Shares i.e. 3,19,64,200 equity shares having face value of ` 10 each at a price of ` 62.57 (including a premium of ` 52.57/-) each of MT
Educare Limited subscribed to by Zee Learn Limited on a preferential allotment basis was kept in an escrow account.
Zee Learn Limited shall not be able to exercise its voting rights in relation to the Subscription Shares until the completion of the proposed open offer.

Total

9

(All the above securities are fully paid up)
1

Non disposal undertaking for 51% shares held by the Company for loan taken by subsidiary Company viz Digital Ventures Private Limited

2

0.01 %, Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD) of ` 100 each fully paid up are compulsorily convertible into equity shares at a conversion rate to be

Income tax assets (net)

(` Lakhs)

Balances with government authorities
- Direct taxes (net of provisions)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

142.33

51.28

142.33

51.28

decided based on fair value of equity shares any time from the date of allotment but not later than 10 years from the date of allotment.
Total
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

50,601.73

22,788.49

10

Deferred tax assets
The components of deferred tax balances are as under:

7

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

57.90

63.52

Depreciation and amortization

257.92

322.78

Provision for expected credit loss

121.69

68.88

Disallowance under section 40(a)

26.02

-

463.53

455.18

(` Lakhs)

Loans

Deferred tax assets
Non-Current
31 March 2019
31 March 2018
Loans receivables
Subsidiaries - considered good (Unsecured)
Total

144

Current
31 March 2019
31 March 2018

-

1,436.12

9,067.90

1.11

-

1,436.12

9,067.90

1.11
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(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

Non-Current
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Current
31 March 2018

44.60

26.59

-

-

Other loans and advances (unsecured)
Other advances (unsecured)
- Considered good
- Considered doubtful

Prepaid expenses

33.71
33.71
(33.71)
6.03

33.71
33.71
(33.71)
32.80

205.32
205.32
205.32
85.93

107.52
107.52
107.52
195.32

Balance with government authorities
- Advance indirect taxes

100.27

73.73

36.81

58.74

150.90

133.12

328.06

361.58

Less: Allowances for credit losses

Total
12

Inventories
31 March 2019

Total
13
A]

934.14

1,314.48

934.14

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(` Lakhs)

Investment at amortised cost
Investment in preference shares
Wholly owned subsidiaries - unquoted
100,000(100,000) 0.1%, Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares of ` 10/- each of Digital Ventures Private Limited *

Trade receivables

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

2,284.61

764.26

Signiﬁcant increase in credit risk

417.90

199.04

Less: Impairment loss allowance

2,702.51
(417.90)

963.30
(199.04)

2,284.61

764.26

Considered good - unsecured

Total
For transactions relating to related party receivables, refer note 45.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the credit period extended to them is 0-180 days.
15

a

Cash and bank balances

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

967.74
0.06

1,597.32
0.11

967.80

1,597.43

11.96
15.25
34.47
61.68
(34.47)

136.00
3.39
135.91
1.22
276.52
(1.22)

Total (B)

27.21

275.30

Total (A+B)

995.01

1,872.73

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - In Current accounts #
Cash in hand

31 March 2018

1,314.48

Current investments

Total (A)
b

Other balances with banks
Balances with banks - In escrow account *
- In current accounts
- In deposits with banks having original maturity period upto twelve months #
- In deposits with banks having original maturity period of more than twelve months #
Disclosed under "Other non-current ﬁnancial assets"

(A)
B]

14

(` Lakhs)

Educational goods and equipments

9,572.00
9,572.00

9,572.00
9,572.00

Investments carried at fair value through Proﬁt and loss
Mutual funds - Quoted (at face value of ` 1000 each)
Nil (2018 - 44,054) units of Axis Liquid Fund -Direct Plan - Daily dividend reinvestment
Nil (2018 - 160,101) units of ICICI Preudential Liquid Fund - Direct plan - Daily dividend
Nil (2018 - 674,749) units of ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Direct plan - Daily dividend

Financial Statement
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Other assets

Capital advances (unsecured)

Management Report

(B)

-

440.97
160.37
676.11
1,277.45

Total (A+B)

9,572.00

10,849.45

9,572.00

1,277.45
9,572.00

* represent amount deposited on account of open offer for MT Educare Limited
# Pledged/Lien for Term Loan/debentures Nil (2018 - Nil), Lien for Government authorities 0.50 ` /lakhs (2018 - 0.50 ` /lakhs) Lien for others 43.10 ` /lakhs
(2018 - 621.50 ` /lakhs)

(All the above securities are fully paid up)
Aggregate amount of quoted Investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments
*
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0.1% Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares will be redeemable anytime at the request of the investor on or before 31 March
2022 at a premium of ` 10,705 per share. In case of early redemption the premium will be decided by mutual consent on the date of redemption.
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Equity share capital

d)

Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the aggregate Equity shares

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019
Authorised
1,000,000,000 (2018 - 1,000,000,000) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid up
326,078,725 (2018 - 325,895,472) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each fully paid up
Total
a)

10,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

3,260.79

3,258.95

3,260.79

3,258.95

Name of the Shareholders

31 March 2019
Number of
equity shares

Jayneer Infrapower & Multiventures Private Limited
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Polus Global Fund
Moon Capital Trading Pte. Ltd

76,875,375
63,052,512
20,856,608
20,955,327

Number of
equity shares

` Lakhs

Number of
equity shares

` Lakhs

At the beginning of the year
Add : Allotted on exercise of Employee Stock Option

325,895,472
183,253

3,258.95
1.84

322,642,381
3,253,091

3,226.42
32.53

Outstanding at the end of the year

326,078,725

3,260.79

325,895,472

3,258.95

Terms / rights attached to equity shares

e)

% Shareholding

77,975,375
63,052,512
23,825,743
20,955,327

23.93%
19.35%
7.31%
6.43%

Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP)
The Company has amended its Employee Stock Option scheme (ZLL ESOP 2010) to ZLL ESOP 2010- AMENDED 2015 to align the scheme with provisions
of Companies Act 2013 and the SEBI (Shared Based Employee Beneﬁts) Regulations 2014 for issuance of upto 16,007,451 stock options (increased from
6,136,390) convertible into equivalent number of equity shares of ` 1 each not exceeding the aggregate of 5% of the issued and paid up capital of the
Company to the employees of the Company and its susbsidiary viz Digital Ventures Private Limited as amended in board resoultion dated 30 September
2016 at the market price determined as per the SEBI (Shared Based Employee Beneﬁts) Regulations 2014. The said Scheme is administered by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board.

f)

Summary of options granted under the Scheme
31 March 2019
Average exercise price
per share option `

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
The Company has not issued any bonus shares or bought back equity shares during the ﬁve years preceding 31 March 2019. Details of aggregate
number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the ﬁve years preceding 31 March 2019 is as under:
31 March 2019
Equity Shares allotted as fully paid for consideration other than cash,
pursuant to Scheme(s) of Amalgamation / Arrangement

148

23.58%
19.34%
6.40%
6.43%

Number of
equity shares

31 March 2018

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1 each. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

c)

% Shareholding

31 March 2018

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneﬁcial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneﬁcial ownership of shares.

Reconciliation of number of Equity shares and Share capital
31 March 2019

b)

31 March 2018

262,238,599

31 March 2018
262,238,599

Annual Report 2018-19

Opening balance
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year (Refer Note (i) below)
Forfeited during the year

34.96
36.90
31.54
36.82

31 March 2018
Number of
options
5,694,720
25,000
183,253
363,842

Average exercise price
per share option `
32.52
42.28
32.23
32.64

Number of
options
8,017,007
1,312,254
3,253,091
381,450

Closing balance

5,172,625

5,694,720

Vested and exercisable

3,730,205

2,445,512
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Expiry date and exercise prices of the share options outstanding at the end of the year:

I)

Expense arising from share based payments transactions

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

Grant date

Expiry date

Thursday, January 27, 2011
Monday, January 30, 2012
Wednesday, October 09, 2013
Wednesday, April 02, 2014
Monday, September 29, 2014
Wednesday, October 28, 2015
Monday, July 25, 2016
Friday, September 30, 2016
Monday, January 15, 2018
Monday, February 19, 2018
Thursday, August 09, 2018

Exercise price
`

Saturday, January 27, 2018
Wednesday, January 30, 2019
Friday, October 09, 2020
Friday, April 02, 2021
Wednesday, September 29, 2021
Friday, October 28, 2022
Tuesday, July 25, 2023
Saturday, September 30, 2023
Wednesday, January 15, 2025
Wednesday, February 19, 2025
Saturday, August 09, 2025

Share options
31 March 2019
31 March 2018

26.05
14.50
20.85
27.55
35.25
31.80
31.40
34.15
46.50
42.20
36.90

Total
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period
h)

47,367
467,286
2,152,490
50,000
1,271,299
25,000
1,134,183
25,000

7,725
66,886
533,386
2,322,490
50,000
1,401,979
25,000
1,287,254
-

5,172,625

5,694,720

4.23

5.22

Gross expense / (reversal) arising from share based payments
Less: Options granted/(forfeited) to/(from) employees of subsidiaries
recognised as deemed investment in subsidiaries
Employee share based payment expense /(reversal) recognised in
statement of proﬁt and loss (Refer note 26)

1st Grant

2nd Grant

3rd Grant

4th Grant

5th Grant

Grant date
Weighted average fair value of options granted `

27/1/2011
23.82

30/1/2012
6.89

09/10/2013
7.98

02/04/2014
400.48

29/9/2014
13.3

Exercise price `

26.05

14.50

20.85

27.55

35.25

Share price at the grant date `

24.70

14.50

22.25

26.85

35.30

41.56%
6.89%
0.00%
0.66

38.53%
6.93%
0.00%
0.92

36.90%
7.01%
0.00%
1.72

37.02%
7.10%
0.00%
1.92

38.82%
7.15%
0.00%
2.25

Expected volatility
Risk free interest rate
Dividend yield
Expected life of the options (years)

Scheme
Grant date
Weighted average fair value of
options granted `

6th Grant

7th Grant

8th Grant

9th Grant

10th Grant

11th Grant

28/10/2015

25/07/2016

30/09/2016

15/01/2018

19/02/2018

09/08/2018

3.03

200.24

4.80

922.16

15.15

-

Exercise price `

31.80

31.40

34.15

46.50

42.20

36.90

Share price at the grant date `

32.15

31.35

35.20

46.80

42.75

36.90

38.87%
7.21%
0.00%
2.79

37.56%
6.36%
0.00%
2.57

35.81%
6.38%
0.00%
2.75

35.05%
7.04%
0.00%
3.3

35.05%
7.04%
0.00%
3.4

35.02%
7.98%
0.25%
3.86

Expected volatility
Risk free interest rate
Dividend yield
Expected life of the options (years)

56.24

295.96

-

-

56.24

295.96

Notes:
(I)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2019 was ` 31.54 (31 March 2018: ` 32.23).

17

Other equity

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

Reserves and surplus
Debenture redemption reserve
As per last Balance sheet
Add: Transferred from statement of proﬁt and loss account

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the black scholes model with the following assumptions

Scheme

31 March 2018

Securities premium
As per last Balance sheet
Add: On issue of shares under Employee stock option plan
Shared based payment reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Options granted during the year
Transfer to Securities Premium on allotment of shares
General reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
Retained earnings
Opening balance
Add : Proﬁt for the year
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on deﬁned beneﬁt plans
Income tax impact thereon
Less : Appropriations
Transferred to Debenture redemption reserve
Dividend on Equity shares
Tax on dividend on Equity shares
Total

31 March 2018

812.50
406.25

406.25
406.25

1,218.75

812.50

12,447.58
74.80

11,097.30
1,350.28

12,522.38

12,447.58

523.04
56.24
(18.84)

562.79
295.95
(335.70)

560.44

523.04

13,971.80

13,971.80

13,971.80

13,971.80

4,354.55
6,169.59
24.17
(7.04)

369.29
4,576.02
16.33
(5.65)

(406.25)
(326.07)
(67.02)
9,741.93

(406.25)
(162.17)
(33.02)
4,354.55

38,015.30

32,109.47

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.
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Borrowings

(` Lakhs)

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Debentures (Refer note (i) below)

9,540.01

8,516.89

-

-

Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured (Refer note (ii) below)
[(Including interest 186.24 ` /lakhs, (2018-132.25 ` /lakhs)]

1,485.85

-

-

1,299.61

Total (A)

11,025.86

Others - Secured
Term loan from banks (Refer note (iii) below)
Working capital loan (Refer note (iv) below)
Bank overdraft facility (Refer note (v) below)

1,410.74

2,681.11

-

-

Less: Amount disclosed under the head "Other ﬁnancial
liabilities" (Refer Note 19 b)
Total (B)
Total (A+B)

19

(` Lakhs)
Non-Current
31 March 2019
31 March 2018

-

1,299.61

1,322.92
800.70
3,560.82

828.04

(1,322.92)

(828.04)

a

b

-

1,410.74

2,681.11

4,361.52

-

12,436.60

11,198.00

4,361.52

1,299.61

Debentures
650 (2018-650) 10.40% Rated, Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures of Rs. 10.00 Lakhs each fully paid up aggregating to `/lakhs
6500.00, are issued for a period of 5 years and 3 months from the date of allotment. Debentures will be redeemed on July 8, 2020 in single tranche. The
debentures are secured by ﬁrst pari passu charge on all the ﬁxed and current assets, all the rights, titles and interests to provide security cover of 1.1 times
on outstanding amount and DSRA Undertaking by a related party.

(ii) Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured
The loan carries Interest @12.5% p.a and is repayable on or before 31 March 2023.

Trade payables (refer note 36)
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total (A)
Other ﬁnancial liabilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Deposits received - Customers
Deposits received - Others
Financial guarantee obligation
Unclaimed dividend
Employee beneﬁts payable
Creditors for capital expenditure
Book overdraft
Deferred deposit others
Other payables (Refer note 36)
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

Current
31 March 2019
31 March 2018

-

-

467.67

251.98

-

-

1897.81
2,365.48

548.86
800.84

10.45
484.23
304.70
-

10.00
252.04
348.23
-

1,322.92
2.00
11.96
48.31
91.48
341.85

828.04
2.00
3.39
22.96
65.55
-

-

-

7.01

3.25

-

-

1879.25

2186.68

Total (B)

799.38

610.27

3,704.78

3,111.87

Total (A+B)

799.38

610.27

6,070.26

3,912.71

For transactions relating to related party payables refer Note 45.
Trade payable and others are non-interest bearing and the credit term the for same is generally in the range of 0-90 days.

(iii) Term loans from banks

20

Term loan from bank 2721.59 `/lakhs (2018-3500 `/lakhs) is secured by way of ﬁrst ranking charge over movable assets including current assets, loans &
advances with minimum coverage of 1.25x for entire tenor of the facility which includes charge on the accounts that receive cash from franchisee/revenue
of the Company plus DSRA equivalent to 1 months interest to be maintained upfront and one immediate installment to be maintained one month prior to its
schedule payment. The loan carries interest of 9.95% and is repayable in 12 quarterly installments beginning from ﬁnancial year 2018-19.
(iv) Working capital loan from bank 800.00 `/lakhs (2018- Nil) Secured by way of ﬁrst pari passu charge on all movable assets including current assets, loans
and advances with minimum coverage of 1.25% for the entire tenor facility which includes charge on the accounts that receives cash revenue from
franchisee, plus DSRA equivalent to 1 month interest to be maintained upfront and one immediate installment to maintained one month prior to its schedule
payment. The loan carries interest of 10.20% and is repayable in 90 days on demand.
(v) Bank Overdraft from bank 3560.82 `/lakhs (2018-Nil) is secured by way of ﬁrst pari passu charge on all the movable assets (including current assets,
loans and advances) of the company and cross collateralization of pledge of shares given for term loan. The loan carries interest rates ranges from
10.20% to 12%.
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Provisions

(` Lakhs)

Provision for employee beneﬁts
- Gratuity
- Leave beneﬁts
Others
- Provision for litigation
Total

Annual Report 2018-19

31 March 2019

Non-Current
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Current
31 March 2018

112.26
52.67

106.65
49.10

15.79
18.11

12.55
15.23

-

-

-

65.00

164.93

155.75

33.90

92.78
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(` Lakhs)

Total
22

31 March 2019

Non-Current
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Current
31 March 2018

8,301.62

94.07
5,245.63

2,937.55
376.33
-

2,648.62
294.24
-

8,301.62

5,339.70

3,313.88

2,942.86

Current tax liabilities

Total
23

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

0.13

205.77

0.13

Revenue from operations

Services
- Course fees/Royalty
- Franchisee fees
- Others
Sales - Educational goods and equipments
Other operating revenue
Total

205.77

b)

26

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

934.14
4,328.18
(1,314.48)

1,365.55
3,563.32
(934.14)

Total

3,947.84

3,994.73

Total

440.44
16.60
281.26
140.25
878.55

250.07
11.55
108.83
141.76
512.21

Total (a) + (b)

4,826.39

4,506.94

Educational goods and equipments
Opening - Inventory
Add: Purchases
Less: Closing - Inventory
Other educational operating expenses
- Rent
- Electricity
- Manpower cost and other professional fees
- Others

Employee beneﬁts expense

(` Lakhs)

6,049.71
1,341.99
32.07
11,177.24
33.24

20,977.80

18,634.25
(` Lakhs)

Total (A)
Financial guarantee fees
Proﬁt on sale of ﬁxed assets (net)
Interest income from
- Debentures - Wholly owned subsidiary
- ICD - Wholly owned subsidiary
- Bank deposits
- Unwinding of discount of deposit / Financial guarantee obligation
- Others
Total (B)
Grand Total (A+B)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

2,678.29
56.24
101.27
75.24
40.61

2,369.57
295.96
86.15
70.71
50.69

2,951.65

2,873.08

31 March 2018

7,562.52
1,167.03
113.97
12,063.69
70.59

Other income

Dividend income from
- Mutual funds
- Preference shares - Wholly owned subsidiary
Premium on redemption of Preference shares - Wholly owned subsidiary
Liabilities / excess provision written back
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a)

Operational cost

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

24

25

(` Lakhs)

Provision for taxation (net of advances)
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Other liabilties

Contract liabilities (refer note 39)
Statutory dues payable
Deferred deposit

Management Report

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

17.71
0.01
140.00
57.01
214.73

16.09
0.01
140.00
37.90
194.00

178.04

96.00

4.49

-

1.13
616.19
274.48
394.50
0.40
1,469.23
1,683.96

1.43
1,186.95
13.38
71.87
4.55
1,374.18
1,568.18

Annual Report 2018-19

Salaries and allowances
Share based payment expense
Contribution to provident and other funds
Training and recruitment cost
Staff welfare expenses
Total

27

Finance costs

(` Lakhs)

Interest on - Borrowings
- Deposit received
- Others
Other ﬁnancial charges
Total
28

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

1,808.70
50.41
99.78
38.24

1,230.99
0.40
67.34
37.41

1,997.13

1,336.14

Depreciation and amortisation expense

(` Lakhs)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Total

Annual Report 2018-19

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

104.68
272.51

50.59
261.87

377.19

312.46
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30
(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019
237.89

301.63

Repairs and maintenance - others

119.00

256.75

Insurance

31.39

23.72

Rates and taxes

53.17

118.19

Electricity and water charges

45.04

43.13

109.02

134.57

92.25

55.88

Travelling and conveyance expenses

606.58

601.93

Legal and professional charges

399.06

558.35

21.30

21.72

902.84

1,112.01

5.20

6.20

-

42.97

Payment to auditors (refer note 35)
Freight and packing charges
Directors sitting fees
Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipments
Provision for allowances for credit losses

218.86

123.85

Marketing, advertisement and publicity expenses

772.73

499.12

-

16.50

226.62

120.65

3,840.95

4,037.17

Corporate social responsibility expenditure
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Tax expense
The major components of income tax for the year are as under:

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Rent

Printing and stationery

Financial Statement
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Other expenses

Communication expenses

Management Report

31 March 2018

Income tax related to items recognised directly in the statement of proﬁt and loss
Current tax - current year
- earlier years
Deferred tax charge / (beneﬁt)
Mat credit entitlement - earlier years

2,525.82
2,578.81
45.74
(15.38)
(18.19)
(57.32)
Total
2,498.86
2,560.62
Effective tax rate
28.83
35.88
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to proﬁt before income tax at statutory rate to the income tax expense at Company’s effective
(` Lakhs)
income tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 is as follows:
Proﬁt before tax
Income tax
Statutory income tax rate of 29.12% (34.608%) on proﬁt
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses
Additional allowances for tax purposes
Other temporary difference
Effect of exempt income and income tax at lower rates
Tax expense recognised in the statement of proﬁt and loss

31 March 2019
8,668.45

31 March 2018
7,136.64

2,524.25

2,469.85

173.95
(121.48)
(72.70)
(5.16)
2,498.86

317.57
(203.04)
(18.19)
(5.57)
2,560.62

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(7.04)

(5.65)

Deferred tax recognized in statement of other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March
Employee retirement beneﬁts obligation

The applicable tax rate is the standard effective corporate income tax rate in India. The tax rate is 29.12% (34.608%) for the year ended 31 March 2019.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to do so. For analysis of the deferred tax balances (after
offset) for ﬁnancial reporting purposes refer note 10.
The Company does not have any temporary differences in respect of unutilized tax loses.
(` Lakhs)

Deferred tax recognized in statement of proﬁt and loss
For the year ended 31 March
Employee retirement beneﬁts obligation
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for expected credit losses
Other temporary difference
Total

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(1.41)
64.86
(52.81)
(26.02)
(15.38)

(6.50)
31.18
(42.87)
(18.19)
(` Lakhs)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net:
Opening balance
Deferred tax (charge)/credit recognised in
- Statement of proﬁt and loss
- Recognised in other comprehensive income
Total
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

455.18

442.64

15.38
(7.04)

18.19
(5.65)

463.53

455.18
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34

The Company has taken ofﬁce, residential facilities and plant and machinery (including equipments) etc. under cancellable / non-cancellable lease
agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the Lessor and the Lessee. The initial tenure of the lease generally is for 11 months to
60 months.
(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

389.97

436.43

564.15
501.54
-

280.08
997.91
-

a) Contingent liabilities

a)
b)
c)
d)

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts *
Disputed indirect taxes
Corporate guarantee to wholly owned Subsidiary
[ loan outstanding ` /lakhs 11,784.96 (2018 - 12,498.12)]
Corporate guarantee to others
[ loan outstanding ` / lakhs 33,963.99 (2017 - 15,275.00)]

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

46.98
2,129.93

70.87
1,568.74

15,000.00

15,000.00

47,000.00

16,000.00

Salary and allowances (refer a and b below)
Perquisites (refer note c below)
Total

The Company had entered into and executed third party warehousing arrangement for materials/ study materials with a service provider. During the
previous year, there was a dispute with the service provider for the service and Company had issued termination letter giving 3 months notice as per terms of
the contract. However, the service provider stopped rendering the services during the notice period and had taken custody of the study materials. The
Company had ﬁled a case in Honorable High Court against the service provider in order to take the materials/ study materials through court process.
Company was successful in getting a favorable order from Honorable High Court and obtained the custody of materials/study materials through court
process, during March. The Company had ﬁled a claim for damage and the matter was under arbitration. The arbritration has been amicably and
permanently settled and the company and the service provider have resolved all disputes and differences as per agreed Consent Terms ﬁled with the Sole
Arbitrator.

c)

The Company has withdrawn the merger with Tree House Education and Accessories Limited (THEAL) and has reserved its rights for suitable actions
against adverse allegations by THEAL

33

Capital and other commitments
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for (net of advances) is 142.15 ` /lakhs (2018 - 31.05 ` /lakhs)
b) Non disposal undertaking for 51% shares held by the Company in Digital Ventures Private Limited for loan taken by subsidiary Company.
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

51.09
0.17

329.61

51.26

329.61

Notes :
a)

Mr. Ajey Kumar, has been designated from Executive Director to Managing Director with effect from 01 October 2018, He draws salary from the company as
per above details. During the year, 170,000 stock option exercised by him.

b)

Salary and allowances include basic salary, house rent allowance, leave travel allowance, provident fund and performance bonus but excluding leave
encashment and gratuity provided on the basis of acturial valuation.

c)

During the previous year, Executive Director remuneration constitutes only the value of perquisites calculated upon exercise of ESOP’s

35

Payment to auditors

(` Lakhs)

Audit fees (including limited review)
Tax audit fees
Tax representation
Certiﬁcation and Others
Total
36

* does not include Interest amount, as interest rate has not been adjudicated by court.
b)

Managerial remuneration
Remuneration paid or provided in accordance with Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 to Executive Director and Manager, included in Note 26
"Employee beneﬁts expense" is as under :
(` Lakhs)

Operating leases:

32
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Leases

Lease rental charges for the year
Future lease rental obligation payable (under non-cancellable lease)
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than ﬁve years
Later than ﬁve years

Management Report

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

17.00
2.00
1.27
1.03
21.30

15.75
2.00
1.27
2.70
21.72

Micro, small and medium enterprises
Trade and other payables - Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMEDA), which came into force from 2 October
2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of information and records available with
the management, the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, which have registered with the
competent authorities.
(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

800.41
80.26

408.28
-

-

-

-

-

e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

80.26

-

f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise,
for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

-

-

a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year
b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year
c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest speciﬁed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
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I.

Digital Venture Private Limited
Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Disclosures as required by Schedule V (A) (2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(a) Loan given to wholly owned Subsidiary company (Loanee)
Balance as at

Management Report

Revenue consists of following :

(` Lakhs)

(` Lakhs)

Maximum amount
outstanding during the year

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

9,065.85
2.05

1,436.12
1.11

9,065.85
2.05

10,856.00
1.11

Services
- Course fees/Royalty
- Franchisee fees
- Others
Sales - Educational goods and equipments
Other operating revenue

* does not include interest accrued.

Total

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

7,562.52
1,167.03
113.97
12,063.69
70.59

6,049.71
1,341.99
32.07
11,177.24
33.24

20,977.80

18,634.25

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

20,977.80

18,634.25

20,977.80

18,634.25

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

13,415.28
7,562.52
20,977.80

12,584.54
6,049.71
18,634.25

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

2,937.54
2,284.61

2,742.69
764.26

(b) The loanee has not made investments in the shares of the Company.
Revenue Disaggregation by Industrial Vertical & Geography is as follows :
II.

Information required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013

i)

Loans given

Revenue by offerings :
(` Lakhs)

Name of the party

Educational Services / India

31 March 2018

Given

Repaid

31 March 2019

1,436.12
1.11

12,489.05
1.05

5,414.00
-

8,511.16
2.16

Timing of Revenue Recognition :

1,437.23

12,490.10

5,414.00

8,513.32

Revenue by offerings :

Total
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited
Total

The loan has been given for general business purpose of the entity and carries interest @12.5% p.a. The above ﬁgires does not include interest accrued.
ii)

Total

Investments made
There are no investments made during the year except those mentioned in Note 6 and Note 13

iii)

Contract balances
(` Lakhs)

Guarantees given
Name of the party

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

To secure obligations of wholly owned Subsidiary - Guarantees to Banks

15,000.00

15,000.00

To secure obligations of others - Guarantees to Banks

47,000.00

16,000.00

62,000.00

31,000.00

Total
iv)

38

Advances received and unearned revenue (contract liabilities) as at
Trade receivables as at

(` Lakhs)

Management expect that 100 % of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisﬁed contracts as of 31 March 2019 will be recognised as revenue till the year
ended 31 March 2021.

Securities given

Explanation for contract assets/contract liabilities.

The Company has given securities of ` /lakhs 5406.51 (2018- 5406.51 ` /lakhs) for loan taken by wholly owned subsidiary.

a)

Revenue earned from customers but yet to be billed is initially recognised as contract assets and classiﬁed to trade receivables when right to
considerations becomes unconditional.

b)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to customer for which the company has received consideration ( or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Dividend
Dividend on equity shares is approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 17 May 2019, and is subject to approval of shareholders at the
annual general meeting and hence not recognised as a liability (including DDT thereon). Appropriation of dividend is done in the ﬁnancial statements post
approval by the shareholders. Dividend on equity shares for the year ended on 2019: Rs 0.1 per equity share (2018 : 0.1) which aggregates to ` /lakhs
393.12 (2018 : 392.25 ` /lakhs)

39

Services transferred at point in time
Services transferred over period in time

Amount of revenue recognised from

Amount included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year

Disclosures as required by Ind AS 115

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019
2,604.14

The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notiﬁed Ind AS 115 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers. The Company has applied this standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial
application and the comparative information is not restated in the ﬁnancial statements – i.e. the comparative information continues to be reported under Ind
AS 18. Impact on the ﬁnancial statements upon adoption of Ind AS 115 is not material.
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II.

Amount recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI)

The Company has acquired 3,19,64,200 shares @ 62.57 [including premium of Rs.52.57] through Share Subscirpiton agreement and 1,07,36,973 Shares
@ 72.76 [including premium of Rs. 62.76] through Open offer of "MT Educare Limited" and subsequently MT Educare Limited has become subsidiary (extent
of holding 59.12% ) of the Company with effect from 25 May 2018.

1
2

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

3

Opening amount recognized in OCI
Remeasurement during the period due to experience adjustments
- Changes in ﬁnancial assumptions
- Changes in experience charges
Closing amount recognized in OCI

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR Committee has been formed by the Company. The Company is required to spend ` /lakhs 55.37
(2018 - 16.50 ` /Lakhs) for the year against which ` /lakhs NIL (2018 - 16.50 `/Lakhs) has been spent on activities speciﬁed in Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013.

III.

Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March

1
2

Present value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation (DBO)
Net Asset / (Liability)

42

Segment information
The Company has presented Segment information on the basis of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements as permitted by Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments.

43

Earnings per share (EPS)

Proﬁt after Tax (` lakhs)

44

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

6,169.59

4,576.02

Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (in numbers)

326,032,212

324,530,519

Weighted Average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (in numbers)

326,171,836

325,631,141

1

1

Basic EPS (` )

1.89

1.41

Diluted EPS (` )

1.89

1.41

Face value of equity shares (` )

Financial Statement
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Acquisition

41
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IV.

Reconciliation of Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at

1
2
3
4

Net Asset / (Liability) at the beginning of year
Expense as per I above
Other comprehensive income as per II above
Beneﬁts paid
Net Asset / (Liability) at the end of the year

V.

The following payments are expected to deﬁned beneﬁt plan in future years :

1
2
3

Expected beneﬁts for year 1
Expected beneﬁts for year 2 to year 5
Expected beneﬁts beyond year 5

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(28.02)

(11.69)

(3.36)
(20.81)
(52.19)

(4.76)
(11.57)
(28.02)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

128.05
(128.05)

119.20
(119.20)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

119.20
45.40
(24.17)
(12.38)
128.05

119.80
44.11
(16.33)
(28.38)
119.20

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

18.54
105.66
246.55

12.55
150.34
177.32

Employee Beneﬁts

VI. Actuarial Assumptions

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

The Disclosures as per Ind AS 19 - Employee Beneﬁts is as follows:

1
2
3

7.64%
6.00%
IALM (2006-08)

7.30%
6.00%
IALM (2006-08)

A

Deﬁned Contribution Plans
“Contribution to provident and other funds” is recognized as an expense in Note 26 “Employee beneﬁt expenses” of the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss.

B

Deﬁned Beneﬁt Plans

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increase
Mortality

VII. Sensitivity Analysis
The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of
service as giving rise to additional unit of employee beneﬁt entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the ﬁnal obligation. The obligation for
leave beneﬁts (non funded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method.
(` Lakhs)
I.

1
2
3

Expenses recognised during the year

31 March 2019
31 March 2018
Gratuity (Non Funded)

Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Past Service cost

37.15
8.25
-

36.89
7.22
-

Total Expenses

45.40

44.11

The key actuarial assumptions to which the beneﬁt obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary escalation rate. The
following table summarizes the impact in percentage terms on the reported deﬁned beneﬁt obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of
an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points
(` Lakhs)
Discount Rate

Salary Escalation rate

Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO

118.99

138.47

Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO

138.40

118.78

Notes:
(a) The current service cost recognized as an expense is included in Note 26 ‘Employee beneﬁts expense’ as gratuity. The remeasurement of the net
deﬁned beneﬁt liability is included in other comprehensive income.
(b) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inﬂation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certiﬁed by the Actuary.
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(` Lakhs)

Signiﬁcant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the deﬁned obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis
above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all
other assumptions constant."
C

Other long term beneﬁts
The obligation for leave beneﬁts (non funded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method and accordingly the long term paid absences
have been valued. The leave encashment expense is included in Note 26 ‘Employee beneﬁts expense’.

45

Related party transactions

(i)

List of parties where control exists

a)

Wholly owned subsidiary companies
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited

b)

A)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

5,700.00

-

5,700.00

-

Short- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited

-

1,500.00

Repayment of long- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited

5,700.00

-

5,700.00

-

-

1,500.00

-

1,500.00

206.94

146.95

206.94

146.95

12,490.10

6,345.49

12,489.05
1.05

6,345.00
0.49

5,414.00

11,810.71

5,414.00

11,810.71

-

3,000.00

-

3,000.00

27,812.22

-

27,812.22

-

1,756.32

1,128.13

147.50
70.80
122.66

-

1,358.72
56.64

1,128.13
-

Transactions with related parties
Long- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited

Repayment of short- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited

Subsidiary Company

Interest expense
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited

MT Educare Limited [ (Acquired on 25 May 2018) (extent of holding - 59.12% (2018 -Nil) ]
Fellow subsidiary companies

1,500.00

Lakshya Forum for Competitions Private Limited (formerly known as Lakshya Educare Private Limited)
Loans, advances and deposits given
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited

MT Education Services Private Limited
Chitale's Personalised Learning Private Limited
Sri Gayatri Educational Services Private Limited
Robomate Edutech Private Limited

Loans, advances and deposits given repaid
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited

Letspaper Technologies Private Limited
Labh Ventures India Private Limited
(ii) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year and balance outstanding as on the last day of the year.
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited, Direct Media Distribution Ventures Private Limited, Diligent Media Corporation Limited, Digital Satellite Holdings
Private Limited, Essel Business Excellence Services Private Limited, Himgiri Zee University, Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited, Pri-Media
Services Private Limited, Taleem Research Foundation, Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited, Subhash Chandra Foundation, Essel Infra Projects Private
Limited, Essel Corporate Resources Private Limited, Essel Vision Productions Limited.

Repayment of investment in compulsorily convertible debentures
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Investment in equity share capital
Subsidiary company
MT Educare Limited
Sales and services
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
MT Educare Limited
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation
Himgiri Zee University
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(` Lakhs)

31 March 2019
Other income
Dividend received
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Premium on redemption of preference shares
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Interest on compulsorily convertible debentures
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Interest on intercorporate deposits
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited
Financial guarantee fees
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation
Deposit received
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation
Purchase of material
Other related parties
Pri-Media Services Private Limited
Purchase of services
Other related parties
Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Diligent Media Corporation Limited.
Subhash Chandra Foundation
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited
Essel Corporate Resources Private Limited
Essel Vision Production Limited
Essel Business Excellence Services Private Limited
Reimbursement of expenses
Subsidiary company
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
Guarantees given
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation

166

839.37

1,328.39

0.01

0.01

140.00

140.00

1.13

1.43

615.97
0.22

1,186.88
0.07

82.04

-

484.23

252.03

484.23

(` Lakhs)

31 March 2018

252.03

-

6.54

-

6.54

1,404.85

662.24

11.48
92.00
416.59
126.50
46.90
711.38

13.09
50.86
178.23
16.50
23.71
65.35
42.16
272.34

75.91

65.76

75.91

65.76

31,000.00

-

31,000.00

-

Annual Report 2018-19

B)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

1,485.85

-

1,485.85

-

-

1,299.61

-

1,299.61

59,313.06

31,499.82

10,601.00
9,572.00
11,327.64
27,812.22
0.10
0.10

10,601.00
9,572.00
11,326.62
0.10
0.10

9,147.90

1,517.23

9,065.85
2.05

1,436.12
1.11

80.00

80.00

723.01

583.01

723.00
0.01

583.00
0.01

1.15

1.15

1.15

1.15

484.23

252.04

484.23

252.04

Balances outstanding as at 31 March
Long- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Short- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Investment
Subsidiary company
Equity shares of Digital Ventures Private Limited
Preference shares of Digital Ventures Private Limited
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Digital Ventures Private Limited
Equity shares of MT Educare Limited
Equity shares of Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited
Equity shares of Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
Loans, advances and deposits given
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited
Other related parties
Essel Business Excellence Services Private Limited
Other ﬁnancials assets
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
- Premium on redemption of Preference Shares
- Dividend receivable on Preference shares
Advance from customer
Other related parties
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited

Deposit received
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation
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(` Lakhs)

Trade receivables
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
MT Educare Limited
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation
Himgiri Zee University
Other payables
Other related parties
Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited
Diligent Media Corporation Limited
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited
Essel Vision Production Limited
Essel Business Excellence Services Private Limited

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

485.74

-

135.00
16.20
69.07

-

233.07
32.40

-

635.45

71.32

3.87
158.09
73.89
82.16
33.28
284.16

0.01
3.12
11.38
23.71
33.10

46,000.00

15,000.00

15,000.00

15,000.00

31,000.00

-

5,300.00

5,300.00

1)

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash ﬂow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair value of ﬁxed
interest bearing investments because of ﬂuctuations in the interest rates. Cash ﬂow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash ﬂows of ﬂoating interest
bearing investments will vary because of ﬂuctuations in interest rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term loan from banks. Non-Redeemable
Debentures and Intercorporate deposits carries ﬁxed coupon rate and hence is not considered for calculation of interest rate sensitivity of the company.
Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all
other variables held constant, the Company’s proﬁt before tax is affected through the impact of change in interest rate of borrowings, as follows:
(` Lakhs)

As on 31 March 2019
As on 31 March 2018
2)

Guarantees given
Subsidiary company
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation
Guarantees received
Other related parties
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Jointly Corporate Guarantee given by Direct Media Distribution Ventures
Private Limited and Digital Satellite Holdings Private Limited
Note: 1)
2)
46

Interest rate risk

+ 50 / - 50
+ 50 / - 50

35.48
17.55

Foreign currency risk
The Company enters into transactions in currency other than its functional currency and is therefore exposed to foreign currency risk. The Company
analyses currency risk as to which balances outstanding in currency other than the functional currency of that Company. The management has taken a
position not to hedge this currency risk.
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate ﬂuctuations arise. Exchange rate
exposures are not hedged considering the insigniﬁcant impact and period involved on such exposure.
The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure:
Currency

5,300.00

Assets as at

Liabilities as at

5,300.00

Details of remuneration to director are disclosed in Note 34.
Figures considered based on the IND AS ﬁnancials of the company.

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

-

-

2.00

-

United States Dollar (USD)

Foreign Currency sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 10% increase / decrease in foreign currencies with all other variable held constant. The below impact on the
Company's proﬁt before tax is based on changes in the fair value of unhedged foreign currency monetary assets and liablities at balance sheet date.

(i) Financial risk management objective and policies

(` Lakhs)

The Company’s principal ﬁnancial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these ﬁnancial liabilities is
to ﬁnance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal ﬁnancial assets include investments, loans, trade receivables, other receivables, and
cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

Currency

` decrease by
10%

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ﬂows of a ﬁnancial instrument will ﬂuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by
market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, other ﬁnancial instruments.
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Sensitivity Analysis
31 March 2019

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management of these risks.

168

Effect on Proﬁt
before tax

(` Lakhs)

Financial instruments

a)

Increase / decrease in
basis points

United States Dollar (USD)
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0.20

` increase by
10%
(0.20)

31 March 2018
` decrease by
10%
-

` increase by
10%
-
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
3)

Credit risk

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of ﬁnancial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2018
Due in 1st year
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable and other ﬁnancial liabilities
Borrowings*

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business enviornment in which
the entity operates. Expected Credit Loss is based on actual credit loss experienced and past trends based on the historical data.
Ageing of trade receivables

Total

(` Lakhs)

Trade Receivables (Unsecured)
Over six months
Less than six months
Total

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

732.63
1,969.88

751.29
212.01

2,702.51

963.30

As at 31 March 2019
Movement in allowance for credit loss during the year was as follows :
Opening Balance
Add :- Provided during the year
Less :- Reversal during the year
Balance as at
Net Trade receivable

75.19
123.85
199.04

2,284.62

764.27

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks and ﬁnancial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in liquid mutual fund units, non convertible debentures, certiﬁcates of deposit
and other debt instruments.

Total

5,212.33

11,198.00

610.26

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt

Due in 2 to 5th year

Gross Debt (inclusive long term and short term debt) *
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank Balances
Net Debt
Total Equity
Total Capital
Gearing ratio

12,436.60

799.38
-

10,431.78

12,436.60

799.38

* Current maturities of borrowings aggregating ` /lakhs 1,322.92 from part of other ﬁnancials liabilities hence the same is not consider separately in
borrowings.
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18,121.04
(995.01)
17,126.04
41,276.09
58,402.12
29.32%

As at 31 March 2018
13,325.65
(1,872.73)
11,452.92
35,368.42
46,821.34
24.46%

* does not include current maturities of borrowings
(iii) Categories of ﬁnancial instruments and fair value thereof

(` Lakhs)

As at 31 March 2019
Carrying amount
Fair value
A)
(i)

Due in
5th years and more

6,070.26
4,361.52

(` Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2019

(ii)

Financial Liabilities
Trade payable and other ﬁnancial liabilities
Borrowings*

610.26
-

For the purpose of the Company' s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The Company manages its capital
structure to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the stakeholders.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of ﬁnancial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2019
(` Lakhs)
Due in 1st year

11,198.00

(ii) Capital management

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its ﬁnancial obligations. The Company's principal source of liquidity are cash and cash
equivalents and the cash ﬂow i.e. generated from operations. The Company consistently generated strong cash ﬂows from operations which together with
the available cash and cash equivalents and current investment provides adequate liquidity in short terms as well in the long term.

Due in
5th years and more

3,912.72
1,299.61

As at 31 March 2018

199.04
218.86
417.90

Due in 2 to 5th year

(` Lakhs)

* Current maturities of borrowings aggregating `/lakhs 828.04 from part of other ﬁnancials liabilities hence the same is not consider separately in
borrowings.

(` Lakhs)
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Credit risk is the risk of ﬁnancial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a ﬁnancial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company's receivables from customers, deposits and loans given, investments and balances at bank.

b)

Management Report

B)
(i)

Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Trade Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances
Non-Current Investments
Current Investments
Other ﬁnancial assets
Loans
Measured at Fair value through proﬁt and loss account
Current Investment
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Trade Payables
Borrowings (Non current)
Borrowings (Current)
Other Financial Liabilities

Annual Report 2018-19

As at 31 March 2018
Carrying amount
Fair value

2,284.61
995.01
50,601.73
9,572.00
1,128.20
9,067.90

2,284.61
995.01
50,601.73
9,572.00
1,128.20
9,067.90

764.26
1,872.73
22,788.49
9,572.00
20,994.28
1,437.23

764.26
1,872.73
22,788.49
9,572.00
20,994.28
1,437.23

-

-

1,277.45

1,277.45

2,365.48
12,436.60
4,361.52
4,504.16

2,365.48
12,436.60
4,361.52
4,504.16

800.84
11,198.00
1,299.61
3,722.14

800.84
11,198.00
1,299.61
3,722.14
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents and bank balances, trade receivables, other ﬁnancial assets, certain investments, trade payables and
other current liabilities approximate their fair value largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Difference between carrying amount and fair value
of bank deposits, other ﬁnancial assets, other ﬁnancial liabilities and borrowings subsequently measured at amortised cost is not signiﬁcant in each of the year
presented.

principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, of the
state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and its consolidated
profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, the consolidated changes
in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

To
The Members of
Zee Learn Limited

1. Opinion

The following table provides the fair value measurment hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities.
Quantative disclosures of fair value measurement hiererchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2019
Fair Value as at
31 March 2019
31 March 2018
Investment in Mutual funds

-

1,277.45

Total

-

1,277.45

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of
Zee Learn Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the
Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2019, the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), Statement of cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(herein after referred to as “consolidated financial statements”).

(` Lakhs)

Fair Value Heirarchy

Valuation Technique(s)
& key inputs used

Level 1

Quoted in an
active market

Investments measured at fair value are tabulated above. All other ﬁnancial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are in Level 1 of fair value hirarchy and
have been considered at carrying amount .

Collateral / Security Pledged
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings of the company and subsidiary company are as under ;
31 March 2019
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484.14
934.14
59,068.67

Total assets pledged

76,015.37

60,486.95

Description of Key Audit Matter

Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from ﬁnancing activities as required by Ind AS 7
"Statement of Cash Flows" is as under:
(` Lakhs)

Long Term Borrowings (Including Current maturities)
Short Term Borrowings
(For Bank, Financial Institution and intercorporate
deposits etc.)
Dividend paid (including dividend tax)
49

3. Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2019. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

31 March 2018

709.56
1,314.48
73,991.33

Cash
Inﬂows

Cash
outﬂows

11,198.00
2,127.65

6,723.13
4,361.52

(4,666.79)
-

Non Cash Changes
Other
Charges

Interest
Accured
(817.73)
(804.73)

-

•
As at
31 March 2019
12,436.60
5,684.44

-

381.13

-

-

-

•

•

Sales are recognized when the control of the goods and services is Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating effectiveness
of the internal controls and substantive testing as follows:
transferred to the customer.
Revenue is recognized at the amount that reflects the considerations to • Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to implementation of the
new revenue accounting standard.
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
• Assessing the application of Group’s accounting policies over revenue
or services to customer.
recognition and comparing the Group’s accounting policies over revenue
Revenue is recognized over a time or point in time.
recognition with applicable accounting standards.
The Group focuses on revenue as a key performance measure which • Identifying the nature of the revenues and identification of any unusual
contract terms.
could create an incentive for revenue to be recognized before the control.
•

Prior year comparatives
Previous year's ﬁgures have been regrouped / reclassiﬁed / rearranged wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classiﬁcations /
disclosures, ﬁgures in brackets pertain to previous year.
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Description of Auditor’s Response

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of Principal Audit Procedures
revenues and other related balances in view of adoption of Ind AS 115 We assessed the Group’s process to identify the impact of adoption of the new
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (new revenue accounting standard) revenue accounting standard.

•
-

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained and the audit evidence obtained
by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other
Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

(` Lakhs)

Property, plant and equipment (includes Capital work in progress, Investment property,
Intangible assets and Intangible assets under development)
Inventories
Other current and non-current assets

As at
31 March 2018

2. Basis for opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of reports of the
other auditors on separate financial statement and on other financial
information of subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting

The fair values of the ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities included in the level 1 categories above have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash ﬂow analysis, with the most signiﬁcant inputs being the discount rate that reﬂects the credit risk of
counterparties.
47

Financial Statement

Independent Auditor’s Report
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

(iv) Fair value hierarchy

Management Report

Annual Report 2018-19

Annual Report 2018-19

Testing the revenue recognized including testing of Group’s control on
revenue recognition, when applicable. Our testing included tracing the
information to agreements and payments.

•

Assessing the revenue recognized with substantive analytical procedures, and

•

Assessing the Group’s disclosure on revenue recognition.
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Description of Key Audit Matter
Assessment of Impairment of Goodwill

Description of Auditor’s Response
Principal Audit Procedures

Deferred Tax Assets

Consolidated financial statements of the Group includes goodwill of Rs We assessed the key assumptions used in impairment testing performed by
31,323.64 lakhs acquired during the year.
management byManagement has conducted annual goodwill impairment testing and as a
result of the testing conducted, management assessed that no impairment was
needed. Goodwill impairment testing requires substantial management
judgement over the projected future business performance and cash flows.

Description of Key Audit Matter

• Assessing the growth and profitability estimates and comparing them to
historical performance;
• Comparing the estimates with the latest approved budgets and strategic
plans;
• Testing the accuracy and the underlying calculations

Determination of recognition criteria as well as the probability of utilising the tax
losses in the future involves significant assessment and judgement by the
Management of a subsidiary company viz. MT Educare Limited. Forecasts and
estimates by the management in such estimations are dependent on various
external factors. Inherent uncertainty is involved in forecasting future taxable
profits and utilisation of deferred tax assets. Accordingly, recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets is considered as a Key Audit Matter by the other auditors.

Management Report

Financial Statement

Description of Auditor’s Response
Principal Audit Procedures by other auditors
•

Evaluating management’s rationale for the forecast periods selected in
determining the likelihood of the Group generating suitable future
profits to support the recognition of deferred tax assets.

•

Evaluation of assessment of Future taxable income available
considering any restrictions in the tax legislation impacting the utilisation.

•

Verifying related disclosures on deferred tax assets in the financial
statements.

We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosure information
4. Other information
Recoverability of Loans
•

•

Certain loans aggregating Rs. 11,649.99 lakhs given to Sri Gayatri
Education Society and Aryan foundation and a deposit given to Interria
Multibiz Private Limited amounting to Rs. 6,921.24 lakhs (including
interest receivable of Rs. 321.24 lakhs)) as on 31 March 2019 by a
subsidiary company viz. MT Educare Limited. Out of the above,
provision recognised amounted to Rs. 8,739.96 lakhs as at 31 March
2019, which involves significant management’s estimate and
judgment.
As the assessment of recoverability of loans requires management to
make significant estimation, exercise judgment on customer payment
behavior, other relevant risk characteristics, the other auditors
determined this to be a key audit matter.

Principal Audit Procedures by other auditors
• Obtaining an understanding of Group’s processes and controls relating
to the monitoring of loans given and review of credit risk of borrowers.
• Reviewing underlying documents and supporting evidences.
• Obtaining Balance confirmations and evidence of receipts from the
borrower subsequent to the year end.
• Reviewing ageing report to identify collection risks, assessing overdue
receivables and where applicable, reviewing payment history and
correspondence with the borrowers on expected settlement dates.
• Discussing with the management with respect to collectability of the
amount lent and adequacy of provision for doubtful advance, including
whether any dispute or concerns have been noted by management.
• Evaluating management’s assumptions and estimates used to
determine the provision for doubtful advances.
• Assessing the adequacy of the disclosure on receivables and the related
risks such as credit risks and liquidity risks in the financial statements.

Recoverability and valuation of trade receivables
•

•

Trade receivables (Net) amounting to Rs. 2,548.76 lakhs as of 31
March 2019 of a subsidiary company viz. MT Educare Limited are
recognised at their anticipated realisable value, which is the original
invoiced amount less an estimated allowance based on Expected
Credit Loss model.
Valuation of trade receivables is considered as a key audit matter by
the other auditors due to the magnitude of the balance and the
significant management judgement used in determining the
impairment provision.

Principal Audit Procedures by other auditors
• Reading through the agreements and correspondence with the
Government authorities and understanding the key terms.
• Analysing the ageing of trade receivable.
• Analysing the list of outstanding receivables and assessing the
recoverability of these through inquiry with management and verifying
corroborative evidence to support the conclusions drawn.
• Assessing management’s estimate and related policies with respect to
provision on account of credit loss.
• Verification of calculation of provisions for credit loss.
• Verifying the related disclosures provided in the financial statements.
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The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures
to Board Report and Chairman’s Statement but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
5. Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation
and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the
requirement of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance ( including other
comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
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application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.
6. Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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•

•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company and its
subsidiary Companies which are companies incorporated in India has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding
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Company and such other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

c)

d)

e)

f)

7. Other Matters
We did not audit the financial statements of ten subsidiaries whose financial
statements / consolidated financial statements reflect total assets of Rs
116,280.89 lakhs as at 31 March 2019, total revenues of Rs 37,686.63 lakhs,
total net profit after tax of Rs 1,423.37 lakhs, total comprehensive profit of Rs
1,455.46 lakhs and total cash inflows of Rs. 321.83 Lakhs for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of Section
143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to these subsidiaries is based solely on
the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;
In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;
On the basis of written representations received from the
directors of the Holding Company as on 31 March 2019 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of the
subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act;

Management Report

Financial Statement

g)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Group and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”,

h)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of
pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of the
Group and its subsidiaries;

ii.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts; and

iii.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to
be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary
companies, incorporated in India.

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197 (16)
of the act, as amended:

For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 101169W/W-100035

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Holding Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197of the Act

Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above, and our Report
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect
of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the
reports of the other auditors.
8. Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements
I.

As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the
preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been
kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred
to in paragraph 8(I)(f) under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the
Company on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ZEE
Learn Limited (“the Holding Company”), its subsidiary companies,
incorporated in India as of 31 March 2019, in conjunction with our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on “Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting” (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with

178

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence
obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary companies incorporated
in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India.

Management Report

Financial Statement

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the
other auditors as referred to in Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting in so far as it relates to ten subsidiary companies incorporated in
India, is based on corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies
incorporated in India. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 101169W/W-100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Place: Mumbai,
Date:17 May 2019

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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ZEE LEARN LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019
Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
3
(b) Capital work-in-progress
3
(c) Investment property
4
(d) Investment property under development
4
(e) Goodwill
5
(f) Intangible assets
6
(g) Intangible assets under development
6
(h) Financial assets
(i) Investments
7
(ii) Loans
8
(iii) Other ﬁnancial assets
9
(i) Income tax assets (net)
10
(j) Deferred tax assets (net)
11
(k) Other non-current assets
12
Total non-current assets
Current assets
(a) Inventories
13
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments
14
(ii) Trade receivables
15
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
16 (a)
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
16 (b)
(v) Loans
8
(vi) Other ﬁnancial assets
9
(c) Other current assets
12
Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital
17
(b) Other equity
18 (a)
Equity attributable to shareholders (a+b)
Non-controlling Interests
18 (b)
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
19
(ii) Other ﬁnancial liabilities
20
(b) Provisions
21
(c) Other liabilities
22
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
19
(ii) Trade payables
20
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other ﬁnancial liabilities
20
(b) Other current liabilities
22
(c) Provisions
21
(d) Current tax liabilities (net)
23
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Notes forming part of the ﬁnancial statements
1-54
As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of the board
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035

Himanshu Mody
Chairman

31 March 2019

(₹ lakhs)
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Debshankar Mukhopadhyay
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
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Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(₹ lakhs)
Note

5,239.01
343.25
26,824.79
28,928.34
31,323.64
7,827.59
5,300.86

186.52
4.98
15,512.30
35,795.04
2,154.31
8,424.99

0.34
4,477.59
2,199.43
2,818.94
9,176.69
2,141.73
126,602.20

20,694.71
931.06
472.43
1,568.79
85,745.13

1,314.48

934.14

211.44
5,253.83
2,070.21
673.65
9,856.00
1,228.89
693.31
21,301.81
147,904.01

1,388.76
1,507.04
2,160.94
275.30
778.16
318.78
612.71
7,975.83
93,720.96

3,260.79
39,853.77
43,114.56
18,103.75
61,218.31

3,258.95
32,080.16
35,339.11
35,339.11

33,539.94
1,541.73
512.97
21,468.82
57,063.46

22,885.00
1,188.76
160.24
24,025.96
48,259.96

4,361.52

1,299.61

529.61
4,233.25
10,430.19
9,836.68
230.86
0.13
29,622.24
86,685.70
147,904.01

251.98
548.86
4,180.66
3,540.02
94.99
205.77
10,121.89
58,381.85
93,720.96

Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

24
25

51,724.64
3,200.46
54,925.10

26,883.87
370.22
27,254.09

26
27
28
29
30

14,537.24
14,157.06
4,730.85
2,788.54
7,258.10
43,471.79
11,453.31

4,506.94
7,879.28
1,910.75
1,111.93
4,289.56
19,698.46
7,555.63

31

2,621.04
46.30
504.69
(57.32)
8,338.60

2,660.80
(33.08)
4,927.91

7,611.22
727.38

4,927.91
-

44.16
165.11
(161.20)
48.07

17.35
(5.65)
11.70

8,386.67

4,939.61

7,646.63
740.04

4,939.61
-

2.33
2.33

1.52
1.51

Total
Expenses
Operational cost
Employee beneﬁts expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total
Proﬁt before tax
Less : Tax expense
Current tax - current year
- earlier years
Deferred tax beneﬁt
MAT credit entitlement earlier years
Proﬁt for the year

(A)

Proﬁt for the year attributable to
Shareholding of the company
Non-controlling interest
Other comprehensive income
A. Items that will not be reclassiﬁed to proﬁt or loss
(i) Re-measurement of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
(ii) Gain on bargain purchase
(iii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassiﬁed to the proﬁt or loss
Total other comprehensive income
(B)
Total comprehensive income for the year

(A+B)

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
Shareholding of the company
Non-controlling interest
Earnings per equity share (face value ` 1 each)
Basic
Diluted
Notes forming part of the ﬁnancial statements
As per our attached report of even date
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For and on behalf of the board

For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035
Himanshu Mody
Chairman

Sangeeta Pandit
Director

Debshankar Mukhopadhyay
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer

Umesh Pradhan
Chief Financial Ofﬁcer

Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215

Sangeeta Pandit
Director

Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215
Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019
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Umesh Pradhan
Chief Financial Ofﬁcer

Bhautesh Shah
Company Secretary
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Company Secretary
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Date: 17 May 2019
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ZEE LEARN LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
A.

B.

Equity share capital
As at 01 April 2017
Changes in equity share capital
As at 31 March 2018
Changes in equity share capital
As at 31 March 2019

Note

17a

Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Securities
General
premium
reserve

Share based
payment
reserve

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Final Equity Dividend
Tax on Final Equity Dividend
Shares option excercised
Share based payments

406.25
406.25
406.25
-

562.79
562.79
(335.73)
295.96

11,097.30
11,097.30
1,350.28
-

As at 31 March 2018
Proﬁt for the year
Other comprehensive income (Refer note 18)
Total comprehensive income for the year

812.50
-

523.02
-

812.50
406.25
406.25
1,218.75

523.02
(202.94)
212.63
9.69
532.71

As at 01 April 2017
Proﬁt for the year
Other comprehensive income (Refer note 18)
Total comprehensive income for the year

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Final Equity Dividend
Tax on Final Equity Dividend
Gain on bargain purchase
Shares option excercised
Shared based payments
As at 31 March 2019

(₹ lakhs)
31 March 2019
A.
(₹ Lakhs)

Debenture
redemption
reserve

Capital
reserves

Retained
earnings

Non
Controlling
interest

Total other
equity

13,971.80
13,971.80
-

-

(12.91)
4,927.91
11.70
4,939.61
4,926.70
(406.25)
(162.17)
(33.02)
-

-

26,025.23
4,927.91
11.70
4,939.61
30,964.84
(162.17)
(33.02)
1,014.55
295.96

12,447.58
-

13,971.80
-

-

4,325.26
8,338.60
30.58
8,369.18

(727.38)
(12.66)
(740.04)

32,080.16
7,611.22
17.92
7,629.14

12,447.58
510.38
510.38
12,957.96

13,971.80
13,971.80

17.49
17.49
17.49

12,694.44
(406.25)
(326.07)
(67.02)
(799.34)
11,895.10

(740.04)
(740.04)

39,709.30
(326.07)
(67.02)
17.49
307.44
212.63
144.47
39,853.77

1)
2)
3)
4)

Debenture redemption reserve is created out of the proﬁts which is available for payment of dividend for the purpose of redemption of debentures.
Share Based Payment Reserve is related to share options granted by the group to its employee under its employee share option plan.
Securities premium is used to record premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisons of Companies Act, 2013.
General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer proﬁts from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. General Reserve includes ₹/Lakhs 8881.25 (2018- ₹/lakhs
8881.25) pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation, sanctioned by the Hon'ble Court of Bombay and shall not be used for the purpose of declaring dividend
5) Capital Reserve is created on account of Gain on bargain purchase of fellow subsidiary (refer note 49)
6) Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings net of losses if any made by the group over the years.
.
Notes forming part of the ﬁnancial statements
1-54
As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of the board
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035
Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215

Himanshu Mody
Chairman

Sangeeta Pandit
Director

Debshankar Mukhopadhyay
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer

Umesh Pradhan
Chief Financial Ofﬁcer

Financial Statement

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019

(₹ Lakhs)
3,226.42
32.53
3,258.95
1.84
3,260.79

17a
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Cash ﬂow from operating activities
Proﬁt before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Liabilities / excess provision written back
Bad debts / advance written off
(Proﬁt) / Loss on sale / impairment / discard of property, plant and equipment /
intangibles / capital work-in-progress (net)
Interest expense
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision (beneﬁt) of deferred taxes
Dividend income
Interest income
Operating proﬁt before working capital changes
Adjustments for :
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid (net)

31 March 2018

11,453.31

7,555.63

2,788.54
(418.26)
(130.67)

1,111.93
(37.90)
-

(4.49)
4,484.73
67.65
14.08
(241.30)
(2,205.89)
15,807.70

42.97
1,910.75
123.85
11.30
(17.40)
(122.92)
10,578.21

(380.34)
(18,588.88)
8,153.41
4,991.89
(2,925.15)

431.41
3,252.86
13,269.16
27,531.64
(2,671.91)

2,066.74

24,859.73

B. Cash ﬂow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets /
investment property / capital work-in-progress
Sale of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets
(Increase) / Decrease in deposit accounts
Purchase of controlling stake in fellow subsidiary company
Investments in bank deposit having original maturity period of more than twelve months
Purchase of investments
Sale of current investments
Amount given towards share allotment
Loans repaid by others
Dividend received
Interest received

(6,481.84)
22.64
248.09
(1,628.00)
(33.25)
(100.13)
1,277.45
(283.48)
241.30
1,853.92

(1,312.17)
(40.14)
(44.69)
(29.98)
(758.25)
(20,000.00)
(658.14)
17.40
87.60

Net cash ﬂow from investing activities (B)

(4,883.30)

(22,738.37)

Net cash ﬂow from operating activities (A)

Bhautesh Shah
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019
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ZEE LEARN LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019

C.

31 March 2018

Cash ﬂow from ﬁnancing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares

537.67

1,382.81

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

14,024.10

295.77

Repayment of long-term borrowings

(12,351.72)

(951.91)

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

4,660.11

-

Dividend paid (including dividend tax)

(381.13)

(191.81)

(3,763.20)

(1,989.28)

2,725.83

(1,454.42)

(90.73)

666.94

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

2,160.94

1,494.00

Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2,070.21

2,160.94

673.65

275.30

2,743.86

2,436.24

Interest paid
Net cash ﬂow from / (used in) ﬁnancing activities(C)
Net cash ﬂow during the year (A+B+C)

Add : Balances earmarked
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year

Notes:
1.

Sanjay Kothari
Partner
Membership Number 048215

For and on behalf of the board

Himanshu Mody
Chairman

1.
Rounding of amounts
A

Sangeeta Pandit
Director

Debshankar Mukhopadhyay

Umesh Pradhan

Bhautesh Shah

Chief Executive Ofﬁcer

Chief Financial Ofﬁcer

Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 May 2019

Corporate Information

Zee Learn Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in State of
Maharashtra on 4 January, 2010. The The Company along with its
subsidiaries ("Group") is one of the most diversiﬁed premium education
Group which delivers learning solutions and training through its multiple
products viz. Kidzee, Mount Litera Zee Schools, Mount Litera World
Preschool, Zee Institute of Media Arts (ZIMA), Zee Institute of Creative
Arts (ZICA) and E - Learning Online Education and Testing. The Group
is also in the business of providing and servicing school infrastructure
on long-term lease agreements. It also provides education support and
coaching services for students in the secondary and higher secondary
school and for students pursuing graduation degree in commerce,
preparing for various competitive examinations and undertaking
chartered accountancy examinations.
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements (hereinafter referred to as
"CFS") of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019, were authorised
for issue by the Audit Committeee and by the Board of Directors at their
meeting held on 17 May 2019
B

Previous year's ﬁgures have been regrouped, recast wherever necessary.
As per our attached report of even date
For MGB & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 101169W/W100035

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(₹ lakhs)

31 March 2019
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Basis of preparation of Consolidated ﬁnancial statements

These consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred
to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notiﬁed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as and when
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed
there under and guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI). These consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been
prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the
accural basis of accounting except for certain ﬁnancial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as stated in the accounting policies stated out below.
Name of the Subsidiaries

All amounts disclosed in the ﬁnancial statements and notes have been
rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III
(except per share data), unless otherwise stated. Zero '0' denotes
amount less than ` 50,000/Current non-current classiﬁcation
All assets and liabilities have been classiﬁed as current or non-current
as per the group’s normal operating cycle (twelve months) and other
criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.
C

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

The consolidated ﬁnancial statements incorporate the ﬁnancial
statements of Zee Learn Limited and entities controlled by Zee Learn
Limited.
Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity.
Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to
direct relevant activities, those which signiﬁcantly affect the entity's
returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control
commences until the date control ceases.
The ﬁnancial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a
line-by-line basis and intra-group balances and transactions including
unrealized gain / loss from such transactions are eliminated upon
consolidation. These ﬁnancial statements are prepared by applying
uniform accounting policies in use at the Group.
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements incorporate the ﬁnancial
statements of the group, its subsidiaries (as listed in the table below).

Principal activities

Proportion of Interest
(including beneﬁcial
interest) / Voting Power
(either directly / indirectly
or through Subsidiaries)

Principal place
of business

Direct Subsidiaries
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Digital Ventures Private Limited

Construction and leasing for education

100(100)

India

Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited

Education support and coaching services

100(100)

India

Liberium Global Resources Private Limited

Training Manpower and related activities

100(100)

India

MT Educare Limited

Education support and coaching services

59.12(Nil)

India

Annual Report 2018-19

185

Corporate Overview

ZEE LEARN LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Name of the Subsidiaries

Proportion of Interest
(including beneﬁcial
interest) / Voting Power
(either directly / indirectly
or through Subsidiaries)

Principal activities

Principal place
of business

Education support and
coaching services

100(Nil)

India

MT Education Services Private Limited

Education support and
coaching services

100(Nil)

India

Chitale's Personalised Learning Private Limited

Education support and
coaching services

100(Nil)

India

Sri Gayatri Educational Services Private Limited

Education support and
coaching services#

75(Nil)

India

Robomate Edutech Private Limited

Education support and
coaching services

100(Nil)

India

Letspaper Technologies Private Limited #

Education support and
coaching services#

100(Nil)

India

Labh Ventures India Private Limited (Refer note 49)

Acquiring and
leasing properties

100(Nil)

d

2

where applicable, borrowing costs less depreciation and
impairment, if any.

a

Property, plant and equipmnt
Depreciation on building is provided over its useful life using the
straight lining method.

(i) All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (except
freehold land which is stated at cost), if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalisation
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation for assets
class are as follows:
Factory building and land - 30 to 40 years
c

(ii) Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant
and equipment and related expenses that are not yet ready
for their intended use at the reporting date.
b

Investment property
Investmnet property held for long term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classiﬁed as Investment Property. Investment property is
measured at its cost, including related transaction costs and,

186

Non-current assets held for sale
The Group classiﬁes non-current assets as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale
rather than through continuing use of the assets and actions
required to complete such sale indicate that it is unlikely that
signiﬁcant changes to the plan to sell will be made or that the
decision to sell will be withdrawn. Also, such assets are classiﬁed
as held for sale only if the management expects to complete the
sale within one year from the date of classiﬁcation.

Annual Report 2018-19

Intangible assets under development:
Expenses incurred on in-house development of courseware and
products are shown as Intangible asset under developement till
the asset is ready to use. They shall be capitalized either
individually or as a knowledge bank in the form of Technology
Aided Teaching (TAT) / Multimedia Software. Their technical
feasibility and ability to generate future economic beneﬁts is
established in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 38,
“Intangible Assets”.
f

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
e

Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies

recognised if and only if it meets the recognition criteria of
intangible assets. The amount initially recognised is the sum total
of expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset
ﬁrst meets the recognition criteria. Where no intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in
Statement of Proﬁt and Loss in the period in which it is incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, internally generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Goodwill and impairment of goodwill
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred over the net of acquisition-date
amounts of the identiﬁable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the
purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s cash generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to beneﬁt from the synergies of the
combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated ﬁrst to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying
amount of each assets in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in Statement of Proﬁt and Loss.

India

* The subsidiary Company has changed the name from Lakshya Educare Private Limited to Lakshya Forum for Competitions Private Limited from
25 January 2019.
# Yet to commence commercial business operations as on 31 March 2019.

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Indirect Subsidiaries
Lakshya Forum for Competitions Private
Limited (formerly known as Lakshya Educare
Private Limited)*

Management Report

Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment / intangible
ﬁxed assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for
cost, less its estimated residual value.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired or developed are measured on initial
recognition at cost and stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment loss, if any.

(i) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (except
freehold land which is started at cost) is provided on straight
line method as per the useful life prescribed in schedule II to
the companies Act, 2013.

Intangible assets acquired separately:
Intangible assets with ﬁnite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination:
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally generated Intangible Assets – Research and
Development Expenditure:
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in Statement of
Proﬁt and Loss in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from development is
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Depreciation / amortisation on property, plant and equipment
/ intangible assets

(ii) Leasehold Improvements are amortised over the period of
Lease.
(ii) Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over
their respective individual useful lives estimated by the
management.
g

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment / intangible
assets / investment property
The carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
there are indicators of impairment, an assessment is made to
determine whether the asset’s carrying value exceeds its
recoverable amount. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
An impairment is recognised in statement of proﬁt and loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of net selling price, deﬁned as the fair value less costs to
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valued at lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. Cost
comprises cost of purchase, freight and other expense incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Costs are taken on weighted average basis and speciﬁc
indentiﬁcaiton method.

sell, and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash ﬂows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reﬂects current market rates and risks
speciﬁc to the asset.
An impairment loss for an individual asset or cash generating unit
are reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised and is only reversed to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. Impairment loss are
recognised in the statement of proﬁt and loss.
h

l

All ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the ﬁnancial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is signiﬁcant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Derecognition of property, plant and equipment / intangibles
assets / investment property
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment /
intangibles / investment property is derecognised on disposal or
when no future economic beneﬁts are expected from its use or
disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment / intangibles is measured as the
difference between the net disposal in proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and is recognised in the statement of proﬁt and
loss when the item is derecognised.

I

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is signiﬁcant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable, or
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is signiﬁcant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability
fall into different levels of a fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirely in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is signiﬁcant to
the entire measurement.

Leases
(i)

Finance lease
Leases are classiﬁed as ﬁnance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classiﬁed as
operating leases.

(ii)

Operating lease
Lease of assets under which all the risks and rewards of
ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are
classiﬁed as operating leases. Operating Lease payments /
revenue are recognised on straight line basis over the lease
period in the statement of proﬁt and loss account unless
increase is on account of inﬂation.

j

Cash and cash equivalents
(i)

(ii)

k

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise
cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
an insigniﬁcant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash ﬂows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
deﬁned as they are considered as intergral part of Group's
cash management.

Inventories
Educational goods and equipments and television content are
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The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the
change has occurred.
m

Financial instruments
Financial instruments is any contract that gives rise to a ﬁnancial
asset of one entity and a ﬁnancial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.
(i)

Initial recognition
Financial assets are recognized when the company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
ﬁnancial instruments. Financial assets and ﬁnancial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities (other than
ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities at fair value through
proﬁt and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the ﬁnancial assets or ﬁnancial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of ﬁnancial assets or ﬁnancial liabilities at
fair value through proﬁt and loss are recognised
immediately in the statement of proﬁt and loss.
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(ii)

Subsequent measurement

(A) Financial assets
Financial assets are classiﬁed into the following speciﬁed
categories: amortised cost, ﬁnancial assets ‘at Fair value
through proﬁt and loss' (FVTPL), ‘Fair value through other
comprehensive income' (FVTOCI). The classiﬁcation
depends on the Group's business model for managing the
ﬁnancial assets and the contractual terms of cash ﬂows.

Fair value measurement
The Group has an established control framework with respect to the
measurement of fair values. The management regularly reviews
signiﬁcant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Management Report

(B) Debt instrument
(a)

Amortised cost
A ﬁnancial asset is subsequently measured at amortised
cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash ﬂows and
the contractual terms of the ﬁnancial asset give rise on
speciﬁed dates to cash ﬂows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. This
category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

(b)

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classiﬁed as at the FVTOCI if both of the
following criteria are met:
a)

b)

The objective f the business model is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash ﬂows and selling the ﬁnancial
assets.
The asset’s contractual cash ﬂows represent solely
payments of principal and interest.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group
recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of proﬁt
and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassiﬁed from the
equity to statement of proﬁt and loss. Interest earned whilst
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.
( c) Fair value through Proﬁt and Loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as
at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classiﬁed as at FVTPL. In
addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument,
which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is considered only if doing so
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).
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Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of proﬁt and loss.
( C) Equity investments
The Group measures all equity investments at fair value through proﬁt
and loss. Where the Group's management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassiﬁcation of fair value gains and
losses to statement of proﬁt and loss. Dividends from such investments
are recognised in statement of proﬁt and loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payment is established.
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment loss in
accordance with IND AS 27 on "Separate Financial Statements".
(iii) Derecognition of ﬁnancial assets
A ﬁnancial asset is derecognised only when
a) The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash ﬂows from
the asset or the rights have expired or
b) The Group retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
ﬂows of the ﬁnancial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash ﬂows to one or more recipients in an
arrangement.
Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group
evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the ﬁnancial asset. In such
cases, the ﬁnancial asset is derecognised. Where the entity
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the ﬁnancial asset, the ﬁnancial asset is not
derecognised.
(iv) Impairment of ﬁnancial assets
The Group measures the expected credit loss associated with its
assets based on historical trend, industry practices and the
business enviornment in which the entity operates or any other
appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a signiﬁcant increase in credit risk.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt or equity instruments issued by the Group are classiﬁed as
either ﬁnancial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the deﬁnitions of a
ﬁnancial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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(ii)

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity
instruments.
(v) Financial liabilities-Subsequent measurement

o

Classiﬁcation
Financial liabilties are recognized when company becomes party
to contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company
classiﬁes all ﬁnancial liabilities at amortised cost or fair value
through proﬁt or loss.
Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through proﬁt or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through proﬁt or loss include ﬁnancial
liabilities held for trading and ﬁnancial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through proﬁt or loss. Financial
liabilities are classiﬁed as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the proﬁt or loss.
A ﬁnancial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
ﬁnancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modiﬁed, such an exchange or modiﬁcation is
treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of proﬁt or loss.
(vi) Determination of fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.
In determining the fair value of its ﬁnancial instruments, the Group
uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on
market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The
methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash ﬂow
analysis and available quoted market prices. All methods of
assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and
such value may never actually be realized.
n

Borrowings and borrowing costs
(i)
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Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs
incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss over the
period of the borrowings using the EIR.

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assets till the time such assets are ready for intended
use are capitalised as part of cost of the assets. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period they occur.

b.

Manpower suppy services/reimbursement of expenses are
recognized as per the agreed terms of agreement.

c.

Onboarding and recruitment charges are accounted when
services are completed as per agreed terms.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(i)

The Group recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event exists and it is probable that an
outﬂow of resources embodying economic beneﬁts will be required to
settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably
estimated.

Sales - Educational goods and equipments is recognized when
the signiﬁcant risk and rewards of ownership are passed onto the
customers, which is generally on dispatch or agreed terms.

(ii)

Services

p

a)

Course fees and Royalty income is recognized over the
duration of the course and as per agreed terms

b)

Franchise fees is recognized as per the agreed terms of the
agreement.

c)

Revenue from other services is recognised as and when
such services are completed/performed.

Revenue recognition

a.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is recognised only when it can be reliably
measured and it is probable that future economic beneﬁts will ﬂow
to the Group.
Transaction price is accounted net of GST. Since GST is not
received by the company on its own account, rather, it is collected
by the Group on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is
excluded from revenue.
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The Group’s contracts with customers may include multiple
performance obligations. For such arrangements, the Group
allocates revenue to each performance obligation based on
its relative standalone selling price, which is generally
determined based on the price charged to customers.
C. Contract assets and liabilities
Contract assets relate primarily to the Group’s rights to
consideration for work completed but not billed at each
reporting date. Contract assets are transferred to
receivables when the rights become unconditional. This
usually occurs when the Group issues an invoice to a
customer.
Contract liabilities primarily relate to consideration received
in advance from customers, for which the performance
obligation is yet to be satisﬁed."
(v)
q

Lease income is recognised as per agreed terms of lease
agreeements.

Retirement and other employee beneﬁts
(i)

The Group operates both deﬁned beneﬁt and deﬁned contribution
schemes for its employees. For deﬁned contribution schemes the
amount charged as expense is equal to the contributions paid or
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Short term employee beneﬁts: All employee beneﬁts payable
wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classiﬁed
as short term employee beneﬁts and they are recognized in the
period in which the employee renders the related service. The
Group recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term
employee beneﬁts expected to be paid in exchange for services
rendered as a liability.

Transactions in foreign currencies
(i)

The functional currency of the Group is Indian Rupees (“ ` ”).
Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of such transactions.

(ii)

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on settlement of monetary items or on reporting
such monetary items at rates different from those at which they
were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous
ﬁnancial statements are recognised as income or as expenses in
the period in which they arise.

(iii) Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at historical cost
and translated at the exchange rate prevelant at the date of the
transaction.

B. Arrangements with Multiple Performance Obligations

The standard is applied retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed as at the date of initial application and the comparative
information is not restated in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements – i.e.
the comparative information continues to be reported under Ind AS 18.
Revenue -

(ii)

(iv) Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to
receive dividend is established.

The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notiﬁed Ind AS
115 ""Revenue from Contracts with Customers"" related to revenue
recognition which replaces all existing revenue recognition standards
and provide a single, comprehensive model for all contracts with
customers. The revised standard contains principles to determine the
measurement of revenue and timing of when it is recognized. The
amendment also requires additional disclosure about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash ﬂows arising from
customer contracts, including signiﬁcant judgments and changes in
those judgments as well as assets recognized from costs incurred to
fulﬁll these contracts.

A

payable when employees have rendered services entitling them to
the contributions.For deﬁned beneﬁt plans, actuarial valuations
are carried out at each balance sheet date using the Projected Unit
Credit Method. All such plans are unfunded.

(iii) Interest income from ﬁnancial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic beneﬁts will ﬂow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the ﬁnancial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the ﬁnancial statements,
however they are disclosed where the inﬂow of economic beneﬁts is
probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related
asset is no longer a contingent asset and is recognised as an asset.

Derecognition of ﬁnancial liabilities

Financial Statement
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A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not
require an outﬂow of resources embodying economic beneﬁts or the
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is
a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which
likelihood of outﬂow of resources embodying economic beneﬁts is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

The measurement of ﬁnancial liabilities depends on their
classiﬁcation, as described below:

Management Report

s

Accounting for taxes on income
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.
(i)

Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of
taxable proﬁt for a period. Current tax for current and prior periods
is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered
from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the ﬁnancial statements except
when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability that effects neither accounting nor taxable proﬁt or loss
at the time of transition.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax beneﬁt will be realized.
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payments in net proﬁt using fair-value in accordance with Ind AS 102,
Share-Based Payment. The estimated fair value of awards is charged to
statement of proﬁt and loss on a straight-line basis over the requisite
service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the
award was in-substance, multiple awards with a corresponding increase
to share based payment reserves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled.
Presentation of current and deferred tax
Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense
in the statement of proﬁt and loss, except to the extent they relate
to items recognized in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the current and deferred tax income / expense are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

w

(iii) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with tax laws,
which give rise to future economic beneﬁts in the form of
adjustment of future tax liability, is recognised as an asset only
when, based on convincing evidence, it is probable that the future
economic beneﬁts associated with it will ﬂow to the Group and the
assets can be measured reliably.
t

Impairment of non-ﬁnancial assets
The carrying amounts of non ﬁnancial assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable value. The recoverable
amount is the greater of an asset’s or cash generating unit's, net selling
price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash ﬂows are discounted to the present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reﬂects current market assessment of the time value of money
and risks speciﬁc to the assets. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of proﬁt and loss in the year in which an asset is identiﬁed as
impaired. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. The
impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed by
crediting the statement of proﬁt and loss if there has been a change in
the estimate of recoverable amount.

u

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive
earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares
outstanding during the period, except when the results would be antidilutive.

v

Share based payments
The Group recognizes compensation expense relating to share-based
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a

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with revisions
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.

considered. Recognition therefore involves judgment regarding the
future ﬁnancial performance of the particular legal entity or tax Group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognized.

Contingencies

When a distribution contract with an afﬁliate has expired and a new
distribution contract has not been executed, revenues are based on
estimated rates, giving consideration to factors including the previous
contractual rates, inﬂation, current payments by the afﬁliate and the
status of the negotiations on a new contract. When the new distribution
contract terms are ﬁnalized, an adjustment to Subscription revenues is
recorded, if necessary, to reﬂect the new terms.

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from
litigation and other claims against the Group. Potential liabilities that
have a low probability of crystallising or are very difﬁcult to quantify
reliably, are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed
in the notes but are not provided for in the ﬁnancial statements. There
can be no assurance regarding the ﬁnal outcome of these legal
proceedings.
b

Useful lives and residual values
The Group reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets at each ﬁnancial year end.

c

Impairment testing

i

Judgment is also required in evaluating the likelihood of collection of
customer debt after revenue has been recognised. This evaluation
requires estimates to be made, including the level of provision to be
made for amounts with uncertain recovery proﬁles. Provisions are based
on historical trends in the percentage of debts which are not recovered,
or on more detailed reviews of individually signiﬁcant balances.

Dividend
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or before
the end of the reporting period but remaining undistributed at the end of
the reporting period, where the same has been appropriately authorised
and is no longer at the discretion of the entity.

ii

Equity shares are classiﬁed as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has any
indication of impairment also requires judgment. If an indication of
impairment is identiﬁed, further judgment is required to assess whether
the carrying amount can be supported by the net present value of future
cash ﬂows forecast to be derived from the asset. This forecast involves
cash ﬂow projections and selecting the appropriate discount rate.

d

Tax

Exceptional items

.i .

The Group’s tax charge is the sum of the total current and deferred tax
charges. The calculation of the Group’s total tax charge necessarily
involves a degree of estimation and judgment in respect of certain items
whose tax treatment cannot be ﬁnally determined until resolution has
been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through a
formal legal process.

Contributed equity

The preparation of ﬁnancial statements requires management to
exercise judgment in applying the Group’s accounting policies. It also
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the
accompanying disclosures including disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
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Deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
The costs of providing pensions and other post-employment beneﬁts are
charged to the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss in accordance with Ind AS 19
‘Employee beneﬁts’ over the period during which beneﬁt is derived from
the employees’ services. The costs are assessed on the basis of
assumptions selected by the management. These assumptions include
salary escalation rate, discount rates, expected rate of return on assets
and mortality rates. The same is disclosed in Note 42, ‘Employee
beneﬁts’.
Recent accounting pronouncements
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018, notifying Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”; notifying amendments to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes” and Ind
AS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. Ind AS 115,
amendments to the Ind AS 12 and Ind AS 21 are applicable to the Group
w.e.f. 1 April 2018.
Standards issued but not yet effective

Certain occassions, the size, type, or incidences of the item of income or
expenses pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Group is such that its
disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Group,
such income or expenses is classiﬁed as an exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the ﬁnancial statements.
Critical accounting judgment and estimates

Financial Statement
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Business combinations
Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition
method under the provisions of Ind AS 103, Business Combinations.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets
transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. The cost of acquisition also includes the fair
value of any contingent consideration. Identiﬁable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition.
Business combinations between entities under common control is
accounted for at carrying value. Transaction costs that the Group incurs
in connection with a business combination such as ﬁnder’s fees, legal
fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees are
expensed as incurred.

Management Report

ii

iii

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to
the date of issuance of the Group’s ﬁnancial statements are disclosed
below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when
they become effective.
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 amending the
following standard.

Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make judgments
and estimates in relation to tax related issues and exposures.

IND AS 116 Leases

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more
likely than not that sufﬁcient and suitable taxable proﬁts will be available
in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can be
deducted. Where the temporary differences are related to losses, the
availability of the losses to offset against forecast taxable proﬁts is also

Ind AS 116 Leases was notiﬁed on 31 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS
17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under
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31 March 2018
186.52
4.98
31 March 2019
5,239.01
343.25

5,239.01
186.52
445.49
1,718.79
111.10
37.37
640.82
87.46
595.56
173.00
57.11

Net book value
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress

1,523.98
4.58
Net book value
As at 31 March 2019
As at 31 March 2018

30.27
-

7,732.51
757.03
42.94
2,153.71
1,781.16
58.59
2,911.78
upto 31 March 2019

27.30

Financial Statement

214.11
47.40
2,736.20

4.31
2.11
25.10

30.09
0.62
-

176.75
36.17
1,640.58

276.43
208.94
2,030.45

22.33
-

99.04
657.99

-

823.06
295.24
7,090.32

Management Report

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Depreciation on acquisition

114.37
20.61
55.77
29.12
8.87
upto 31 March 2018

-

14.41
6.20
26.02
29.75
18.68
10.44
4.66
4.21
II. Depreciation upto
31 March 2017
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

12,971.52
445.49
2,475.82
154.04
2,794.53
2,376.72
231.59
4,435.76

57.57

17,027.81
373.75
3,983.43
1,484.97
1,039.48
5,419.77
2,943.95
96.06
2,886.07
234.77
2,422.96
46.24
-

57.98
143.23
86.23
-

-

146.34
0.98
-

-

19.32
38.66
92.29
50.94
38.73
76.14
28.64
-

62.37
4.80
-

300.89
-

175.43
168.43
42.97
-

Total
Freehold
Land
Building
Leasehold
Asset
Improvements

Computers

Annual Report 2018-19

As at 31 March 2019

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period
beginning on or after April 1, 2019, although early application is
permitted. The Group does not have any impact on account of this
amendment.

4,509.27
86.96
-

to recognize in proﬁt or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or
loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus
was not previously recognized because of the impact of the asset
ceiling.

Additions
Disposals
Transfer to investment property

•

13.45

to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and
net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and

As at 31 March 2018

•

25.09
2.69
14.33

Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement : On March 30, 2019, the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19,
‘Employee Beneﬁts’, in connection with accounting for plan
amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments require
an entity:

I. Deemed Cost as at
31 March 2017
Additions
Disposals

Ind AS 12 Appendix C , Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments : On
March 30, 2019 , Ministry of corporate Affairs has notiﬁed Ind AS 12
Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be
applied while performing the determination of taxable proﬁt ( or loss ) ,
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when
there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12.
According to Appendix , companies need to determine the probability of
the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax
treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax
ﬁling which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the
expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable proﬁt (tax
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

Plant and
Machinery

Ind AS 19- Employee Beneﬁts

Equipments

Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes

Vehicles

Amendment to Ind AS

Furniture and
Fittings

Amendment to Ind AS 12 – Income taxes : On March 30, 2019, Ministry
of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12,
issued , ‘Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend
distribution taxes.The amendment clariﬁes that an entity shall recognize
the income tax consequences of dividends in proﬁt or loss,
other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognized those past transactions or events.
Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period
beginning on or after April 1, 2019, although early application is
permitted. The Group is currently evaluating the effect of this
amendment on the consolidated ﬁnancial statements.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - i) Full
retrospective approach – Under this approach, Appendix C will be
applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with IAS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and ii) Retrospectively

194

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insigniﬁcant in
the ﬁnancial statements.

Description
of Assets

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from
today’s accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all
leases using the same classiﬁcation principle as in Ind AS 17 and
distinguish between two types of leases: operating and ﬁnance leases.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019, though early adoption is
permitted. The Group will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has
decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial
application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.

3. Property, plant and equipment

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset.

with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix 23 recognized by
adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for ﬁnance
leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees – leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal
computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12
months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and
an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

(₹ lakhs)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

63.77
50.60
-
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
4

5

Goodwill

(` Lakhs)
Furniture &
Fixtures

Ofﬁce
Equipment

Computer

Building

I. Deemed Cost as at 31 March 2017
Additions
Disposals

526.62
45.33
-

354.69
54.69
-

129.74
29.00
-

10,029.94
4,932.91
-

648.16
-

11,689.15
5,061.93
-

As at 31 March 2018

571.95

409.38

158.74

14,962.85

648.16

16,751.08

Additions
Disposals
Transfer from Property, plant and equipment

104.84
-

96.33
-

32.47
-

8,172.85
2,943.95

1,039.48

8,406.49
3,983.43

As at 31 March 2019

676.79

505.71

191.21

26,079.65

1,687.64

29,141.00

53.18
68.11
-

88.66
101.80
-

65.64
38.24
-

323.08
500.07
-

-

530.56
708.22
-

121.29

190.46

103.88

823.15

-

1,238.78

69.68
-

96.04
-

34.05
-

877.66
-

-

1,077.43
-

upto 31 March 2019

190.97

286.50

137.93

1,700.81

-

2,316.21

Net book value
As at 31 March 2019
As at 31 March 2018

485.82
450.66

219.21
218.92

53.28
54.86

24,378.84
14,139.70

1,687.64
648.16

26,824.79
15,512.30

II. Depreciation upto 31 March 2017
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
upto 31 March 2018
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

Net book value
Investment property
Investment property under development

Freehold
Land (a)

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Investment property
Description of Assets

Management Report

Total

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

26,824.79
28,928.34

15,512.30
35,795.04

a)

Acquired pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement is mortgaged against the Secured Debentures, for land of `/lakhs 5.83 (`/lakhs 2018 - 5.83)

b)

The fair value of the group’s investment property has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at that date by independent valuers. The fair value
measurement is categories as Level 3, for Building `/ lakhs 21,442.87 (`/ lakhs 2018-14,139.70) and freehold and `/lakhs 1,088.88 (`/lakhs 2018 -

Description of Assets

(` Lakhs)
Goodwill *

I. Deemed Cost as at 31 March 2017
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

-

As at 31 March 2018

-

Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

31,323.64
-

As at 31 March 2019

31,323.64

II. Amortization upto 31 March 2017
Amortisation for the year
Disposals during the year

-

upto 31 March 2018
Amortisation for the year
Disposals during the year

-

upto 31 March 2019

-

Net book value
As at 31 March 2019
As at 31 March 2018

31,323.64
-

* Arising on acquisition of MT Educare Limited (refer note 48)

1,057.77)
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Financial Statement

9,451.72

382.93
353.12
-

736.05

888.08
-

1,624.13

7,827.59
2,154.31

1,513.70

-

-

180.20
-

180.20

1,333.50
-

595.10

-

70.85
-

70.85

524.25
-

8,424.99

6,561.36
1,513.70
595.10
-

2,154.31

2,890.36
-

31 March 2018

2,044.54
845.82
-

Non - current investments

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

0.31

-

290 (2018-Nil) Equity shares of ₹10/- each fully paid up The Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited

0.03

-

0.34

-

5,300.86

7,827.59

31 March 2019

31 March 2019
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
8

0.34

Loans

31 March 2018
(` Lakhs)

31 March 2019

4,812.26
1,891.42

964.64
-

(All the above securities are fully paid up)

Security deposits
Loans receivables
Others - considered good (Unsecured) * 3,763.65

7.85
-

130.36
364.59
0.15

130.36
229.16
0.15
-

135.43
-

49.45
85.98
-

1,095.00
5,176.85
8.00

1,095.00
3,150.00
8.00
-

2,026.85
-

1,186.85
840.00
-

SAP

31 March 2018

Investments in equity instrument (fully paid up)
Investment carried at fair value through proﬁt and loss
Others - Unquoted
1,250 (2018-Nil) Equity Shares of ` 25 each fully paid up of The Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited
Total

-

Development MT Educare
Brand
Rights

Lakshya
Brand

Robomate
Content Brand

Total

7

Total

Non-Current
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

713.94

-

7,520.56

-

2,335.44

778.16

4,477.59

-

9,856.00

Current
31 March 2018
-

778.16

175.16
11.81

80.09

27.55
-

52.54

35.55
16.99
-

255.25

190.90
-

64.35

64.35
-

9

Other ﬁnancial assets

(` Lakhs)

9.93
251.08

Intangible Assets under Development

Intangible Assets

Deposit with banks having original maturity period of
more than twelve months (refer note 16 b) #

Net book value

Net book value
As at 31 March 2019
As at 31 March 2018

797.90
upto 31 March 2019

249.81
Amortisation for the year
Disposals during the year

548.08
upto 31 March 2018

297.93
250.15
II. Amortization upto 31 March 2017
Amortisation for the year
Disposals during the year

807.82
As at 31 March 2019

8.66
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

799.16
As at 31 March 2018

793.34
5.82
-

31 March 2019

I. Deemed Cost as at 31 March 2017
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

Description of Assets

Content
Development

Software

* Loan are given to others for their business purposes.

6 Intangible assets

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(` Lakhs)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount given towards share allotment *
Advances and deposits - unsecured and considered good
- to related parties
- to others
Claims receivable
Contract assets (refer note-38)
Other receivables
Total

Non-Current
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Current
31 March 2018

1,949.18

552.77

-

-

-

20,000.00

-

-

250.25
-

141.94
-

81.54
50.01
20.00
570.10
507.24

70.23
248.55
-

2,199.43

20,694.71

1,228.89

318.78

* During the previous year as per regulation 22(2A) of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, the Subscription
Shares i.e. 3,19,64,200 equity shares having face value of ` 10 each at a price of ` 62.57 (including a premium of ` 52.57/-) each of MT Educare Limited
subscribed to by Zee Learn Limited on a preferential allotment basis has kept in an escrow account.
Zee Learn Limited shall not be able to exercise its voting rights in relation to the Subscription Shares until the completion of the proposed open offer."
# Held as lien by bank against bank guarantees issued `/Lakhs 1327.46 (2018-Nil)
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
10

Income tax assets (net)

13

2,818.94

931.06

2,818.94

931.06

Total
14

Deferred tax assets (net)
The components of deferred tax balances are as under:
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

312.92
1,799.51
6,911.03
150.87
9,174.33

78.41
322.78
68.88
470.07

Mat credit entitlement

9.01
9,165.32
11.37

9.01
461.06
11.37

Deferred tax assets (net)

9,176.69

472.43

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortization

Non-Current
31 March 2019
Capital advances (unsecured)
Other loans and advances (unsecured)
Other advances (unsecured)
- Considered good
- Considered doubtful

744.04

834.00
33.71
867.71
(33.71)
834.00
459.40

Less: Allowances for credit losses
Prepaid expenses
Gratuity fund
Asset classiﬁed as held for sale *
Balance with government authorities
- Advance indirect taxes
Total

Current

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

411.50

834.00
33.71
867.71
(33.71)
834.00
249.57

-

295.71
295.71
295.71
227.51

31 March 2018

1,314.48

934.14

1,314.48

934.14

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

116.83
94.61

440.97
160.37
676.11
111.31
-

211.44

1,388.76

211.44

1,388.76

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Considered good - unsecured *

6,399.61

1,507.04

Signiﬁcant increase in credit risk

3,740.93

199.04

Credit impaired

6,259.35

-

16,399.89

1,706.08

Investments carried at fair value through Proﬁt and loss
Mutual funds - Quoted (at face value of ` 1000 each)
Nil, (2018- 44,054) units of Axis Liquid Fund -Direct Plan - Daily dividend reinvestment
Nil, (2018-160,101) units of ICICI Preudential Liquid Fund - Direct plan - Daily dividend
Nil (2018-674,749) units of ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Direct plan - Daily dividend
11,666, (2018- 11,117) units of Axis Liquid Fund - Daily dividend reinvestment
4,616, (2018- Nil) units of Essel Liquid Fund-Regular Plan Growth
Total
(All the above securities are fully paid up)
Aggregate amount of quoted Investments and market value thereof

(` Lakhs)

Other assets

31 March 2019

Current investments

(` Lakhs)

Deferred tax assets
Employee retirement beneﬁts obligation
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for expected credit loss
Disallowance under section 40(a)

12

(` Lakhs)

Educational goods and equipments

Total
11

Inventories

31 March 2018

Balances with government authorities
- Direct taxes (net of provisions)

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(` Lakhs)

31 March 2019

Management Report

15

Trade receivables

(` Lakhs)

31 March 2018
-

124.59
124.59
124.59
429.28

4.02

-

-

-

-

-

64.25

-

100.27

73.72

105.84

58.84

2,141.73

1,568.79

693.31

612.71

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total

(11,146.06)

(199.04)

5,253.83

1,507.04

* include due from related parties ` / lakhs 3,269.49 (` / lakhs 1,333.55)
For transactions relating to related party receivables, refer note 43
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the credit period extended to them is 0-180 days.

* The Group intends to dispose off property at Gazipur, as it no longer intends to utilise and hence classiﬁed as assets held for sale.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
16

Cash and bank balances

(` Lakhs)

b

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - In Current accounts *
- In Deposit accounts
Cash in hand

2,069.41
0.69
0.11
2,070.21

Other balances with banks
Balances with banks
- In escrow account *
- In current accounts @
- In deposits with banks having original maturity period upto twelve months #
- In deposits with banks having original maturity period of more than twelve months #
Disclosed under "Other non-current ﬁnancial assets"

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
b)

Current
31 March 2019
31 March 2018
a

Management Report

2,160.77
0.17
2,160.94

13.58
660.07
1,949.18
2,622.83
(1,949.18)
673.65

136.00
3.39
135.91
552.77
828.07
(552.77)
275.30

2,743.86

2,436.24

Terms / rights attached to equity shares
The Group has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1 each. The Group declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The ﬁnal dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the Group, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Group, after distribution of preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c)

The Group has not issued any bonus shares or bought back equity shares during the ﬁve years preceding 31 March 2019. Details of aggregate
number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the ﬁve years preceding 31 March 2019 is as under:

Equity Shares allotted as fully paid for consideration other than
cash, pursuant to Scheme(s) of Amalgamation / Arrangement
d)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

262,238,599

262,238,599

Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the aggregate Equity shares
Name of the Shareholders

31 March 2019
Number of
equity shares

% Shareholding

% Shareholding

77,975,375
63,052,512
23,825,743
20,955,327

23.93%
19.35%
7.31%
6.43%

@ The Company can utilise these balances only towards settlement of unclaimed dividend 1.62 `/lakhs (2018-Nil)
# a) Pledged/Lien for Term Loan/debentures Nil (2018 - Nil), Lien for Government authorities 0.50 ` /lakhs (2018 - 0.50 `/lakhs) Lien for others 43.10
`/lakhs (2018 - 621.50 ` /lakhs)

As per the records of the group, including its register of shareholders / members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneﬁcial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneﬁcial ownership of shares.

* represent amount deposited on account of open offer for MT Educare Limited (refer note 48)

23.58%
19.34%
6.40%
6.43%

Number of
equity shares

Jayneer Infrapower & Multiventures Private Limited
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Polus Global Fund
Moon Capital Trading Pte. Ltd

Total

76,875,375
63,052,512
20,856,608
20,955,327

31 March 2018

b) Held as lien by bank against bank guarantees issued 644.83 `/lakhs (2018-Nil)
e)
17

Equity share capital

(` Lakhs)

Authorised
1,000,000,000 (2018-1,000,000,000) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each
Issued, subscribed and paid up
326,078,725 (2018-325,895,472) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each fully paid up
Total
a)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

10,000.00
10,000.00

10,000.00
10,000.00

3,260.79
3,260.79

3,258.95
3,258.95

The group has amended its Employee Stock Option scheme (ZLL ESOP 2010) to ZLL ESOP 2010- AMENDED 2015 to align the scheme with provisions of
Companies Act 2013 and the SEBI (Shared Based Employee Beneﬁts) Regulations 2014 for issuance of upto 16,007,451 stock options (increased from
6,136,390) convertible into equivalent number of equity shares of ` 1 each not exceeding the aggregate of 5% of the issued and paid up capital of the
Company to the employees of the Company and its susbsidiary viz Digital Ventures Private Limited as amended in board resoultion dated 30 September
2016 at the market price determined as per the SEBI (Shared Based Employee Beneﬁts) Regulations 2014. The said Scheme is administered by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board.
f)

Summary of options granted under the Scheme
31 March 2019

Reconciliation of number of Equity shares and Share capital
31 March 2019

202

Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP)

31 March 2018

Number of
equity shares

` Lakhs

Number of
equity shares

` Lakhs

At the beginning of the year
Add : Allotted on exercise of Employee Stock Option

325,895,472
183,253

3,258.95
1.84

322,642,381
3,253,091

3,226.42
32.53

Outstanding at the end of the year

326,078,725

3,260.79

325,895,472

3,258.95

Annual Report 2018-19

Opening balance
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year (Refer Note (i) below)
Forfeited during the year
Closing balance
Vested and exercisable

Annual Report 2018-19

31 March 2018

Average exercise price
per share option `

Number of
options

Average exercise price
per share option `

Number of
options

34.96
36.90
31.54
36.82

5,694,720
25,000
183,253
363,842

32.52
42.28
32.23
32.64

8,017,007
1,312,254
3,253,091
381,450

-

5,172,625
3,730,205

-

5,694,720
2,445,512
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g)

Thursday, January 27, 2011
Monday, January 30, 2012
Wednesday, October 09, 2013
Wednesday, April 02, 2014
Monday, September 29, 2014
Wednesday, October 28, 2015
Monday, July 25, 2016
Friday, September 30, 2016
Monday, January 15, 2018
Monday, February 19, 2018
Thursday, August 09, 2018

Expiry date

i)

Exercise price

Saturday, January 27, 2018
Wednesday, January 30, 2019
Friday, October 09, 2020
Friday, April 02, 2021
Wednesday, September 29, 2021
Friday, October 28, 2022
Tuesday, July 25, 2023
Saturday, September 30, 2023
Wednesday, January 15, 2025
Wednesday, February 19, 2025
Saturday, August 09, 2025

31 March 2019

26.05
14.50
20.85
27.55
35.25
31.80
31.40
34.15
46.50
42.20
36.90

47,367
467,286
2,152,490
50,000
1,271,299
25,000
1,134,183
25,000

7,725
66,886
533,386
2,322,490
50,000
1,401,979
25,000
1,287,254
-

5,172,625

5,694,720

4.23

5.22

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period

31 March 2018

h) The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the black scholes model with the following assumptions
Scheme

1st Grant

2nd Grant

3rd Grant

4th Grant

5th Grant

Grant date
Weighted average fair value of options granted `

27/1/2011
23.82

30/1/2012
6.89

09/10/2013
7.98

02/04/2014
400.48

29/9/2014
13.3

Exercise price `

26.05

14.50

20.85

27.55

35.25

Share price at the grant date `

24.70

14.50

22.25

26.85

35.30

41.56%
6.89%
0.00%
0.66

38.53%
6.93%
0.00%
0.92

36.90%
7.01%
0.00%
1.72

37.02%
7.10%
0.00%
1.92

38.82%
7.15%
0.00%
2.25

Expected volatility
Risk free interest rate
Dividend yield
Expected life of the options (years)

Scheme
Grant date
Weighted average fair value of
options granted `
Exercise price `
Share price at the grant date `
Expected volatility
Risk free interest rate
Dividend yield
Expected life of the options (years)

Expense arising from share based payments transactions

6th Grant

7th Grant

8th Grant

9th Grant

10th Grant

11th Grant

28/10/2015

25/7/2016

30/9/2016

15/1/2018

19/2/2018

09/08/2018

3.03

200.24

4.80

922.16

15.15

-

31.80

31.40

34.15

46.50

42.20

36.90

32.15

31.35

35.20

46.80

42.75

36.90

38.87%
7.21%
0.00%
2.79

37.56%
6.36%
0.00%
2.57

35.81%
6.38%
0.00%
2.75

35.05%
7.04%
0.00%
3.3

35.05%
7.04%
0.00%
3.4

35.02%
7.98%
0.25%
3.86

Gross expense / (reversal) arising from share based payments
Less: Options granted/(forfeited) to/(from) employees of subsidiaries
recognised as deemed investment in subsidiaries
Employee share based payment expense /(reversal) recognised in
statement of proﬁt and loss (Refer note 27)
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

212.64

295.96

-

-

212.64

295.96

Notes:
(i)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2019 was ` 31.54 (31 March 2018: ` 32.23).

18. (a) Other equity

(` Lakhs)

Reserves and surplus
Debenture redemption reserve
As per last balance sheet
Add: Transferred from statement of proﬁt & loss account
Securities premium
As per last balance sheet
Add: On issue of shares under employee stock option plan
Shared based payment reserve
As per last balance sheet
Add: Options granted during the year
Transfer to securities premium on allotment of shares
General reserve
As per last balance sheet
Capital reserve
Add: Gain on bargain purchase

Retained earnings
Opening balance
Add : Proﬁt for the year
Remeasurement of deﬁned beneﬁt plans
Income tax impact thereon
Less : Appropriations
Transferred to Debenture redemption reserve
Dividend on equity shares
Tax on dividend on equity shares

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.
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(` Lakhs)

Share options

`

Total
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Expiry date and exercise prices of the share options outstanding at the end of the year:
Grant date

Management Report

Total
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

812.50
406.25
1,218.75

406.25
406.25
812.50

12,447.58
510.37
12,957.95

11,097.30
1,350.28
12,447.58

523.02
212.63
(202.94)
532.71

562.79
295.96
(335.73)
523.02

13,971.80
13,971.80

13,971.80
13,971.80

17.49

-

17.49

-

4,325.26
7,598.57
44.16
(13.58)

(12.91)
4,927.91
17.35
(5.65)

(406.25)
(326.07)
(67.02)
11,155.07

(406.25)
(162.17)
(33.02)
4,325.26

39,853.77

32,080.16
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of all insurance policies taken for the Project with the Bank as loss payee, all present and future rights, titles and interests of the Project from all
contracts, insurances, documents, which the Group is party to including contractor guarantees, liquidated damages and all other contracts or letter of
credit, guarantee, performance bond provided by any party to the Group and registered mortgage on lease hold land of the project. The loan is
collaterally secured by corporate guarantee from holding company and pledge of 51% shares held by the holding company in digital ventures private
limited subject to adherence to BR Act, to be held pari passu with RTL II (` 102.21 Cr). The loan carries interest @ bank's base plus spread of 2.65% p.a
viz., 12.90% p.a. The loan is repayable in 37 quarterly installments begining from 4th year i.e FY 2018

(` Lakhs)

Total
19

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

17,363.71
740.04

-

18,103.75

-

Borrowings

c)

Total (A)

31 March 2019

Non-Current
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Current
31 March 2018

9,540.01
1,485.85

8,516.89
-

-

1,299.61

11,025.86

8,516.89

-

1,299.61

17,749.35

14,368.11

2,424.22

1,552.24

800.70

-

d)

Others - Secured
Term loan from banks (Refer note (iii) below)
Working capital Loan (Refer note (iv) below)
Bank overdraft facility (Refer note (v) below)

-

-

3,560.82

-

7,606.37

-

-

-

(2,841.64)

-

(2,424.22)

(1,552.24)

Total (B)

22,514.08

14,368.11

4,361.52

-

Total (A+B)

33,539.94

22,885.00

4,361.52

1,299.61

Term loan from other parties (Refer note (vi) below)
Less: Amount disclosed under the head
"Other ﬁnancial liabilities" (Refer Note 20b)

(I)

Debentures
650 (2018-650) 10.40% Rated, Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures of Rs. 10.00 Lakhs each fully paid up aggregating to `/lakhs
6500.00, are issued for a period of 5 years and 3 months from the date of allotment. Debentures will be redeemed on July 8, 2020 in single tranche. The
debentures are secured by ﬁrst pari passu charge on all the ﬁxed and current assets, all the rights, titles and interests to provide security cover of 1.1 times
on outstanding amount and DSRA Undertaking by a related party.

(ii) Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured
The loan carries Interest @12.5% p.a and is repayable on or before 31 March 2023.

Term loan from bank 2,337 `/lakhs (2018- 2462 `/lakhs) for BKC schools Project.
Secured by ﬁrst charge on over all present and future immovable, moveble and intagible assets of the BKC School Project, the entire current assets of the
BKC School Project, including ﬁrst charge on all the escrow accounts and TRAs held by TALEEM and Group for the Project, as well as assignment of all
insurance policies taken for the Project with the Bank as loss payee. all present and future rights, titles and interests of the Project from all contracts,
insurances, documents, which the Group is party to including contractor guarantees, liquidated damages and all other contracts or letter of credit,
guarantee, performance bond provided by any party to the Group. The loan is collaterally secured by corporate guarantee from holding company and
pledge of 51% shares held by the holding Group in digital ventures private limited subject to adherence to BR Act, to be held pari passu with RTL II ( ` 102.21
Cr). The loan carries interest @ bank's base plus spread rate of 1.75% p.a viz., 12.50% p.a. The loan is repayable in 37 quarterly installments begining from
4th year i.e FY18.

(` Lakhs)

Debentures (Refer note (i) below)
Intercorporate deposits - Unsecured (Refer note (ii) below)
[(Including interest 186.24 `/lakhs, (2018-132.25 `/lakhs)]

Financial Statement
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(b) Non-Controlling Interest

As per last Balance Sheet
Add : Non-controlling interest arising on account of acquisition of subsidiary
Add : Proﬁt for the year

Management Report

Term loan from bank 1,891.64 ` /lakhs (2018-Nil) is secured by, ﬁrst pari passu hypothecation charge on the entire current assets, movable, immovable and
intangible assets (except vehicle) of the Group both present and future, pledge of shares and personal guarantee by one of the promoter of the Group. The
loan is repayable in 8 half yearly installments starting from September 2018. Last installment due in April 2022. Rate of interest is 1.75% to 2.75% over
banks 12 months MCLR (Range from 10.45% to 11.00% per annum as on March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018).
Term loan from SVC bank 3759.97 ` / lakhs is secured by mortgage of immovable property at Mangalore, securitisation of lease rentals and personal
guarantee of shareholders. SVC bank loan is repayable in monthly installments of ` 51.56 lakhs per month. Last installment due in March 2030. Rate of
interest is 10.55% (10% per annum as at March 31, 2018 , 11.50% per annum as at April 01, 2017).

(iv) Working capital loan from bank 800.00 `/lakhs (2018- Nil) Secured by way of ﬁrst pari passu charge on all movable assets including current assets, loans
and advances with minimum coverage of 1.25% for the entire tenor facility which includes charge on the accounts that receives cash revenue from
franchisee, plus DSRA equivalent to 1 month interest to be maintained upfront and one immediate installment to maintained one month prior to its schedule
payment. The loan carries interest of 10.20% and is repayable in 90 days on demand.
(v)

Bank Overdraft from bank 3560.82 `/lakhs (2018-Nil) is secured by way of ﬁrst pari passu charge on all the movable assets (including current assets,
loans and advances) of the company and cross collateralization of pledge of shares given for term loan. The loan carries interest rates ranges from
10.20% to 12%.

(vi) Term loan from other parties 7589.73 `/lakhs (2018-Nil) is secured by, ﬁrst pari passu hypothecation charge on the entire current assets and movable
assets of the Company both present and future, pledge of shares owned and personal guarantee by one of the promoter of the Group. Loan is repayable in
10 half yearly installments starting from October 2018. Last installment due in March 2023. Rate of interest is 14.5% per annum.

(iii) Term loans from banks
a) Term loan from bank 2721.59 `/lakhs (2018-3500 `/lakhs) is secured by way of ﬁrst ranking charge over movable assets including current assets,
loans & advances with minimum coverage of 1.25x for entire tenor of the facility which includes charge on the accounts that receive cash from
franchisee/revenue of the Company plus DSRA equivalent to 1 months interest to be maintained upfront and one immediate installment to be
maintained one month prior to its schedule payment. The loan carries interest of 9.95% and is repayable in 12 quarterly installments beginning from
ﬁnancial year 2018-19.
b) Term loan from bank 9,350 `/lakhs (2018- 9,850 `/lakhs) for BKC school Project.
Secured by ﬁrst charge on over all present and future immovable, moveble and intangible assets of the BKC School Project, the entire current assets of
the BKC School Project, including ﬁrst charge on all the escrow accounts and TRAs held by TALEEM and Group for the Project, as well as assignment
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Financial liabilities

a.

b.

Trade payables (Refer note 36)
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total (A)
Other ﬁnancial liabilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Deposits received - Customers
Deposits received - Others
Creditors for capital expenditure (Refer note 36)
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Employee beneﬁts payable
Unclaimed dividend
Book overdraft
Deferred deposit others
Other payables (Refer note 36)
(1) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Non-Current
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

-

529.61

251.98

-

-

4,233.25
4,762.86

548.86
800.84

10.45
1,531.28
-

10.00
1,178.76
-

5,265.86
2.00
37.14
-

1,552.24
2.00
-

-

-

35.22

-

-

351.49
1,434.43
13.58
452.73
880.36

34.48
22.96
3.39
65.55
-

-

7.01

3.25

-

-

1,950.37

2,496.79

Total (B)

1,541.73

1,188.76

10,430.19

4,180.66

Total (A+B)

1,541.73

1,188.76

15,193.05

4,981.50

Provisions
Non-Current
31 March 2019
31 March 2018

Total

208

(` Lakhs)

Contract liabilities (refer note 38)
Deferred deposit income
Statutory dues payable
Others
Total

23

31 March 2019

Non-Current
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Current
31 March 2018

313.63
21,155.19
-

94.07
23,931.89
-

6,606.85
1,602.60
1,627.23

2,648.62
683.56
207.84

21,468.82

24,025.96

9,836.68

3,540.02

Current tax liabilities

(` Lakhs)

Total

-

Provision for employee beneﬁts
- Gratuity
- Leave beneﬁts
Others
- Provision for litigation

Other liabilties

Provision for taxation (net of advances)

For transactions relating to related party payables, refer note 43
Trade are non-interest bearing and the credit term the for same is generally in the range of 0-90 days.
21

22

Current
31 March 2018

-

-
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(` Lakhs)

31 March 2019

Management Report

(` Lakhs)
Current
31 March 2019
31 March 2018

345.91
167.06

109.70
50.54

135.14
95.72

12.75
17.24

-

-

-

65.00

512.97

160.24

230.86

94.99

Annual Report 2018-19
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

0.13

205.77

0.13

205.77

Revenue from operations

(` Lakhs)

Services
- Course fees/royalty
- Franchisee fees
- Lease rental
- Manpower supply & reimbursement of expenses
- Onboarding / recruitment charges
- Sale of municipal waste
- Coaching and teaching services (net of discount and concession)
- Others
Sales - Educational goods and equipments
Sales - Hardware and content
Other operating revenue
Total

Annual Report 2018-19

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

7,398.57
1,167.03
3,380.61
6,542.82
5.34
2,268.35
17,828.56
48.96
12,003.69
951.42
129.29

6,049.71
1,341.99
2,956.88
5,277.37
15.37
32.07
11,177.24
33.24

51,724.64

26,883.87
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Other income
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

27.84
213.45
418.26
659.55
1,252.46
312.56
4.49

17.40
37.90
55.30
192.00
-

Total (b)

557.25
394.50
1.69
12.47
4.93
0.56
2,540.91

88.88
28.34
5.70
314.92

Total (a+b)

3,200.46

370.22

Total (a)
Interest income on ﬁnancial assets carried at amortised cost
Financial guarantee fees
Proﬁt on sale of ﬁxed assets (net)
Interest income from
- Bank deposits
- Unwinding of discount of deposit / Financial guarantee obligation
- Others
Miscellenous Income
Net gain on sale of investments
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation

26

a)

Operational cost

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

934.14
4,328.18
(1,314.47)
3,947.84

1,365.55
3,563.32
(934.14)
3,994.73

2,955.07
571.55
5,863.07
901.41
298.30

250.07
11.55
108.83
141.76

Total (b)

10,589.40

512.21

Total (a) + (b)

14,537.24

4,506.94

Educational goods and equipments
Opening - Inventory
Add: Purchases
Less: Closing - Inventory
Total (a)

b)

27

Other educational operating expenses
- Rent
- Electricity
- Manpower cost and other professional fees
- Student material and test expenses
- Others

Employee beneﬁts expense

(` Lakhs)

Salaries and allowances
Share based payment expense
Contribution to provident and other funds
Training and recruitment cost
Staff welfare expenses
Total
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(` Lakhs)

Dividend income from
- Mutual funds
- Non current investments as fair value throgh proﬁt and loss
Liabilities / excess provision written back

Management Report

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

12,784.19
212.64
742.82
127.29
290.12

6,876.08
295.96
382.06
70.72
254.46

14,157.06

7,879.28

Annual Report 2018-19

28

Finance costs

(` Lakhs)

Interest on - Borrowings
- Deposit received
- Others
Unwinding deposit
Other ﬁnancial charges
Total
29

31 March 2018

4,029.61
165.78
234.28
207.71
93.47
4,730.85

339.48
272.14
1,261.06
38.07
1,910.75

Depreciation and amortisation expense

(` Lakhs)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on investment property
Amortisation of intangible assets
Total
30

31 March 2019

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

823.05
1,077.42
888.07

50.59
708.22
353.12

2,788.54

1,111.93

Other expenses

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Rent

338.90

401.36

Repairs and maintenance - others

491.68

256.75

Insurance

64.86

40.35

Rates and taxes

53.80

118.66

45.04

43.13

Communication expenses

Electricity and water charges

242.62

134.57

Printing and stationery

162.28

55.88

Travelling and conveyance expenses

1,127.35

701.08

Legal and professional charges

1042.41

568.37

Payment to auditors (refer note 35)
Freight and packing charges
Directors sitting fees
Bad debts / advances written off
Loss on sale / discard of Property, plant and equipments
Provision for allowances for credit losses
Marketing, advertisement and publicity expenses
Preliminary expenses written off
Loss on sale of investments
Corporate social responsibility expenditure
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Annual Report 2018-19

47.43

28.27

902.84

1,112.01

9.24

7.50

130.67

-

-

42.97

67.65

123.85

1,815.94

512.18

-

0.03

43.14

-

12.29

16.50

659.96

126.10

7,258.10

4,289.56
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(` Lakhs)

Tax expense
The major components of income tax for the year are as under:

(` Lakhs)

Income tax related to items recognised directly in the statement of proﬁt and loss
Current tax - current year
- earlier years
Deferred tax charge / (beneﬁt)
Mat credit entitlement - earlier year
Total
Effective tax rate

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

2,621.04
46.30
504.69
(57.32)
3,114.71
27.19

2,660.80
(33.08)
2,627.72
34.78

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to proﬁt before income tax at statutory rate to the income tax expense at group’s effective income
tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 is as follows:
(` Lakhs)

Proﬁt before tax
Income tax
Statutory income tax rate of 29.12% (34.608%) on proﬁt
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses
Additional allowances for tax purposes
Other temporary difference
Effect of change in tax rate
Effect of exempt income and income tax at lower rates
Tax expense recognised in the statement of proﬁt and loss

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

11,453.31

7,555.63

3,335.20

2,614.85

510.37
(1,120.47)
504.69
(44.82)
(70.26)
3,114.71

585.00
(835.96)
(33.08)
302.93
(6.02)
2,627.72

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net:
Opening balance
Deferred tax (charge)/credit recognised in
- Statement of proﬁt and loss
- Recognised in other comprehensive income
Total
Other temporary difference (on acquisiton of MT Educare Limited)
Mat Credit entitlement
Grand Total
32
A.

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

461.06

433.63

(504.69)
(161.20)
(204.83)
9,370.15
11.37
9,176.69

33.08
(5.65)
461.06
11.37
472.43

Leases
Operating leases taken by the group :
The Group has taken ofﬁce, residential facilities and plant and machinery (including equipments) etc. under cancellable/ non-cancellable lease agreements
that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the Lessor and the Lessee.
(` Lakhs)

Lease rental charges for the year
Future Lease rental obligation payable (under non-cancellable lease)
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than ﬁve years
Later than ﬁve years
B.

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

3,647.95

652.72

818.90
1,500.70
9,579.06

502.00
1,963.75
9,842.47

Operating leases granted by the group :
The company has given property under cancellable lease agreement that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the Lessor and the Lessee.

Deferred tax recognized in statement of other comprehensive income

(` Lakhs)

For the year ended 31 March
Employee retirement beneﬁts obligation

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(161.20)

(5.65)

The applicable tax rate is the standard effective corporate income tax rate in India. The tax rate is 29.12% (34.608%) for the year ended 31 March 2019.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the group has a legally enforceable right to do so. For analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset)
for ﬁnancial reporting purposes refer note 11.
Deferred tax recognized in statement of proﬁt and loss

Rent income as per statement of proﬁt & loss
Gross carrying value of asset (Including premises in Investments)
Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation recognised in statement of proﬁt & loss
Impairment losses

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

3,380.61
31,139.30
3,482.78
1,301.76
-

2,956.88
19,582.81
2,181.02
799.47
-

(` Lakhs)

For the year ended 31 March
Employee retirement beneﬁts obligation
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for doubtful debts
Other temporary difference
Total
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Description of signiﬁcant leasing arrangements

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(395.71)
7,893.42
(6,842.15)
(150.87)

(21.39)
31.17
(42.86)
-

504.69

(33.08)

Annual Report 2018-19

(` Lakhs)

Lease rental Income for the year
Future Lease rental obligation receivable (under non-cancellable lease)
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than ﬁve years
Later than ﬁve years
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

2,671.78

2,417.00

3,250.75
14,591.36
108,377.01

2,437.15
10,867.88
105,497.17
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a) Contingent liabilities

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

46.98
437.39
2,129.93

70.87
579.19
1,568.74

49,435.00
439.61

16,000.00
-

36

c)

34

The Group has withdrawn the merger with Tree House Education and Accessories Limited (THEAL)and has reserved its rights for suitable actions against
adverse allegations by THEAL
Capital and other commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for (net of advances) is `/lakhs 5,153.78 (`/lakhs 2018- 4,847.46)

35

Payment to auditors
For Holding Company

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

17.00
2.00
1.27
1.03
21.30

15.75
2.00
1.27
2.70
21.72

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Audit fees
Tax audit fees

22.67
3.46

5.40
1.15

Total

26.13

6.55

Audit fees (including limited review)
Tax audit fees
Tax representation
Certiﬁcation and Others
Total
For Subsidiaries
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(` Lakhs)
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

896.78

408.28

81.05

-

c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

-

-

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the interest speciﬁed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

-

-

81.05

-

-

-

a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year
b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year

# income tax demands mainly include appeals ﬁled by the group before appellate authorities against the disallowance of expenses/claims etc. The
manangement is of the opinion that its tax cases will be decided in its favour and hence no provision is considered necessary at this stage.
@ Corporate guarantee includes 2435 `/lakhs is provided to a bank in respect of loan taken by Sri Gayatri Educational Society pursuant to the long term
partnership arrangement entered through company's subsidiary Sri Gayatri Educational Services Private Limited. Corporate guarantee is utilised for
business purposes.
The Group had entered into and executed third party warehousing arrangement for materials/ study materials with a service provider. During the previous
year, there was a dispute with the service provider for the service and group had issued termination letter giving 3 months notice as per terms of the contract.
However, the service provider stopped rendering the services during the notice period and had taken custody of the study materials. The group had ﬁled a
case in Honorable High Court against the service provider in order to take the materials/ study materials through court process. Group was successful in
getting a favorable order from Honorable High Court and obtained the custody of materials/study materials through court process, during March. The group
had ﬁled a claim for damage and the matter was under arbitration. The arbritration has been amicably and permanently settled and the group and the
service provider have resolved all disputes and differences as per agreed Consent Terms ﬁled with the Sole Arbitrator.

Micro, small and medium enterprises
Trade and other payables - Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMEDA), which came into force from 2 October
2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of information and records available with
the management, the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, which have registered with the
competent authorities.
(` Lakhs)

* does not include Interest amount, as interest rate has not been adjudicated by court.

b)

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(` Lakhs)

Claims against the group not acknowledged as debts *
Disputed direct taxes #
Disputed indirect taxes
Corporate guarantee to others [ loan outstanding
`/lakhs 33,963.99 (2018 - `/lakhs 15,275.00) ] @
Guarantees given in favour of Government bodies

Management Report

e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year
f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
37

Dividend
Dividend on equity shares is approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 17 May 2019, and is subject to approval of shareholders at
the annual general meeting and hence not recognised as a liability (including DDT thereon). Appropriation of dividend is done in the ﬁnancial
statements post approval by the shareholders. Dividend on equity shares for the year ended on 2019: Rs 0.1 per equity share (2018 : 0.1) which
aggregates to `/lakhs 393.12/- (2018 : 392.25 `/lakhs)

38

Disclosures as required by Ind AS 115
The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notiﬁed Ind AS 115 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers. The Company has applied this standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial
application and the comparative information is not restated in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements – i.e. the comparative information continues to be
reported under Ind AS 18. Impact on the ﬁnancial statements upon adoption of Ind AS 115 is not material.
Revenue consists of following :

(` Lakhs)

Services
- Course fees/Royalty
- Franchisee fees
- Lease rental
- Manpower supply & reimbursement of expensees
- Onboarding/Recruitment charges
- Sale of Municipal Waste
- Coaching and teaching services (net of discount and Concession)
- Others
Sales - Educational goods and equipments
Sales - Hardware and content
Other operating revenue
Total
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

7,398.57
1,167.03
3,380.61
6,542.82
5.34
2,268.35
17,828.56
48.96
12,003.69
951.42
129.29

6,049.71
1,341.99
2,956.88
5,277.37
15.37
32.07
11,177.24
33.24

51,724.64

26,883.87
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Revenue Disaggregation by Industrial Vertical & Geography is as follows :

Educational Services / India
Construction and leasing (for education) / India
Training, Manpower and related activities / India
Total

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

39,527.52
3,380.61
8,816.51

18,649.63
2,956.88
5,277.36

51,724.64

26,883.87

Timing of Revenue Recognition :

(` Lakhs)

Revenue by offerings :
Services transferred at point in time
Services transferred over period in time
Total

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

14,305.73
37,418.91

12,599.92
14,283.95

51,724.64

26,883.87

Contract balances

Advances received and unearned revenue (contract liabilities) as at
Unbilled receivables (contract assets) as at
Trade receivables as at

39

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

6,920.48
570.10
5,253.83

2,742.69
1,507.04

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR Committee has been formed by the Group. The Group is required to spend `/lakhs 55.37 ( `/lakhs
2018-16.5) against which `/lakhs 16.86 (`/lakhs 2018-16.5) has been spent on activities speciﬁed in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

40

Rent Expenses
During the year, the Group has incurred total expenditure of ` /lakhs 316.06 ( 2018 - 311.85 ` /lakhs) on rent which ` /lakhs 222.75 (2018 - 219.80 `/lakhs)
has been transferred to CWIP. Classiﬁcation of expenditure in CWIP has been done since the projects are under construction and hence yet to be
capitalised.

41

Earnings per share (EPS)

Proﬁt after Tax (` lakhs)
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (in numbers)
Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (in numbers)
Face value of equity shares (`)
Basic EPS (`)
Diluted EPS (`)

(` Lakhs)

Management expect that 100 % of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisﬁed contracts as of 31 March 2019 will be recognised as revenue during the year
ended 31 March 2021.

42

Revenue earned from customers but yet to be billed is initially recognised as contract assets and classiﬁed to trade receivables when right to considerations
becomes unconditional.
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to customer for which the company has received consideration ( or an amount of consideration is due) from
the customer.
(` Lakhs)

A

7,611.22
326,032,212
326,171,836
1
2.33
2.33

4,927.91
324,530,519
325,631,141
1
1.52
1.51

Deﬁned Contribution Plans
“Contribution to provident and other funds” is recognized as an expense in Note 27 “Employee beneﬁt expenses” of the Statement of Proﬁt and
Loss.

B

Deﬁned Beneﬁt Plans
The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee beneﬁt entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the ﬁnal obligation.
The obligation for leave beneﬁts (non funded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method.

I.

Expenses recognised during the year

1
2
3

Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Past Service cost
Total Expenses

31 March 2019
31 March 2018
Gratuity (Non Funded)
76.47
33.35
-

38.99
7.36
-

109.82

46.35

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(31.18)

(13.84)

(4.73)
(42.93)
(78.83)

(4.85)
(12.50)
(31.19)

2,917.77
II. Amount recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI)
1
2

3
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31 March 2018

The Disclosures as per Ind AS 19 - Employee Beneﬁts is as follows:

31 March 2019
Amount included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year

31 March 2019

Employee Beneﬁts

Explanation for contract assets/contract liabilities.

Amount of revenue recognised from

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(` Lakhs)

Revenue by offerings :

Management Report
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Opening amount recognized in OCI
Remeasurement during the period due to
- Changes in ﬁnancial assumptions
- Changes in experience charges
Closing amount recognized in OCI
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(` Lakhs)

III. Net (Asset) / Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet as at
1
2

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

520.35
(520.35)

122.45
(122.45)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Net (Asset) / Liability at the beginning of year
Expense as per I above
Other comprehensive income as per II above
Beneﬁts paid

122.45
109.83
(47.65)
(43.73)

121.82
46.36
(17.35)
(28.38)

Net (Asset) / Liability at the end of the year

140.90

122.45

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

112.65
330.03
433.11

12.75
153.44
181.62

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

7.55%
6.33%
IAL (2006-08)

7.42%
6.33%
IAL (2006-08)

Present value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation (DBO)
Net (Asset) / Liability

IV. Reconciliation of Net (Asset) / Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet as at
1
2
3
4

V.

The following payments are expected to deﬁned beneﬁt plan in future years :

1
2
3

Expected beneﬁts for year 1
Expected beneﬁts for year 2 to year 5
Expected beneﬁts beyond year 5

VI. Actuarial Assumptions
1
2
3

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increase
Mortality

VII. Sensitivity Analysis
The key actuarial assumptions to which the beneﬁt obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary escalation rate. The
following table summarizes the impact in percentage terms on the reported deﬁned beneﬁt obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on
account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points

Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO

Discount Rate

Salary
Escalation rate

111.02
154.86

153.14
112.13

Notes:
(a) The current service cost recognized as an expense is included in Note 27 ‘Employee beneﬁts expense’ as gratuity. The remeasurement of the net
deﬁned beneﬁt liability is included in other comprehensive income.
(b) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inﬂation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certiﬁed by the Actuary.
"Signiﬁcant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the deﬁned obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
C

Other long term beneﬁts
The obligation for leave beneﬁts (non funded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method and accordingly the long term paid absences
have been valued. The leave encashment expense is included in Note 27 ‘Employee beneﬁts expense’.
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Related party transactions

(i)

List of parties where control exists
a) Wholly owned Subsidiary companies
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources Private Limited
b) Subsidiary companies
MT Educare Limited (Acquired on 25 May 2018) (extent of holdings - 59.12% [2018-Nil])
Fellow subsidiary companies
Lakshya Forum for Competitions Private Limited (formerly known as Lakshya Educare Private Limited)
MT Education Services Private Limited
Chitale's Personalised Learning Private Limited
Sri Gayatri Educational Services Private Limited
Robomate Edutech Private Limited
Letspaper Technologies Private Limited
Labh Ventures India Private Limited

(ii) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year and balance outstanding as on the last day of the year.
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited, Direct Media Distribution Ventures Private Limited, Diligent Media Corporation Limited, Digital Satellite Holdings
Private Limited, Essel Business Excellence Services Private Limited, Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited, Pri-Media Services Private Limited,
Taleem Research Foundation, Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited, Subhash Chandra Foundation, Essel Infra Projects Private Limited, Essel Corporate
Resources Private Limited, Pan India Infrastructures Private Limited, Zee Media Corporation Limited, Essel Finance Business Loans Limited, Essel
Highways Limited, Living Entertainment Enterprise Private Limited, Essel Finance AMC Limited, Essel Finance Home Loans LLP, Essel Finance Wealth
Services Private Limited, Essel Green Mobility Limited, GNEX Realtech Private Limited, Pan India Infra Project Private Limited Ranhil Utilities SDN BHD
Consortium, Pan India Infra Projects Limited, Pan India Utilities Distribution Company Limited, SITI Networks Limited, Zee Akash News Private Limited,
Amritsar MSW Limited, Digital Subscriber-Management and consultancy services private limited, Essel Corporate LLP, Essel Green Charge Private
Limited, Essel Green LMC Private Limited, Jabalpur MSW Private Limited, Jabalpur Waste Collection and Transportation Management Private Limited, Jay
Properties Private Limited, Nagpur Solid Waste Processing And Management Private Limited, NRSS XXXI B Transmission Limited, NRSS XXXVI
Transmission Limited, Pallavpuram Tambaram Msw Private limited, Rama Associates Limited, Ranchi MSW Private Limited, Tonk Water Supply Limited,
Varanasi STP Projects Private Limited, Warora-Kurnool Transmission Limited, Western Mp Infrastructure & Toll Roads Private Limited, Zee Unimedia
Limited, Zen Cruises Private Limited, Mahesh Tutorials Chembur, Mahesh Tutorials Mulund, Himgiri Zee University, Essel Vision Production Limited, EZMall Online Limited.
(` Lakhs)
A) Transactions with related parties
Long- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Short- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Repayment of Long- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Repayment of Short- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
Interest expense
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

5,700.00

-

5,700.00
-

1,500.00

5,700.00

1,500.00
-

5,700.00
-

1,500.00

206.94

1,500.00
146.95

206.94

146.95
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(` Lakhs)

Sales and services
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation
Himgiri Zee University
Taleem Research Foundation
Amritsar MSW Limited
Digital Subscriber Management and Consultancy Services Private Limited
Essel Business Excellence Services Limited
Essel Corporate LLP
Essel Finanace AMC Limited
Essel Finance Business Loans Limited
Essel Finance Home Loans Limited
Essel Finance Management LLP
Essel Finance Wealth Services Private Limited.
Essel Finance Wealth Zone Limited
Essel Green Charge Private Limited
Essel Green LMC Private Limited
Essel Green Mobility Limited
Essel Highways Limited
Essel Realty Private Limited
EZ-Mall Online Limited
Gnex Realtech Private Limited
Jabalpur MSW Private Limited
Jabalpur Waste Collection and Transportation Management Private Limited
Jay Properties Private Limited
Living Entertainment Enterprise Private Limited
MT Educare Limited
Nagpur Solid Waste Processing And Management Private Limited
NRSS XXXI B Transmission Limited
NRSS XXXVI Transmission Limited.
Pallavpuram Tambaram Msw Private Limited
Pan India Infra Project Private Limited Ranhil Utilities SDN BHD Consortium
Pan India Infraprojects Limited
Pan India Utilities Distribution Company Limited
Rama Associates Limited
Ranchi MSW Private Limited
Sarthak Entertainment Private Limited
SITI Networks Limited
Subhash Chandra Foundation
Tonk Water Supply Limited
Varanasi STP Projects Private Limited
Warora-Kurnool Transmission Limited
Western Mp Infrastructure & Toll Roads Private Limited
Zee Akaash News Private Limited
Zee Entertainment Enterprise Limited
Zee Media Corporation Limited
Zee Unimedia Limited - UP
Zen Cruises Private Limited
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

13,785.00

9,237.19

1,358.72
56.64
2,368.97
484.32
1.04
116.07
6.25
13.30
113.56
44.87
7.20
4.62
0.67
2.44
2.97
450.27
9.84
8.33
16.51
155.98
834.08
27.56
238.83
19.99
2.91
5.91
3.96
33.62
47.89
447.67
8.24
27.83
949.95
1.99
2,215.83
0.90
45.23
8.71
30.76
75.12
37.59
1,214.08
2,282.11
0.38
1.29

1,128.13
1,988.31
82.54
4.46
85.34
3.23
8.54
2.07
15.93
20.51
7.84
10.78
137.01
139.64
4.80
14.51
2,875.11
37.00
696.67
1,946.78
27.99
-
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(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

-

6.54

-

6.54

Purchase of Services
Other related parties
Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Diligent Media Corporation Limited.
Subhash Chandra Foundation
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited
Essel Corporate Resources Private Limited
Essel Vision Production Limited
Essel Business Excellence Services Private Limited
Prosynapse Consultants Private Limited
Diligent Media Corporation Limited
Mahesh Tutorials Chembur
Mahesh Tutorials Mulund

1,528.35

662.24

11.48
92.00
416.59
126.50
46.90
711.38
12.10
3.58
82.89
24.93

13.09
50.86
178.23
16.50
23.71
65.35
42.16
272.34
-

Reimbursement of expenses
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation

2,179.87

4,223.94

2,179.87

4,223.94

Capital advance given
Other related parties
Pan India Infrastructure Private Limited

367.55

612.64

367.55

612.64

Interest income
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation
Financial guarantee fees
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation

244.14

33.32

162.10
-

33.32

82.04

-

Unsecured loans given
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation

2,915.00

903.00

2,915.00

903.00

Unsecured loans repaid
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation

2,450.00

251.00

2,450.00

251.00

485.54

11,028.11

484.23
1.31

252.05
10,776.06

51.26
51.26

-

31,000.00

-

31,000.00

-

Purchase of material
Other related parties
Pri-Media Services Private Limited

Deposit Received
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation - Zee Learn Limited
Taleem Research Foundation - Digital Ventures Private Limited
Managerial Remuneration
Mr. Ajey Kumar
Guarantees given
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation
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(` Lakhs)

B)

Balances outstanding as at 31 March

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Long-term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited

1,485.85

-

1,485.85

-

Short- term borrowings
Other related parties
Asian Satellite Broadcast Private Limited

-

1,299.61

-

1,299.61

1,524.44

1,156.89

1,444.44
80.00

1,076.89
80.00

1.15

1.15

1.15

1.15

979.37

745.87

484.23
495.14

252.04
493.83

41.04

-

29.76
11.28

-

3,269.49

1,333.55

32.40
233.07
2,070.96
94.03
0.40
0.16
0.01
0.27
0.19
1.07
42.31
2.98
14.06
103.54
40.78

1,254.77
0.12
0.01
5.49
1.93
1.18

Loans, advances and deposits given
Other related parties
Pan India Infrastructure Private Limited
Essel Business Excellence Services Private Limited
Advance from customer
Other related parties
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Deposit Received
Other related parties
Taleem Research Foundation - Zee Learn Limited
Taleem Research Foundation - Digital Ventures Private Limited
Deposit Given
Other related parties
Mahesh Tutorials Chembur
Mahesh Tutorials Mulund
Trade receivables
Other related parties
Himgiri Zee University
Taleem Research Foundation-Zee Learn Limited
Taleem Research Foundation-Digital Ventures Private Limited
Amritsar MSW Limited
Essel Business Excellence Services Limited
Essel Finanace AMC Limited
Essel Finance Business Loans Limited
Essel Finance Home Loans Limited
Essel Green Charge Private Limited
Essel Green LMC Private Limited
Essel Highways Limited
Essel Realty Private Limited
Gnex Realtech Private Limited
Jabalpur MSW Private Limited
Jabalpur Waste Collection and Transportation Management Private Limited
Living Entertainment Enterprise Private Limited

Financial Statement

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Nagpur Solid Waste Processing And Management Private Limited
NRSS XXXI B Transmission Limited
NRSS XXXVI Transmission Limited.
Pallavpuram Tambaram Msw Private Limited
Pan India Infra Project Private Limited Ranhil Utilities SDN BHD Consortium
Pan India Infraprojects Limited
Pan India Utilities Distribution Company Limited
Rama Associates Limited
Ranchi MSW Private Limited
SITI Networks Limited
Subhash Chandra Foundation
Tonk Water Supply Limited
Varanasi STP Projects Private Limited
Warora-Kurnool Transmission Limited
Western Mp Infrastructure & Toll Roads Private Limited
Zee Akaash News Private Limited
Zee Entertainment Enterprise Limited
Zee Media Corporation Limited
Zee Unimedia Limited - UP

0.48
1.00
0.47
4.79
4.10
23.71
0.12
0.05
71.07
252.42
0.17
4.14
1.12
3.50
7.39
3.85
21.05
233.83
-

0.46
0.02
63.50
2.58
3.49

Other payables
Other related parties
Pan India Network Infravest Private Limited
Diligent Media Corporation Limited
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Essel Infra Projects Private Limited
Essel Vision Production Limited
Essel Business Excellence Services Private Limited
Zee Media Corporation Limited
Prosynapse Consultants Private Limited
Diligent Media Corporation Limited
Mahesh Tutorials Chembur
Mahesh Tutorials Mulund

688.41

123.39

3.87
158.09
73.89
82.16
33.28
284.16
41.00
0.21
9.07
2.68

0.01
3.12
11.38
23.71
33.10
41.00
11.07
-

31,000.00

-

31,000.00

-

5,300.00

5,300.00

5,300.00

5,300.00

Guarantees given
Other related parties
Taleem Foundation
Guarantees received
Other related parties
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
Jointly Corporate Guarantee given by Direct Media Distribution Ventures Private Limited
and Digital Satellite Holdings Private Limited
Note:1) Figures considered based on the IND AS ﬁnancials of the company.

222

Annual Report 2018-19

Annual Report 2018-19

223

Corporate Overview

ZEE LEARN LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management Report

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(` Lakhs)

44

Segment reporting

Particulars
Capital expenditure
- Educational services and related activities
- Construction and leasing (for education)
- Training, Manpower and related activities

The Group follows Ind AS 108 ""Operating Segment"" relating to the reporting of ﬁnancial and descriptive information above their operating segments in
ﬁnancial statements:
The Group's reportable operating segments have been determined in accordance with the business operations, which is organised based on the operating
business segments as described below.
1 “Educational” which principally provides learning solutions and delivers training.

Depreciation
- Educational services and related activities
- Construction and leasing (for education)
- Training, Manpower and related activities

2 “Construction and leasing for education” which principally consists of constructing and leasing of properties for commercial use.
3 "Training Manpower and related activities" which principally provides services related to consultancy and advisory in areas of human resources, viz.
manpower placement, recruitment, selection, business process and others.
45

There being no business outside India, the entire business is considered as a single geographic segment.
Primary segment disclosure - Business segment for the year ended 31 March 2019
Particulars
Segment revenue
- Educational services and related activities
- Construction and leasing (for education)
- Training, Manpower and related activities
Total segment revenue
Less: Inter segment revenue
Net Sales / Income from operations
Segment results (Proﬁt before tax and interest from ordinary activities)
- Educational services and related activities
- Construction and leasing (for education)
- Training, Manpower and related activities
Total segment results
Add / (Less) :
Finance cost
Interest income
Unallocable
Total proﬁt before tax from ordinary activities
Less : Tax expenses
Current tax - current year
- earlier year
Defferred tax
MAT credit entitlement - earlier year
Proﬁt after tax
Capital employed (Segment assets less Segment liabilities)
- Educational services and related activities
- Construction and leasing (for education)
- Training, Manpower and related activities
- Unallocable (net)
Total capital employed in segments
Less: Inter segment eliminations
Total capital employed
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31 March 2018

39,816.47
3,380.61
8,898.80
52,095.88
371.24
51,724.64

18,634.25
2,956.88
5,349.79
26,940.92
57.05
26,883.87

11,866.76
768.41
348.53
12,983.70

8,276.52
617.94
201.70
9,096.16

(4,730.85)
2,518.45
682.01
11,453.31

(1,910.75)
314.92
55.30
7,555.63

2,621.04
46.30
504.69
(57.32)
8,338.60

2,660.80
(33.08)
4,927.91

80,845.48
43,196.24
584.07
(49,897.83)
74,727.96
31,613.40
43,114.56

26,427.50
43,261.58
253.95
(3,113.84)
66,829.19
31,490.08
35,339.11
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31 March 2018

52,276.24
1,565.66
0.27
53,842.17

195.45
1,116.71
1,312.16

1,478.76
1,309.74
0.04
2,788.54

312.46
799.47
1,111.93

Educational Infrastructure Projects under execution
During the previous year, the Group had taken lands at four locations on lease and has acquired land at one location for the purposes of setting up of
educational infrastructures. The Group has also acquired development rights to develop a piece and parcel of land, from TALEEM Research Foundation at
Mumbai, to build educational infrastructure. This development right is acquired for 30 years w.e.f 1 January 2010 against a lump sum development fee of
`/lakhs 10,500. The civil work for construction of all these educational infrastructures is in progress and are at different stages of construction.

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2019

46

Present business activities
The group has contined to increase its business during the year by leasing out the additional completed part of the premises so constucted at Goa, Nagpur,
Karnal and Patiala to the Educational Trusts. The civil work for the balance of the construction of the buildings at the above locations are in progress. The
development rights acquired by the company is also for the said purpose.

47

Financial Instruments
I) Financial risk management objective and policies
The group’s principal ﬁnancial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade advances, deposits and other payables. The main purpose of these
ﬁnancial liabilities is to ﬁnance the group’s operations. The group’s principal ﬁnancial assets include investments, loans, trade receivables, other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.
The group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The group’s management oversees the management of these risks.
a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ﬂows of a ﬁnancial instrument will ﬂuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by
market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, other ﬁnancial instruments.
1) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash ﬂow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair value of
ﬁxed interest bearing investments because of ﬂuctuations in the interest rates. Cash ﬂow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash ﬂows of ﬂoating
interest bearing investments will vary because of ﬂuctuations in interest rates.
The group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the group’s long-term loan from banks. Non-Redeemable
Debentures and Intercorporate deposits carries ﬁxed coupon rate and hence is not considered for calculation of interest rate sensitivity of the group.
Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With
all other variables held constant, the group’s proﬁt before tax is affected through the impact of change in interest rate of borrowings, as follows: (` Lakhs)
Increase / decrease in basis points

Effect on Proﬁt before tax

As on 31 March 2019

+ 50 / - 50

134.38

As on 31 March 2018

+ 50 / - 50

71.84
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
2)

The group enters into transactions in currency other than its functional currency and is therefore exposed to foreign currency risk. The group analyses
currency risk as to which balances outstanding in currency other than the functional currency of that group. The management has taken a position not to
hedge this currency risk.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the group generally invest in deposits with banks and ﬁnancial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in liquid mutual fund units and non convertible debentures.
b)

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of ﬁnancial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2019

The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure:

(` Lakhs)
Assets as at

(` Lakhs)

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

7.81

-

2.00
-

-

Foreign Currency sensitivity analysis

3)

31 March 2019
` increase by
10%
(0.20)
0.78

` decrease by
10%
-

` increase by
10%
-

Credit risk is the risk of ﬁnancial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a ﬁnancial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the group's receivables from customers, deposits and loans given, investments and balances at bank.
The group measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business enviornment in which the
entity operates. Expected Credit Loss is based on actual credit loss experienced and past trends based on the historical data.
(` Lakhs)
Ageing of trade receivables

ii)

3,911.20
12,488.69
16,399.89
As at 31 March 2019
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33,539.94

1,541.73
-

Total

19,554.57

33,539.94

1,541.73

5,253.83

1,507.04
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Due in
5th years & more

Financial Liabilities
Trade payable and other ﬁnancial liabilities
Borrowings*

4,981.50
1,299.61

22,885.00

1,188.76
-

Total

6,281.11

22,885.00

1,188.76

Capital Management

(` Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2019

Gross Debt (inclusive long term and short term debt)*
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank Balances
Net Debt
Total Equity
Total Capital
Gearing ratio

As at 31 March 2018
199.04
199.04

Due in
2 to 5th year

The group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt

753.80
952.28
1,706.08

11,146.06
11,146.06

Due in
1st year

For the purpose of the group' s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The group manages its capital structure to
ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the stakeholders.

(` Lakhs)

Net Trade receivable

15,193.05
4,361.52

* Current maturities of borrowings aggregating `/lakhs 1552.24 from part of other ﬁnancial liabilities hence the same is not consider separately in
borrowings.

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Movement in allowance for credit loss during the year was as follows :
Opening Balance
Add :- Provided during the year
Less:- Reversal during the year
Balance as at

Financial Liabilities
Trade payable and other ﬁnancial liabilities
Borrowings*

31 March 2018

Credit risk

Trade Receivables (Unsecured)
Over six months
Less than six months
Total

Due in
5th years & more

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of ﬁnancial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2018
(` Lakhs)

Sensitivity analysis

United States Dollar (USD)
Arab Emirates Dirham (AED)

Due in
2 to 5th year

* Current maturities of borrowings aggregating `/lakhs 5265.86 from part of other ﬁnancial liabilities hence the same is not consider separately in
borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 10% increase / decrease in foreign currencies with all other variable held constant. The below impact on
the group's proﬁt before tax is based on changes in the fair value of unhedged foreign currency monetary assets and liablities at balance sheet date.
(` Lakhs)

` decrease by
10%
0.20
(0.78)

Due in
1st year

Liabilities as at

31 March 2019

Currency

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the group cannot meet its ﬁnancial obligations. The group's principal source of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and
the cash ﬂow i.e. generated from operations. The group consistently generated strong cash ﬂows from operations which together with the available cash and
cash equivalents and current investment provides adequate liquidity in short terms as well in the long term.

The group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate ﬂuctuations arise. Exchange rate
exposures are not hedged considering the insigniﬁcant impact and period involved on such exposure.

United States Dollar (USD)
Arab Emirates Dirham (AED)

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Foreign currency risk

Currency

Management Report

`

37,901.46
(2,743.86)
35,157.60
43,114.56
78,272.16
44.92%

As at 31 March 2018
24,184.61
(2,436.25)
21,748.36
35,339.11
57,087.47
38.10%

* include current maturities of borrowings.
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iii)

Categories of ﬁnancial instruments and fair value thereof
Particulars

A) Financial assets
i) Measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances
Non-current Investments
Other ﬁnancial assets
Loans and advances

B) Financial liabilities
i) Measured at amortised cost
Trade payables
Borrowings (Non current)
Borrowings (Current)
Other ﬁnancial liabilities

Acquisition of MT Educare Limited
The Company has acquired 3,19,64,200 shares @ 62.57 [including premium of Rs.52.57] through Share Subscirpiton agreement and 1,07,36,973 Shares
@ 72.76 [including premium of Rs. 62.76] through Open offer of "MT Educare Limited" and subsequently it has become subsidiary (extent of holding
59.12% ) of the company with effect from 25 May 2018.

As at 31 March 2018
Carrying amount
Fair value

5,253.83
2,743.86
3,428.32
9,856.00

5,253.83
2,743.86
3,428.32
9,856.00

1,507.04
2,436.24
21,013.49
778.16

1,507.04
2,436.24
21,013.49
778.16

0.34
211.44

0.34
211.44

1,388.76

1,388.76

4,762.86
33,539.94
4,361.52
11,971.91

4,762.86
33,539.94
4,361.52
11,971.91

800.84
22,885.00
1,299.61
5,369.42

800.84
22,885.00
1,299.61
5,369.42

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents and bank balances, trade receivables, other ﬁnancial assets, certain investments, trade
payables and other current liabilities approximate their fair value largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Difference between carrying
amount and fair value of bank deposits, other ﬁnancial assets, other ﬁnancial liabilities and borrowings subsequently measured at amortised cost is not
signiﬁcant in each of the year presented.

Add :
Add :
Add :
Less :
Less :
Less :
Less :
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The following table provides the fair value measurment hierarchy of the group's assets and liabilities.
Quantative disclosures of fair value measurement hiererchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2019
Fair Value as at
31 March 2019
31 March 2018

Investment in Mutual funds

211.44

1,388.76

Total

211.44

1,388.76

(` Lakhs)
Fair Value
Heirarchy
Level 1

Valuation Technique(s)
& key inputs used
Quoted in an
active market

Investments measured at fair value are tabulated above. All other ﬁnancial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are in Level 1 of fair value hirarchy.
The fair values of the ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities included in the level 1 categories above have been determined in accordance with quoted in
active market.

(` Lakhs)

Net worth as on May 2018
Brand of MT Educare Limited (as per valuation report)
Brand Lakshya (as per valuation report)
Robomate Content (as per valuation report)
Goodwill on consolidation
Other intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Current asset
Net asset taken over
Purchase Consideration
Market Value for Non Controlling interest
Consideration Paid by Zee Learn Limited (through Preferential and Equity Allotment)
Total Fair Value of company

17,319.41
27,812.22
45,131.63 (B)

Goodwill

31,323.64 (B-A)

20,048.57
1,095.00
595.10
1,513.70
1,627.52
1,397.72
69.14
6,350.00
13,807.99 (A)

Acquisition of Labh Ventures Private Limited
On 1 September 2018, the MT Educare Limited, subsidiary company purchased 100% shareholding of Labh Ventures India Private Limited by way of
execution of Share Purchase Agreement. Accordingly, Labh Ventures India Private Limited has become wholly owned subsidiary of the MT Educare
Limited. This acquisition is being accounted in accordance with the acquisition method as described under Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations".
The details of purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and bargain purchase are as follows:
Particulars

(iv) Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets

48

Particulars

ii) Measured at fair value through proﬁt and loss account
Non-Current investments
Current investment

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(` Lakhs)

As at 31 March 2019
Carrying amount
Fair value

Management Report

(` Lakhs)

(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Non-current investments
(c) Cash and cash equivalents
(d) Current Tax assets
(e) Other current assets
Total Assets acquired (A)

5,935.79
0.03
48.80
67.33
1.10
6,053.05

(a) Non current Borrowings
(b) Other current and non current ﬁnancial liabilities
(c) Other current and non current liabilities
(d) Deferred tax liability
(d) Trade payables
Total Liabilities acquired (B)
Net Asset(A-B)
Purchase Consideration
Bargain purchase ©

3,652.87
308.37
262.42
183.18
0.72
4,407.56
1,645.49
1,628.00
17.49

As the consideration transferred is lower than the fair value of the net identiﬁable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the difference is recorded as a gain in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as ‘Capital Reserve’.
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Additional Information as required by Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013
(` Lakhs)

(` Lakhs)
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

74,463.84

62,078.14

1,314.48
28,600.32

934.14
29,172.66

104,378.64

92,184.94

Name of the entity

Total assets pledged

I

Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from ﬁnancing activities as required by Ind AS 7
"Statement of Cash Flows" is as under:
(` Lakhs)
Non Cash Changes
As at
31 March 2018
Long Term Borrowings (Including Current maturities)
Short Term Borrowings
(For Bank, Financial Institution and intercorporate
deposits etc.)
Dividend paid (including dividend tax)

Cash
Inﬂows

Cash
outﬂows

Interest
Accured

Other
Charges

22,885.00
2,851.85

36,220.08
4,660.11

(19,420.10)
-

(3,303.40)
(726.21)

-

-

381.14

-

-

Net Assets, i.e.,
Total Assets minus
Total Liabilities
% of
consolidated
net assets

II
51

Financial Statement

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Collateral / Security Pledged
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings of the company and subsidiary company are as under ;

Property, plant and equipment (includes Capital work in progress, Investment property,
Investment property under development, Goodwill, Intangible assets and Intangible
assets under development)
Inventories
Other current and non-current assets

Management Report

As at
31 March 2019

-

36,381.58
6,785.75

-

-

Parent Zee Learn Limited
Subsidiaries MT Educare Limited
Digital Ventures Private Limited
Academia Ediﬁcio Private Limited
Liberium Global Resources
Private Limited
Non Controlling Interest in
subsidiaries

Amount

Share in Proﬁt or loss

% of
consolidated
Proﬁt

Shares in Other
Comprehensive Income

Amount

% of
consolidated
Proﬁt

Amount

Share in Proﬁt
or loss after Other
Comprehensive Income
% of
consolidated
Proﬁt

Amount

36.92%

41,276.09

72.94%

6,169.58

35.64%

17.13

72.73%

6,186.71

17.52%
28.96%
0.00%

19,581.84
32,379.71
(2.01)

21.04%
2.24%
-0.01%

1,779.30
189.64
(1.11)

64.41%
-0.05%
0.00%

30.96
(0.02)
-

21.28%
2.23%
-0.01%

1,810.26
189.62
(1.11)

0.41%

456.76

3.79%

320.93

0.00%

-

3.77%

320.93

16.19%

18,103.75

0.00%

-

0.00%

-

0.00%

-

Note: Net assets / Share of Proﬁt of subsidiary are considered based on the respective audited standalone ﬁnancial statements without considering
eliminations / consolidation Ind As adjustments.
53

The consolidated ﬁnancial statements (herewith referred to as "ﬁnancial statements") of the group for the year ended 31 March 2019, were authorised for
issue by board of directors at their meeting held on 17 May 2019.

54

Prior year comparatives
Previous year's ﬁgures have been regrouped / reclassiﬁed / rearranged wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classiﬁcations /
disclosures, ﬁgures in brackets pertain to previous year.
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2. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies
Act, 2013, relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the
Annual General Meeting is annexed.
NOTICE is hereby given that the Ninth Annual General Meeting of the
members of Zee Learn Limited will be held on Thursday, the 26th day of
September, 2019 at 11:30 a.m., at ‘The Hall of Culture’, Nehru Centre, Dr.
Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400 018, to transact the following
businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the
Company - on a standalone and consolidated basis, for the financial year
ended March 31, 2019 including the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019,
the Statement of Profit & Loss for the financial year ended on that date,
and the Reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon.
2. To declare dividend of ` 0.10 per Equity Share for the financial year ended
March 31, 2019.
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ajey Kumar (DIN 02278096), who
retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.
4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:-

6.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read
with Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment thereof for time being in force), Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj (DIN:
01076066), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company by the Board of Directors with effect from May 17, 2019 and
who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting in terms of
Section 161(1) of the Act and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company not liable to
retirement by rotation for a period of 3 (three) consecutive years up to
May 16, 2022.
By order of the Board

RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 139 and 142
of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s MGB & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 101169W/W-100035), be and are hereby appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this Meeting to hold
such office till the conclusion of the 10th Annual General Meeting, at a
remuneration of ` 21,30,000/- (Rupees Twenty One Lakh Thirty Thousand only)
to conduct the audit for the financial year 2019-20 payable in one or more
instalments plus goods and services tax as applicable, and reimbursement of
out-of-pocket expenses incurred.

Registered Office:
Continental Building,
135, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400 018
CIN: L80301MH2010PLC198405
E-mail : investor_relations@zeelearn.com

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Notes:

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) thereto or
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the members hereby ratify
and confirm the remuneration of Rs. 55,000 /- (Rupees Fifty Five thousand)
plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses payable
to M/s Vaibhav P Joshi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration
No 101329) for conduct of audit of the cost records of the Company for the
financial year ending March 31, 2020 as recommended by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be
and is hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 14, 2019

Bhautesh Shah
Company Secretary

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy
to attend and vote on a poll on his behalf. A proxy need not be a member
of the Company. A person can act as proxy on behalf of not exceeding fifty
Members and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total
Equity Share Capital of the Company. Any Member holding more than
10% of the total Equity share capital of the Company may appoint a single
person as proxy and in such a case, the said person shall not act as proxy
for any other person or member. The instrument appointing proxy should,
however, be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. Proxies
submitted on behalf of the Companies, societies etc., must be supported
by an appropriate resolution/authority as applicable.
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3. The register of Members and Share Transfer books of the Company
will be closed from Thursday, September 19, 2019 to Thursday,
September 26, 2019 (both days inclusive). Equity Dividend, if
approved by Members at the Annual General Meeting will be paid on
or after October 3, 2019 to all those Equity Shareholders whose name
appear in the Register of Members of the Company as on the book
closure date after giving effect to all valid transfers in physical form
lodged with the Company or its Registrar and in the list of beneficial
owners furnished by the Depositories, in respect of shares held in
electronic form.
4. As per current SEBI Regulations, dividend is required to be credited to
shareholders’ bank account through National Electronic Clearing
Service (NECS), direct transfer wherever the facility is available and
the requisite details / mandate have been provided by the
shareholders. Shareholders desirous of availing of this facility may
send the ECS form (available on the website of the Company), along
with a Xerox copy the cheque pertaining to the bank account where
the shareholders would like the payment to be credited, to their
Depository Participants in case of shares held in dematerialized form
or to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agents ("RTA") in
case of shares held in physical form.
5. Corporate Members are requested to send to the Registered Office of
the Company, a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant
to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, authorising their
representative to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.
6. Additional information, pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, on Directors
recommended by the Board for appointment / re-appointment at the
Annual General Meeting forms part of the Report on Corporate
Governance in the Annual Report.
7. Members who wish to obtain information on the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019, may send their queries at least
seven days before the Annual General Meeting to the Compliance
Officer & Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company
or at email id investor_relations@zeelearn.com.
8. Electronic Copy of the Annual Report for 2018-19 is being sent to all
the Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company /
Depository Participants(s) for communication. For Members who
have not registered their email address, physical copies of the Annual
Report for 2018-19 is being sent. The Annual Report may also be
accessed on the Company’s Corporate Website www.zeelearn.com.
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9.

Members are requested to notify immediately about any change in
their address/e-mail address /dividend mandate / bank details to their
Depository Participant (DP) in respect of their shareholding in Demat
mode and in respect of their physical shareholding to the Company’s
new Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Link Intime India Private
Ltd at C101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400
083. Shareholders holding Equity Shares of the Company in physical
form may register their email address with the Registrar and Share
Transfer agent of the Company to receive all communications by the
Company including Annual Report and Notice of Meeting(s) by email,
by sending appropriate communication on
rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in.

10. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the
commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the
meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect at any time during the
business hours of the Company, the proxies lodged, provided not less
than three day’s notice in writing is given to the Company.
11. Members / proxies are requested to bring the duly filled attendance
slip attached herewith to attend the meeting.
12. Pursuant to SEBI circular dated April 20, 2018, Members whose
ledger folios having incomplete details with regard to PAN and Bank
particulars are required to furnish the same to the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent / Company for registration in the folio. Such Members
are requested to provide their PAN and Bank particulars to the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent / Company. Further, in respect of
the physical shareholding, in order to prevent fraudulent transactions,
members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the
Registrar of any change in their addresses, telephone numbers, email ids, nominees or joint holders, as the case may be.
13. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, nomination facility
is available to the Members in respect of the shares held by them.
Members holding shares in single name and physical form may send
duly completed and signed nomination form to the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent. Members holding shares in dematerialised
form may contact their respective Depository Participant/s.
14. The notice is being sent to all the Members, whose names appear in
the Register of Members/ Statements of beneficial ownership
maintained by the Depositories i.e National Securities Depository
Limited [NSDL] and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
[CDSL] as on the close of business hours on August 23, 2019.
15. E-voting: In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, and
Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Company is pleased to provide
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equity shareholders facility to exercise their right to vote at the 9th
Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means. The facility of
casting votes by a member using an electronic voting system (remote
e-voting) from a place other than venue of the AGM will be provided
by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for all the
business as detailed in this notice. The remote e-voting period for all
items of business contained in this Notice shall commence from
September 23, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. and will end on September 25, 2019
at 5:00 p.m. During this period equity shareholder of the Company
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form as on
the cutoff date of September 19, 2019, may cast their vote
electronically. The E-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for
voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by any
Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Depository Services [India] Limited [CDSL]. The Resolutions, if
approved, shall be deemed to be passed, on the date of Annual
General Meeting.
23. The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:
(I) The voting period begins on Monday, September 23, 2019 at
9:00 a.m. and ends on Wednesday, September 25, 2019 at 5:00
p.m. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the
cut-off date (record date) of Thursday, September 19, 2019 may
cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website
www.evotingindia.com.

16. The facility for voting by way of Ballot / Poll paper shall also be made
available at the meeting and members attending the meeting who
have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to
exercise their right to vote at the meeting.

(iii) Click on Shareholders / Members
(iv) Now Enter your User ID

17. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the
meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast
their vote again.
18. The voting rights of Members either by way of remote evoting prior to
the meeting or by way of Ballot / Poll Paper at the meeting shall be in
proportion to their equity shareholding in the paid up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of September 19, 2019.
19. At the Annual General Meeting the Chairman of the meeting shall after
discussion on all the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow
voting by use of Ballot/ Poll Paper by all those Members who are
present at the Meeting but have not cast their votes by availing the
remote e-voting facility.
20. The Company has appointed Mrs. Mita Sanghavi, Practicing
Company Secretary as Scrutinizer to conduct remote e-voting
process as well as Ballot/ Poll Paper voting process at the Annual
General Meeting in a fair and transparent manner.
21. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the general
meeting, first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter
unblock the votes cast through remote evoting in the presence of at
least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall
make, not later than two days of the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast to
the Non- Executive Chairman, who shall countersign the same and
declare the results of the voting forthwith.
22. The Results declared along with the Scrutiniser’s report shall be
placed on the website of the Company www.zeelearn.com and shall
also be communicated to the Stock Exchanges and Central
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(viii)

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the
Company selection screen. However, members holding shares in
demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they
are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new
password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for evoting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential.

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter
Folio Number registered with the Company.
(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on
Login.

(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the
entire Resolution details.

(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to
www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any
company, then your existing password is to be used.

(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on
“SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to
confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well
as physical shareholders)
•

Members who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to
use the sequence number which is printed on Postal
Ballot / Attendance Slip indicated in the PAN field.

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in
dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or in
Dividend Bank the company records in order to login.
Details
OR
• If both the details are not recorded with the depository
Date of Birth
or company please enter the member id / folio number
(DOB)
in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in
instruction (iv).
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.
•

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Zee Learn Limited> on which
you choose to vote.

(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

PAN

•

(xv)

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be
allowed to modify your vote.

(xvi)

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here
to print” option on the Voting page.

(xvii) if a demat account holder has forgotten the changed password
then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on
Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
(xviii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app mVoting available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can
be downloaded from Google Play Store, Apple and Windows
phone. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile
app while voting on your mobile.
(xix)

Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians
•

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals,
HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to
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(xx)

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp
and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
After receiving the login details a Compliance User should
be created using the admin login and password. The
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for
which they wish to vote on.

•

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the
accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

•

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of
Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be
used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION”
and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the
option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to
the Resolution.

For Members holding shares in Demat Form
and Physical Form

www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as
Corporates.

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you
may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting
manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item No. 4
The Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, recommended for
the approval of the Members, the appointment of M/s MGB & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants Mumbai having Firm Registration No. 101169W/W100035 as Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the Tenth AGM as per the
remuneration set out in the resolution relating to their appointment.
M/s MGB & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants have given their consent to act as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company and have confirmed that the said
appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the conditions prescribed
under Sections 139 and 141 of the Act.
Your Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in Item No. 4 for
approval of Members.
None of the Directors and /or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
their relatives is in any way concerned or interested in this ordinary resolution
set out in Item no. 4.
Item No. 5
The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the
appointment of M/s Vaibhav P. Joshi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm
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ZEE LEARN LIMITED

Registration No 101329) to conduct the audit of the cost records of the
Company relating to its Education Services for the Financial Year ending
March 31, 2019 on a remuneration of Rs. 55,000/- (Rupees Fifty Five
thousand) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket
expenses.
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditor has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company.
Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an ordinary
resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for ratification of the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the Financial Year ending March
31, 2020.
Your Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in Item No. 5 for
approval of Members.
None of the Directors and /or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
their relatives is in any way concerned or interested in this ordinary resolution
set out in Item no. 5.
Item No. 6
The Board of Directors (“Board”), upon recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, had appointed Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj as an
Additional Director of the Company in the category of Independent Director
effective May 17, 2019. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Act
and Article 89 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Roshan Lal
Kamboj will hold the office till next Annual General Meeting.
As per the Companies (Amendment Act), 2017, exemption is provided under
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from the requirement of deposit of an
amount of `1 lakh, if the director appointed is an Independent Director
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted
under Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, Mr. Roshan
Lal Kamboj being appointed as an Independent Director recommended by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on May 17,
2019, the requirement of deposit of amount for his candidature does not
arise.
The Company has received from Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj (i) Consent in writing
to act as Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, (ii) Intimation in Form
DIR-8 in terms of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, to the effect that he is not disqualified under Section 164(2) of
the Act and (iii) a declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of
independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act.
The resolution seeks the approval of the Members in terms of Section 149 and
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other applicable provisions of the Act, read with Schedule IV of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, for appointment of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj as an
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a
period of three (3) years commencing from May 17, 2019 until May 16, 2022.

MAP OF AGM VENUE

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj ful lls the conditions
specified in the Act and the Rules made thereunder and is independent of the
Management of the Company. A copy of the letter of appointment of Mr.
Roshan Lal Kamboj as an Independent Director setting out the terms and
conditions is available for inspection without any fee payable by the Members
at the Registered Office of the Company during the normal business hours on
working days.
The profile and specific areas of expertise of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj are
provided as below:
Name of Director
Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj
DIN
01076066
Date of Appointment
May 17, 2019
Qualification
Commerce Graduate
Expertise in specific functional Mr. Kamboj is an Industrialist and serves as
areas
a Whole time Director of Gold Laminates
(India) Limited. Further, he is also a Partner
and Producer in Roshan Lal and Ravi Raj
creations.
No. of Equity shares held
Nil
Directorships held in Indian 1
Public Companies as on August
14, 2019
Relationship with any other None
Director inter-se
Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution at
Item no.6 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of members.
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and
their relatives except Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj (whose appointment is
proposed in this resolution) are in any way, concerned or interested, financial
or otherwise, in this resolution and except to the extent of their shareholding in
the Company, if any.
By order of the Board
Bhautesh Shah
Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai
Date: August 14, 2019
Registered Office:
Continental Building,
135, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400 018
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ZEE LEARN LIMITED
Regd. Office: Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018
Tel:-91-22-40343900 Fax:-91-22-24955974
CIN: L80301MH2010PLC198405 Website: www.zeelearn.com

Notes

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companie
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
Name of the member(s):
Registered Address:
E-mail ID:

Folio No./ Client ID / DP ID:

I/We, being the Member(s) holding Equity Shares of Zee Learn Limited, hereby appoint
1. Name: ______________________________________________________________ E-mail ID: ________________________________________
Address: ___________________________________________________________________________ Signature: ________________ or failing him.
2. Name: ______________________________________________________________ E-mail ID: ________________________________________
Address: ___________________________________________________________________________ Signature: ________________ or failing him.
3. Name: ______________________________________________________________ E-mail ID: ________________________________________
Address: ___________________________________________________________________________ Signature: __________________________
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 9th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday,
September 26th, 2019 at 11:30 a.m. at the “The Hall of Culture”, Nehru Centre, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400 018 and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
I wish my above proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:
Resolutions

For

Against

1. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements of the Company on a standalone and consolidated basis for the
financial year ended March 31, 2019 including the Balance sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss and the Reports of
the Auditors and Directors thereon.
2. Declare dividend of .0.10 per equity share for the financial year ended March 31, 2019
3. Re-appointment of Mr. Ajey Kumar as a Director of the Company, all this earlier terms and conditions or
appointment remaining same
4. Appointment of Statutory Auditors
5. Ratification of remuneration of M/s Vaibhar P Joshi associates, Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial
year 2019-20
6. Appointment of Mr. Roshan Lal Kamboj as Independent Director of the Company
Signed this __________________________ day of _____________________________ 2019.
Signature of Shareholder : ___________________ Signature of Proxy holder : _______________________
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less
than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Affix
Revenue
Stamp
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Regd. Office: Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018
Tel:-91-22-40343900 Fax:-91-22-24955974
CIN: L80301MH2010PLC198405 Website: www.zeelearn.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
9th Annual General Meeting – September 26th, 2019 at 11:30 a.m.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 9th Annual General Meeting of the Company at “The Hall of Culture”, Nehru Centre, Dr Annie Besant
Road, Worli, Mumbai 400 018, Thursday, September 26th, 2019 at 11.30 a.m.

_________________________________________
Name of Shareholder/Proxy (in BLOCK LETTERS)

Folio No ______________________________________
Client ID # ____________________________________
DP ID ________________________________________
No of Shares __________________________________

# (Applicable for shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form)

______________________________________
Signature of Shareholder/Proxy

